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More satisfied customers

Customer general satisfaction survey Customer reputation score

2015/16 2016/17 | 2015/16 2016/17

83% 6% 5% 82%

SIM score - joint 6th out of 18 Negative water quality contacts

’ ¢ 2015/16 2016/17
2015/16 2016/17

85.1% 85.9% 2) 2,329 2,162

Improving performance

Unplanned customer minutes lost

2015/16 2016/17*

159 131

*Annual target 131minutes per customer

Water quality (MZC) Rt Carbon emissions

99.97% 2015/16 2016/17
(target 99.96%) increased : . 35.3 31.8

from 99.93% in 2015/16
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Chairman’s

welcome

Bristol Water and the wider water
industry have seen a year of
significant change. The successful
introduction of a competitive
non-household retail market is
something that the industry canbe
proud of and we have played our part
in this change. The potential impact
on the industry is of a scale not seen
since privatisation in the early 1990s.

All companies are now preparing

for the next price review that will
inevitably bring further changesina
regulatory climate that seeks to ensure
resilience of underlying infrastructure
atareduced cost, whilstimproving
customer service further. At Bristol
Water, we will continue torespond to
these changesin a way that puts our
customers first. We know that every
cost to the customer must represent
good value for money; we are taking
steps to be smarter in engineering and
maintaining our assets, managing
risks better and deliveringimproved
customer service atalower cost.

Lookingback at 2016/17, Bristol

Water experienced significant
changes in both ownership and

Board membership.In April 2016,

we welcomed iCON Infrastructure

as controlling shareholder and we
look forward to benefitting from

their sector expertise and long-term
investment approach. In December
2016,1CON Infrastructure increased

its shareholdingin the Company as
Suez Environnement ended its 10-year
shareholdingin the Company, a period
in which Bristol Water benefitted from
being part of a thriving global utility:.

During the year we appointed two new
independent Board members, replacing
twolong-serving members who retired
inline with good corporate governance
practice.Iwould like to pay tribute
tothe very significant contributions
made by both Peter Mcllwraith as
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Audit Committee Chair,and Chris
Curling as Remuneration Committee
Chair, for their long and distinguished
service.Iam delighted to welcome our
first female Board member, Tracey
Wood, whois the General Counsel

at Costain, and has now taken over

the Remuneration Committee Chair,
together with Tony Hemus, a former
PWC audit partner, who has taken over
the Audit and Risk Committee Chair.

Last year, Inoted that our Chief
Executive Officer (CEO), Luis Garcia,
had announced his intention to step
down after over seven years with
Bristol Water. I would like to thank him
for his valuable contribution during
histime at the Company and wish him
well for the future. Luis stepped down
as CEO in December 2016, when we
announced the appointment of Mel
Karamas our new CEO. Mel joined
Bristol Water in April 2017 from KPMG
International where he was a Partner
and Global Head of Asset Management.
With over 30 years of experience,

Mel has a proven track record in asset
management and capital delivery in the
water and wider utility industry. Iam
delighted that we have found someone
of Mel's ability and look forward to him
bringing his energy and ambition to
lead the Company through its next
stage of development. I would finally
like to thank Mick Axtell, our CFO, for
stepping up as Interim CEO prior to
Melsarrival.

4 Bristol Water plc Annual Report 2016/17
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Despite the disruption that is inevitable
with such a high level of change, we
have had a good year in terms of
performance.

We are starting to see the benefits of the
new Company structure introduced

in 2015/16 in our non-financialand
underlying financialresults. The
Company's financial position hasbeen
stable and our business improvement
programme, Channel, continues to
deliver savings. Our customer service
performance remains strong with

our Service Incentive Mechanism
(SIM) score continuing to improve.

Our Customer Satisfaction Index
benchmarking scored us at 85.9, which
isabovethe UK average of 77.8. We met
our water supply continuity target and
reduced the average number of minutes
customers were without water during
the year. We met our leakage target,
whichis already one of the toughestin
the industry, and achieved our water
quality target.

In November 2016 we broke ground on
one of the biggest infrastructure projects
inour history, the Southern Resilience
Scheme. Thirty kilometres of new main
will be laid between Barrow Gurney and
Cheddar, via Banwell, improving the
security of supply to 280,000 people in
our supply area.

Werecognise that our 1.2 million
customers have a wide range of needs
and preferences in the way they access
our services and how we communicate
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with them. Customers have told us
that they appreciate being able to pick
up the phone and speak to us straight
away but we have also increased the
use of Twitter and SMS messaging
during the year as werecognise the
fastand widespread impact these
communication channels provide.
Our desire to engage with our customers
face-to-faceisalsoimportant tous

and our teams have met with many
customers and stakeholders to explain
how our maintenance and capital
programmes will impact them and to
listen and react to any feedback.

The mainsrenovations programme
for the five-year regulatory period is
well underway with the first stage

of the £3 million Fishponds scheme
being completed with no customer
complaints, despite the disruption
caused tolarge parts of Bristol. The
combination of our engagement
approach and the goodwill of our
customers are key components of the
successful delivery of this programme
todate.

['was personally encouraged by the
positive feedback from in-depth
interviews that were conducted with
awiderange of key stakeholders. The
general feeling was that Bristol Water
hasa goodreputation and we are
trusted amongst our local community.

Looking forward, we are determined
to develop and build on this year’s
performance and are working on

Remuneration Committee
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initiatives to ensure we continue to
deliver improved customer service
alongside enhanced operational
efficiency.Thave trust and confidence
that our highly skilled and professional
workforce can doall of thisand more.

Keith Ludeman
Chairman
13 July 2017

&=
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Customer Service Index benchmarking
scored us at 85.9, which is above the UK
average of77.8

< would like

a2 L2eqr Your



Introduction  Strategicreport

CSR  Directors

Corporate governance

Chief Executive
Officer’s update

Ithasbeen another year of change
atalllevels of Bristol Water’s
organisation. iCON Infrastructure
havebecome the main shareholder,
two new independent Non-Executive
Directorsjoined the Board, new
members joined the Executive
Management Team and the
Company operating model was fully
implemented and embedded. As well
as all this, I took up my newrole as
Chief Executive Officer on1 April 2017.

Bristol Water delivers areputable

water service for its customersand

has continued to make operational
andbusinessimprovements as this
Annual Report sets out. The success

of the Company is underpinned by a
wealth of well regarded and dedicated
staff who are talented and experts
intheirfields.Itisa company thatis
geographically and culturally closer
toits customers than most other water
companies. Due to our relative size, we
canalsoactmore quickly than othersto
achieve our priorities. Ilook forward to
capitalising on these strengths to meet
future challenges and continue to make
improvementsto drive the business
forward and further enhance our
reputation.

Looking ahead

The health, safety and wellbeing of our
staff, contractors and public continue
tobe our number one priority. Our
performance hasbeenimprovingin
thisregard with threelost time incidents
in 2016/17,an improvement against the
previous three years and a step ahead
inour journey towards zero injuries.

We aim tobuild on this to make health
and safety not just about numbersand
processes but underpinning everything
we do andinherentin our culture.

Our people make us who we areand
determine how we are perceived by our
customers and stakeholders. We want
to attract and retain the best people at
both alocal and national level. We are
improving our communications with
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our employees through temperature
surveys and direct town hall events,and
striving toimprove our physical, mental
and financial wellbeing offering to staff.
We wantnothing short of happy, healthy
and motivated people who bring their
best for our customers.

We are forging ahead with the plansand
preparations for PR19 and over the next
12 months we will continue to ramp up
our engagement with our customersas
part of the development of the business
plan. We are making improvements in
our planning capability and processes
to ensure that our customers priorities
arereflected in our business plan across
the short, medium andlong term. We are
conducting anumber of benchmarks
toassess our relative efficiency and
tounderstand and demonstrate our
competitiveness in costs and service
levels. We will look to external best
practice and innovative ways of working
toimprove our position towards the
frontier so that our customers canbe
sure of value-for-money services from
us.

Whenit comesto customer service, we
areinastrong position but we won'tbe
complacent. Our SIM score continues
torise and the benchmarking survey
carried out by the Institute of Customer
Services scored us above the industry
and UK average. We will take the
findings of that survey and thelessons
we canlearn and work on improving
ourselves so that we can continue to put
our customers firstand deliver the great

8 Bristol Water plc Annual Report 2016/17
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service they quiterightly expect of us.

We arelooking for new and innovative
ways to communicate with our
customers and we want to use
technology to make the conversations
we have with our customers smarter,
easier and quicker. The more we listen to
our customers the more welearn about
the value that face-to-face engagement
has. We are looking for new ways of
providing a space for people tolearn,
share, and consider what information
they value and why.

Operationally, our focus will be on
resilience, asset health and serviceability.
We will seek to do thisand provide
ongoing continuity of service through
programmes such as the Southern
Resilience Scheme and themains
rehabilitation work running through
Fishpondsin the centre of Bristol. We will
beramping up our metering programme
this year toincrease the proportion of
customers with a water meter. Thisis

an essential part of building sustainable
future water supplies. We will conduct
extensive customer communication
inour supply area to convey the
importance of this programme and

to convince our customers to opt for a
metered supply.

We are committed to pushing

forward with our biodiversity work

and our commitment toimprove the
environment at every site we impact.
Where thisisnot possible we will return
it to the same environmental state as
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before we started. Our award-winning
Biodiversity Index Score programme has
beenrolled out across the 30 kilometres
of the Southern Resilience Scheme.

We will continue tobuild and improve
our community links and our
engagement with stakeholders and
governmentat alocal and national level.
We will actively seek opportunities to
work with local government to deliver
greater water efficiencies and improve
infrastructure for our customers. We
havelaunched another water fountain
in Bristol city centre and our multiple
award-winning water bar will continue to
be deployed across several high-profile
eventsacross our region.

Mel Karam

Chief Executive Officer
Appointed 1 April 2017
13 July 2017

(X
ad
82%

Our customer reputation
score hasrisen from

75% in 2015/16 to 82% in
2016/17

Bristol Water plc Annual Report 2016/17 9
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Chief Financial Officer’s
business review

Thelast 12 months have seen
thebusiness demonstrate its
commitment to improving
operational performance and
efficiency and its ability to deliver
a high-quality and responsive
service to our customers. It has
been a year of transformation
and modernisation, building our
capability and resilience to face the
future challenges in this sector.

The year hasalso seen anew majority
shareholder, significant changes to our
Board and anew CEO. Despite all of this
change we have successfully delivered
key initiatives and operational
improvements. The next few pages
provide highlights of the financial year
under review. A more comprehensive
review of our key performance against
theregulatory targets set by Ofwatis
included in the Strategic Reporton
pagelé.

Investment in our water supply
Thisreportreviews the second year
of our AMP6 (Asset Management
Plan 2015-2020) investment cycle and
some major capital schemes are well
underway.

The Southern Resilience Schemeisa
new £27 million infrastructure project
that will provide improved security

of supply to over 280,000 customers
across our supply area. Once in place
this new network will give usincreased
capacity for population and economic
growth and the ability to move water
between our northern and our
southernregionsin the event of aloss
of supply.

Atthe end of the financial year under
review, nearly a quarter of the 30
kilometres of new mains had been

laid. The need to obtain planning
permission for this scheme initially
delayed implementation, but weremain
on target for supply to be operational

by March 2018. Inevitably, a project of

this scale will bring disruption to
communities and trafficand we

have consulted extensively with the
local authority, town and councils

on theroute, traffic management

and diversions. We have also been
proactive and visible in communicating
with and listening to the public through
open meetings, MP communications,
radio interviews, social media, letters
and on-site signage.

Another capital project happeningin
central Bristol is a £3 million renovation
of the main from Oakfield Pumping
Station in Clifton to Greenbank
Cemetery in Easton. The first stage from
Clifton to St Paul's was completed in
2016. We engaged with residents street
by street to inform them in advance
about why the scheme wasneeded and
how they would be affected by street
works and road closures; this proactive
approachresulted in zero customer
complaints or enquiries.

For the second stage of this project,
from Lawrence Hill to Easton, we

are focusing our communication
efforts onlocal community radio
and online forums and are working
with Bristol City Council's Housing
Department communications team.
We have also engaged local MP
Thangam Debbonaire and the Mayor
of Bristol, Marvin Rees, to support
our community engagement. We are
very grateful for the cooperation and
understanding given to us by those
affected by these and other schemes.

10 Bristol Water plc Annual Report 2016/17



Introduction Strategicreport CSR Directors Corporategovernance RemunerationCommittee Financialstatements

Our CEO Mel Karam joined Bristol
Mayor Marvin Rees to celebrate the
opening of our second water fountain
on Queen Square
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We joined local community
organisations at the annual Blue
Monday event, which sets out to help
Bristol residents access free advice
and support

Shrupeing bo pay
o waler billT
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Operational performance

In 2016/17 we supplied on average 236
million litres per day (M1/d) to 516,000
properties, providing water to a total
population of 1.2 million household
and non-household customers. The
total water into supply was 273 Ml/d
compared with 266 Ml/d for 2015/16.
Thisincrease wasmainly dueto
anincrease in overall per capita
consumption from 1411/person/day to
1441/person/day attributed to the drier
weather conditions during the year.

For the year ending March 2017, total
Mendip rainfall was 609mm, which
is300mm below long-term average.
The dry summer and autumn meant
below average inflows into Blagdon,
Chew and Cheddar Reservoirs. Asa
result, reservoir levels did not begin to
recharge until the storms of November
2016. Rainfall continued to be below
average during the winter and early
spring. Weresponded early to the low
rainfall to maximise our water storage.
We minimised the use of our Mendip
Reservoirs by maximising groundwater
sources, bringing additional treatment
works into operation and increasing
output from the River Severn to support
our southern supply zone. As at March
2017 our reservoirs had recharged to
within our normal operating range.

We continue tomeet the most stringent
water quality standards with 99.97% of
legally required samples meeting the
Mean Zonal Compliance set by the UK
and European Community. We are well

positioned in the industry rankings with
performance relating to appearance

of water, and this year we have also
come inwell above industry average in
relation to DWIreportable events.

During the year we have focused on
implementing measures to improve
thelevel of Unplanned Customer
Minutes Lost (UCML) - a key measure
which shows the impact of bursts on
customers in terms of time without
water. Despite burst rates being above
expected levels and there being several
operationally challenging events, our
operational teams have been able to
minimise customer disruption by
using new techniques and live repairs.
This hasresulted in the best UCML
performancein three years.

Aleakage action plan waslaunched in
the winter of 2016 to address the higher
volume of leakage, which was partly
duetoanincreasein thelevel of bursts
following two cold spells. Our approach
included increasinglevels of active
leakage control (detect and repair) and
pressure management. In addition we
recruited two new leakage inspectors
and hired specialist consultants in
leakage and pressure management. In
just two months (January and February
2017) an additional 875 hoursin leakage
detection work resulted in 105 leaks
being detected, reducingleakage levels
by approximately 0.8 Ml/day. Asaresult
we were able to contain the increase
inleakage from 44 Ml/d in 2015/16 to
46M1/d in 2016/17. See page 23 for more.

Meter penetration remains at just under
50% -nearly 5% below the target set

for this year and the level of uptake of
customers opting to have a meter has
beenreported across the industry as
beinglower than the levels predicted in
PR14 Business Plans.

Plans are in place to improve installation
rates and increase the number of meter
optants that should put us back on track.

We actively engage with our customers
about the need to be efficient in the

use of resources, and encourage our
customers to do the same. Metering
makes amajor contribution to this, as
does our ongoing campaigning around
water efficiency. In 2016/17 customers
ordered 26,824 free water efficiency
devices for their homes and gardens
through our Save Water Save Money
online service, which is now much more
targeted through an online household
water use calculator.

To support the development of our
Water Resource Management Plan

for Periodic Review 2019 (PR19), we
have extended our pioneering project
with University of the West of England
based around thelive laboratory of
the student village. As well asusing
the accommodation blocks to test
how students use water and assess the
impact of water-saving ideas, we are
also using the students as a focus group
to test our messaging around water
efficiency and drought.

Bristol Water plc Annual Report 2016/17 13
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Customer service achievements
Our customer service performance
ismeasured through feedback and
surveysand Ofwat uses the Service
Incentive Mechanism (SIM) to
benchmark customer service across
theindustry.

Last year saw a big improvement in our
SIM takingit to 85.1/100 and this year

we are delighted to see another rise to
85.9/100. This is due to improvements
acrossall areas that are accounted for
inthe SIM, including operational and
billing service measures and complaint
levels. This year continues to seeafallin
complaints and weremain in the top five
industry rankings for this key indicator
of customer satisfaction.

We have been very focused on
continuous improvement and several
customer-facing teams have been
working on in-depth reviews of their
processesin order to find ways of doing
things differently and better. We have
beenlooking closely at all our customer
groups as werecognise that each of
them have different expectations from
us and we are now talking and listening
to each group more than we have

ever done.

We introduced an online panel for
household customers called Let us
know’ and each quarter more than 1,200
customers take part in some focused
research. We have also launched a
series of market engagement workshops
with developers and self-lay providers
and have been getting to know our
newest customer group, the retailers,
following the opening of the retail non-
household market.

Our service commitments to all our
customer groups are now detailed in
our new Promise, which hasreplaced
our Bristol Water Bond. We are doing
more than ever to help people who
are struggling to pay their billsand
continue to be at the forefront of the
industry in this area, working closely
with debt agencies and community
support groups to promote our assist
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schemes and social tariffs, increasing
the number of beneficiaries by 23% to
14,370 households this last year.

Asabusiness we have also taken the
step of taking part in the Institute of
Customer Service benchmarking
survey for the first time. This tells us
more about our culture, strengths

and weaknesses, and positions us
amongst our peersin the water and
wider customer service industries -
knowledge we can use to guide usin our
business planning.

Competition

Since April 2017 all non-household
customersin England have been able

to choose who provides their water

and waste water services.In the new
Open Water market, businesses buy
their water service provision from
retailers who in turn buy from water and
sewerage wholesalers.

During the year inreview, we worked
hard with therest of the industry to
successfully open the non-household
retailmarket. In April 2017 we sold our
retailnon-household customer book to
Water 2 Business Limited, but remain
as the water wholesaler within our
supply area. During the financial year
inreview we made many changes to
our processes and ways of workingin
preparation for this structural change.
We will maintain our focusin this area
going forward to ensure the market
remains alevel playing field for all the
retailers we supply.

Aresponsible business

Bristol Water aims to provide an
outstanding water serviceinan
environmentally sustainable way
and werecognise our responsibility
to safeguard the environment. We
continue tomeet our environmental
targets, and our reservoirs at Chew
Valley and Blagdon remain at the
highest assessment levels for Sites of
Special Scientific Interest. They are
internationally renowned for migrating
birds and for trout and pike fishing.
We strive tobalance the needs of all
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the diverserecreational groups who
have aninterestin the lakes with the
communities that live around them and
our requirement to maintain and protect
the water source for our customers.

This year significant developments
havebeen made in the visitor
experience with new signage, work on
the nature trails and redevelopment of
Woodford fishing lodge at Chew intoa
high-quality lakeside dining destination.
We have been working closely with the
Mendip Lakes Partnership and farming
groups on catchment management to
ensure that the water supply and quality
isnotimpacted by local activity.

Our commitment to protecting
biodiversity can be shown through an
innovative measure we have developed
called the Biodiversity Index (BI). This
new approach is designed to quantify
thebiodiversity at Company sites,
helping us tomeasure their ‘value’

and then quantify the impactand
benefit of our actions on the broader
environment. It also helpsimprove
theresilience of the environment by
creating animprovement toits current
status. Each year we aim to show an
improvement to the Bl scores.

In order to achieve this, an appropriate
amount of offsetting to mitigate and
improve impacted environmental
features must take place followingall
engineering, maintenance and routine
works. This new way of working has
been integrated into our decision-
making processes and isnow a
requirement for all works we undertake.

Bristol Water remains committed to
supporting community initiatives
that meet our criteria of beinglocal,
environmental and educational.

We aim to make a positive difference
by promoting the wellbeing of
communities and by behavingina
socially responsible manner.

In 2016 we partnered with a community
campaign called Refill Bristol to promote
tap water in the city and encourage

14 Bristol Water plc Annual Report 2016/17
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people to carry refillable bottles rather
than buy single-use plastic bottled
water. A network of more than 200 refill
stations - where you can top up with free
tap water - exists to make refilling easy,
but Bristol Water took the concept of
refill further by creating a free water bar
that we took to festivals and community
eventsaround the area.

The Bristol Water Bar doesn't just
promote tap water, it elevates our
product, making it novel and appealing,
and allows our messaging on other
subjects to be better received. We were
able to speak to customers about water
efficiency, metering, leakage and other
subjects and we estimate that more
than 16,000 peoplerefilled for free last
summer. The Bristol Water Bar won

the Bristol and Bath Environmental
Innovation Award 2016, which was great
recognition of this scheme.

Last year we funded or offered support
inkindin theregion of £10,000 to the
Festival of Nature, Portway Sunday
Park, Dundry Slopes Community
Roundhouse, Babbasa Youth Projects
and Avon Fire and Rescue.

Our annual stakeholder survey,
conducted in March 2017 had close to
500respondents from businesses, local
authorities, charities and regulators
inour supply area: 85% said we were
good or excellent to do business with,
66% said we had a good or excellent
reputation as abusiness and 75% said
we had a good or excellent reputation
for corporate social responsibility.

Financial performance

Our financial performance shows a
reduced profit this year in large part due
to one-off effectsin the prior year.

Turnover is consistent with 2015/16

at £111 million. Profit before tax has
reduced by £7 million. Operating costs
have increased by £4.9 million of which
£3.0million relates to the curtailment
gain on the closure of the defined
benefit pension scheme in 2015/16. The
remainingincrease in operating costs
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hasbeen driven by inflationary rises
and the higher cost of addressing the
operational issues encountered during
the year but mitigated by the impact of
business improvements. Our ongoing
efficiency programme, Channel, and
our new business operating model

are both now fully embedded and
have delivered optimisation and
improvement initiatives. Profit before
tax was also impacted by £2.1 million of
increased interest costs, mainly due to
higher indexation.

Our borrowinglevels have only risen
slightly, and therefore fallen as a
percentage of Regulatory Capital Value
(RCV) from 66% to 63%. We have met all
of our financial covenants and continue
to maintain our Baal stable credit rating.

Our capital programme for the
regulatory period is well underway,
with fixed asset additions of £38.8
million (2015/16: £30.1million). Our
investment will increase over the
coming years as our new project
planning and new risk management
approacheslead to optimised delivery
of asset interventions and improvement
schemes.

Going forward, we are determined

to develop and build on this year’s
initiatives to ensure we continue to
deliver improved customer service
alongside enhanced operational
efficiency whileretaining our reputation
asagood local business and corporate
citizen. We start from a position of
strength due to the commitment and
professionalism of our staff, to whom we
owe huge thanks.

A comprehensive analysis of our
financial results can be found within the
Strategic Report on page 40.

Mick Axtell
Chief Financial Officer
13 July 2017
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Strategic report

The Directors present their strategic report on the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Our business
Current performance
Responsive to customers
Excellent quality
Highly reliable
Environmentally sustainable
Leakagereport
Best people, right culture
Sustainable business
Financial performance
Risk and uncertainty.
Long-term viability statement
Outlook
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Our business

Bristol Water was founded in 1846
and while the world has changed
beyond recognition, our business
ethos remains the same: customers
are at the heart of everything we
do. We understand how important
areliable and clean water supply

is to everyday life; we are acutely
aware of the need to make theright
decisions to provide an affordable,
high-quality service into the future.
After all, we are customers too.

Through our passion to deliver a great
service, we place the customer at the
centre of our decision-making. We

listen to their views and adapt our
approach with the intention to meet their
everincreasing expectations and our

expectations of continuousimprovement.

We supply water to approximately 1.2
million people across an area of almost
2,400 square kilometres, from Tetbury
inthenorthto Street in the south and
from Weston-super-Mare in the west
toFromein the east. Our operations
include the abstraction, storage,
treatment and distribution of water to
homes, businesses and other premises.

We are one of 16 companies in England
and Wales who distribute water and
Bristol Water is one of six that focuses
exclusively on water, not waste water.
Inour supply area, waste water services
are provided by Wessex Water and to
make it easier for our customersand
provide an efficient service, we set up
Bristol Wessex Billing Services Limited
(BWBSL) together so that we only send
asinglebill to cover both services. A
second joint operation undertaking
between Bristol Water Holdings Limited
and Wessex Water Services Limited has
morerecently been set up to provide
meter reading, billing, debtrecovery and
customer contact management services
to thenon-household sector. In April
2017 we sold our retail non-household
customer book to Water 2 Business
Limited (W2B),but remain as the water
wholesaler within our supply area.

Our business model and strategy

In 2016/17 we supplied water to over
516,000 domestic and business
customers, including 5,000 newly
connected propertiesin the year. We
are committed to fulfilling the growing
demand and delivering areliable
supply and high level of service that
our customers have told us they want.
We target our regulatory commitments
through a business model that helps
generate significant efficiencies.

Our vision “to meet customers’

expectations by providing an

outstanding water serviceina

sustainable and affordable way” means

that we must:

- Provide the service our customers
require

« Work to protect and enhance our
environment

- Actively support our local
communities

- Support our employees to achieve
their full potential in a safe workplace

- Deliver good value to our other
stakeholders while managing our
supply chain fairly

« Assesslong-term demand for water
and determine the nature and phasing
of investments in our infrastructure to
meet this

- Provide sustainable and reasonable
return to investors whileretaining a
robust capital structure

- Maintain strongrelationships with all
regulatory bodies.
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Regulatory framework

Water companiesin England and Wales
must comply with the economic and
environmental regulatory frameworks.
Ofwatis the water sector’'s economic
regulator and competition authority. Its
main dutiesinrespect of water supply
areto:

» Further the consumer objective to
protect the interests of consumers,
wherever appropriate by promoting
effective competition

Secure that water companies
(meaning water and sewerage
undertakers) properly carry out their
statutory functions

Secure that water companies can

(in particular through securing
reasonable returns on their capital)
finance the proper carrying out of their
statutory functions

Secure that water supply licensees and
sewerage licensees properly carry out
their licensed activities and statutory
functions

Further theresilience objective to
secure the long-termresilience of
water companies water supply and
waste water systems; and secure that
they take steps to enable them, in the
long term, to meet the need for water
supplies and waste water services.

Other regulatory bodies include:

» The Drinking Water Inspectorate
(DWI), which is responsible for
assessing the quality of drinking
water in England and Wales, taking
enforcement action if standards are
not being met and other appropriate

CSR  Directors

A 516K

In 2016/17 we supplied
water to more than
516,000 properties

Corporate governance

action if water is unfit for human
consumption
« The Environment Agency (EA),
which regulates licences for water
abstraction, and preserves and
improves the quality of rivers,
estuaries, coastal waters and
groundwater, through pollution
control powers and the regulation of
discharge contents
The Consumer Council for Water
(CCWatern), anindependent
organisation whoseroleis to provide
information of use to consumers and
to promote the interest of all water
consumers
Natural England, whichisthe
government's adviser for the natural
environment in England, helping
to protect England’s nature and
landscapes for people to enjoy and for
the services they provide.

In 2014 we published a business plan
setting out our priorities for 2015-20.
Thisincluded anumber of key aims and
the outcomes that we want to deliver for
our customers and stakeholders.

Remuneration Committee

Financial statements

212m

We have around 1.2 million
customers across an area of
almost 2,400 square kilometres

14%

The population we
serveissettoincrease
by approximately 14%
by 2045

16%

By 2020 we aim to
reduce leakage to 16%
of water produced
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Highly
Reliable

AIMS

Reliable
supply

RESIS
Supply

OUTCOMES

Sufficient

Supply

CSR  Directors

Excellent
Quality

Safe Drinking

Water

Water is
Goodto
Drink

236Ml/d

In 2016/17 we supplied
on average 236 million
litres per day to 516,000

properties

Corporategovernance Remuneration Committee  Financial statements
Bristol Water’s aims and outcomes
Environmentally Responsive to Best People, Sustainable
Sustainable Customers Right Culture Business

Efficient Use Affordable
of Resources Bills

by Company
Satisfied

Customers

Efficient Use
Easy to

Contact

of Water by
Customers

Billsare
Accurate
and Easy to
Understand

Sustainable
Environmental
Impact

Pricereview process (2015-20)
Thisregulatory period (2015-20) is
known as Asset Management Period

6 (AMP6) and the price that water
companies can charge their customers
during AMP6 was set through Ofwat’s
pricereview process (known as

PRI14). This process considers the cost
requirements of water companies and
the service levels we should deliver for
customers.

Retail competition was introduced for
allnon-household customersin April
2017.To support the expansion of retail
competition, Ofwat set separate price
controls for wholesale services, with
different retail controls for household
and non-household customers. We
decided to exit the retail non-household
market and sold our non-household
customer book to W2B.

Development of our next business plan
to cover the period from April 2020
until March 2025 is now underway
through the PR19 process. Customer
Challenge Groups/Panels hold water
companies to account on current
performance and are used to influence
business planning and provide ongoing
assurance to the industry regulator,

Safe Working

Practices

Skilled
Workforce

Motivated
Workforce

Ofwat. The new independent Chair,
Peaches Golding OBE, holds a unique
position of trust between the people
and businesses supplied by Bristol
Water and has aremit to constructively
challenge and influence the Company
on behalf of customers, reflecting their
views and interests. The appointment
of Peaches, who brings a wealth of
expertise and experience to her role,
demonstrates our commitment and
desire tolisten and respond to our
customers' views.

Long-term strategy

Our 25-year strategy, Water in the
Future, was published in 2012 and sets
out our long-term company vision. To
help deliver this vision we developed
six strategic aims, which were tested
through customer research to identify
key areas of performance called
‘outcomes’, with measures of success
developed for each outcome. We are
reviewing andrefining these aims and
performance commitments with our
customers as we develop our business
plan for 2020-25.

In March 2017 we published our new
draft Drought Plan explaining how
we would manage our water supplies
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during any period of potential water
shortage. The consultation for this
draft Drought Plan closed on 21 May
during which wereceived 33 responses
from our stakeholders and customers;
theseresponses will help shape the
final plan, which will be published in
October 2017.In 2014 we published our
Water Resources Management Plan
(WRMP) 2014-40, which sets out our
plan to meet our customers need for
water over the period to 2040. This
plan provides a detailed assessment of
the future impacts of climate change,
projected increases in the population
we supply, an investigation of how

our customers' water use may change
over time, and the options available to
ensure that we are able to maintain a
resilient and reliable supply of water to
our customers. These options include

reductionsinleakage,increases in water

metering and obtaining new sources of
water. We have since started to develop
our new WRMP due to be sent to Defra
atthe end of 2017, which will explain
our ongoing plans to ensure we have
sufficient water resources tomeet our
customers' water demands and meet

the challenges of population growth and

climate change.

The population we serve is expected
toincrease by approximately 14% by
2045 Ttis anticipated that there will also
be growth in the number of businesses
we serve to support this growing
population and although demand for

water per personis falling, an increasing

population could lead to an increased
demand for water.

Climate changeis expected to bring
greater variability in the weather with
droughts and wet weather becoming
more frequent and severe. If drier

summers become more common, water

availability could change and yet there

may alsobe an increased risk of flooding

as the wintersbecome wetter, which
may in turn threaten the quality of our
water sources. Our WRMP sets out how

we propose to manage these challenges

while continuing to provide affordable,
secure and safe water supplies.

CSR  Directors

Corporate governance

Bristol Water has one of the lowest
leakage levelsin the UK water industry,
performing within the upper quartile
of companiesin England and Wales.
However, as set outin our WRMP, we
want to improve further and by 2020
aim to reduce leakage to 16% of water
produced (compared to over 20% in
2009/10).

Retail competition

Since April 2017, allnon-household
customersin England have been able
to choose who supplies their water
and waste water services.In thisnew
Open Water market, businesses buy
their water services from retailers,
who in turnbuy services from the
existing water companies who actas
wholesalers. We sold our retail non-
household customer book to W2B, but
remain as the water wholesaler within
our supply area.

Thereformsto the market have

been governed nationally through

the Open Water programme, which
was responsible for delivering the
requirements needed for the market

to successfully openin April 2017,
including market design, codes, central

systems and contracts to enable the full

non-domestic businessretail market
to function.

Over the year under review, Bristol
Water has been undertaking various
activities to support our readiness for
the new market. We've worked closely
with the central programme teams
and stakeholders to deliver various
obligations and allow us to operate
successfully in the market. A number
of technical, legal, process and cultural
challenges have been overcome
toallow a successful transition to
market opening and given the level of
complexity involved, the progress and
results shown over thelast year have
beenavery significant achievement.
Inaddition, we have engaged with
third parties to provide the necessary
assurances to the Bristol Water Board
that we were ready for market opening
which in turn were shared with MOSL

Remuneration Committee

Financial statements

(Market Operator Services Limited) and
Ofwat aspart of our market readiness
preparation.

We have now delivered a successful
programme of change and are
interacting with variousretailersin the
UK which are providing water services
to customersin our supply area. Our
new Wholesale Services team are
engaging with these new retailers and
also supporting all of the necessary
interactions with the market operator.

Early stages of the new market have
been successful and we look forward
to seeing how the market progresses
and playing our partin a successful
marketplace.

‘Climate changeis
expected to bring greater
variability in the weather
with droughts and wet
weather becoming more
frequent and severe”
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Aim Outcome Performance Measure/KPI Units 2016/17 Target | 2016/17 | 2015/16

Percentage customers in water

poverty % 20 09 04
Affordable bills
{’aerrigfigltage of customers on social % 16 20 17
® Ofwat measurement of customer
Responsiveto service (SIM)® Score/100 85° 859 851
customers isfi
SELEC GUBIRIT S General satisfaction survey* % 93 86 83
Value for money rating® % 71 72 70
Easy to contact Ease of contact from surveys % 964 944 950
Billsare accurate and ) -~ 5
Negative billing contacts No. 2480 3096 2,301
easy tounderstand
Q Safe drinking water =~ DWIstandards Mean Zonal Compliance % 9996 SISy 9985}
Excellentquality . isgoodtodrink Negative water quality contacts No. 2409 2162 2,329
Unplanned customer minutes lost UTEIED R ES 131 131 155
customer
o Improving/
Asset reliabilit )
e (below groungassets) stable/marginal/ Stable Stable Stable
deteriorating
@ o Improving/
Highly reliable é?)Ss\Zelﬁgrli(tjyasse ts) stable/marginal/ Stable Stable Stable
g deteriorating
. Population at risk from asset )
Resilient supply failure due to an extreme event’ Population 288,589 288589 288589
Security of supply index No. 100 100 100
Sufficient supply ) Return period
Hosepipe ban frequency (1in X years) 15 15 15
Efficient use of Leakage Ml/day 470 4648 442
resources by the
Company Pumping efficiency % 570 585 564
Efficient use of water Per Capita consumption litre/head/day 1445 1441 1411
g by customers Domestic meter penetration® % 548 496 473
&/ Total carbon emissions Uorsties Loz 250 318 353
Environmentally Kg/person
sustainable Improving/
Sustainable Raw water quality of sources'® stable/marginal/ Deteriorating
environmental deteriorating
Impact Improving/
Biodiversity Index stable/marginal/ Improving
deteriorating
Environmental Discharge Compliance % 100 958 961
) ) No. of accidents reportable to Health )
Safe working practices and Safety Executive (‘HSE)™ No. Nil 1 1
% of respondents NOEIRIES
Best people, Wholike their Tem-
rightculture  Skilled and Temperature checks, Voluntary 'obOReaesor?s for Maintain high  perature Nosurve
motivated workforce turnover, Business Performance Job. b . level checks Y
leaving, Hitting
targets VTGS
’ taken.
0 Investor confidence Creditrating Moody'srating  Baal Baal Baal
/_ Fairreturn to : 9 i
Sustainable investors Return on Regulated Equity (RORE) % 58 459 41
business
Highly reputable Stakeholder survey % 53 54 55
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Current performance

We set tough targets in order to improve our service and continually measure
our performance. We have met some of these tough targets and overall the
standards we have achieved this year have been high, asreflected in the most
important of all indicators - the qualitative element of the SIM.

The following pages describe these measures and our performance against targets.

Customers whose water bill represents >2% of
their disposable income, based on population
analysis of our billing database.
% billed households on our Assist or WaterSure+
tariffs. From April 2016 we also introduced a
new social tariff for customers who receive
Pension Credits.
Our SIM target in the Ofwat determination
for AMP6istop5intheindustry,and 85is
our current estimate of the scorerequired to
achieveatop 5ranking*
Based upon theresults of our annual survey of
1000 household customers selected at random
from the total customer base, who were asked
how they rate our service.
Based upon theresults of our monthly SIM
surveys of a sample of approx. 800 customers
who have contacted usin the year, who were
asked torate usin terms of value for money.
Based upon a subset of the unwanted billing
contactsreported for SIM purposes by our
billing Company BWBSL.
Thismeasureis intended to measure the impact
of the Southern Resilience Scheme, which is
due for completion in 2018. The populations
reported are consistent with those atrisk at the
time of the PR14 price review, and do not reflect
growthin population in affected areas
Leakage Reporting 2016/17
a.Aspart of our ongoing improvement process
for datareporting during 2016/17 we reviewed
the key assumptionsused in calculating
our ODImeasures. This process included a
thoroughreview of our leakage calculation.
Leakageisacomplex measurement, which
involves analysis of the amount of water
we supply into the network, the amount
thatisrecorded through customer meters,
and assumptions on the level of usage by
customers who don'thave ameter fitted. The
amount of water which we can'taccount for as
customer consumptionisreported asleakage.
b.Ourreview of the assumptions in our leakage
calculationidentified that the assumption
for one component, non-household night
use’ (NHHNU) waslast updated in 2007. Asa
result, we carried out an updated assessment
of thisfigure in 2017.
.Thisupdated assessment showed that
the current NHHNU figureis 22.6 litres per
connection per hour (I/c/h),anincrease of 5.1
1/c/h on the previous assumption of 17.51/c/h.
The updated assumptions are based on 1,001
night use sample data with older sample data
removed. The new sample data represents 3%
of the NHH accounts and the night use model
isfully compliant with the UKWIR guidance
andis thereforereliable.
d. Applying the updated assumption to our
leakage calculation resultsin a figure of

[e]

44 9 Ml/d and represents our best view of
leakage in 2016/17.Not applying the updated
assumption would resultin afigure of 47.4
Ml/d, a difference of 2.5 Ml/d.

e.Our assurancereview of this figure identified

that applying this updated assumption to the
calculation of performance may cause the
reported figure tobe seen to not be directly
comparable with the assumptions on which
the targets for this ODI were set at PR14.

f. The targets for our leakage ODI were proposed
in our PR14 business plan of December 2013.
These targets werebased onachievinga
6Ml/d 12%) improvement in leakage starting
from the target for 2014/15, which had been set
as partof the 2009 Price Review and Water
Resources Management Plan. It isimportant
tonote that the targets proposed at PR14 were
not directly based on actual performance
levelsachievedin the period preceding the
submission.

g.Inorder to attempt to provide consistency

between the figure reported for 2016/17 and
thebasis of the ODI target, we have estimated
the annual effect of the movement between
the previous and updated assumptions for
NHHNU. We have assumed that the 511/c/h
increasefrom175to0 22.61/c/h occurred ona
linear basisbetween 2007 and 2017,and that
six years of that 10-year effect would have
occurred by the point at which PR14 targets
were setin 2013. Torecognise this,and inan
attempt tobe seen to be consistent between
our reported leakage and the PR14 target, our
leakage figure for 2016/17 reflects the effect of
addingback 6/10ths of the effect of the change
inthe NHHNU assumption to the leakage
figure as set out in the table below:

Before updated NHHNU

assumption 474M1/d
Effect of updated NHHNU

assumption 25Ml/d
After updated NHHNU

assumptions 449M1/d
Effect of adding back 6/10ths of

updated NHHNU assumption +1L5Ml/d
Reported figure for 2016/17 464 Ml/d

h.Itisimportant to note that no financial
reward or penalty would be applicable
within the financial year by either applying
the assumptions in full or our proposed
adjustment to our reported leakage figure for
2016/17. The incentive mechanism for this
ODlisbased onan average of performance
over five years. Therefore there may be

implications for the incentive calculation
when leakageisreviewed over the price
control period, depending on the level of
outturn performance in future years.

i. We have not proposed to restate our reported
15/16 performance, however, we note that
retrospectively applying the updated
assumptions would result in an improvement
in performance for that year.

j. The value of reported leakage also impacts
another of our outcome performance
measures, Per Capita Consumption (PCC).
Ahigher leakage number resultsin alower
amount of water assumed to be consumed by
customers. We have applied the adjustments
detailed above to thereported leakage figure
resultsin our reported PCC for 2016/17 of 144.1
litres/head/day. If the +1.5 Ml/d adjustment was
notapplied this would result in calculated PCC
of1451/h/d, slightly above the target level of
144.51/h/d. No financial incentive is applicable
to this ODI, however, wereportit to customers
and stakeholders as areputational incentive
measure.

9 Webelieve thelower domestic meter
penetrationisattributable toachangein
metering policy and reduction in meter optants
duetoreducedbills.

10 The definition of deterioratingisbased on
comparingfive-year average data. Deteriorating
raw water can be caused by nutrientsand
sediment entering water sources. We are
working with a wide range of stakeholders to
improve the quality of raw water going into our
treatment processes.

11 Areportable HSE accident indicates staff have
taken more than seven days sickness absence
or sustained a broken bone due to a work-related
injury.

12 The RORE shown of 4.59% is the average for
2016/17 and 2015/16. Clarification from Ofwat
identified that the methodology should include
preference shares in the calculation of the
difference between the actual interest charge
and the allowed interest. Applying thisupdate,
last year's RORE reduced to 3.94% from the
figure of 4.15% reported last year and included in
the table on page 22.

* 2016/17 SIM score subsequently confirmed as
joint 6th
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Responsive to customers
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We set out to provide outstanding water services
inasustainable and affordable way to meet and
exceed our customers expectations.

Affordable bills

We have anumber of schemesin place
tomake sure we help customers who
find it hard to pay their water charges.
We monitor the percentage of our
household customers that we classify as
experiencing ‘water poverty’ (those who
spend more than 2% of their netincome
on paying their water charges) and offer
advice, assistance schemes and capped
tariffs, known as ‘social tariffs.

We have a total of four schemesin

place with 14,370 customersreceiving
assistance through these measures,
anincrease of 23% over last year. At the
moment, 1,535 households are currently
benefitting from our Restart scheme

to clear their debt combined with our
Assist tariff, which reducesbills to an
affordable level and helps customers
who are in financial difficulty to get back
on track with their water bill.

2,160 households are on our WaterSure
Plus metered tariff: thisis for customers
inreceipt of certain benefits and

are defined by the government as
‘vulnerable’ either because they havea
medical condition or alarge family.

We are amongst the first in the industry
to introduce a Pension Credit social tariff
scheme that gives a 20% discount on
water bills to Bristol Water customers
who live in a household where all
members over theage of 18 are in
receipt of Pension Credit. One year from
launching this we have 1,328 customers
benefiting from this tariff.

Elderly and disabled customers,

those undergoing home dialysis or who
have priority needs can also register for
Customer Care Plus, which gives access
toarange of special services free

of charge.

We know that water debt is seldom
isolated and we work to provide
independent debt advice, working
closely with the agencies that provide
these services.In 2016/17, we donated
£75,000 to debt advice agencies across
our supply area to support themin
providing free advice to our customers.
We also work closely with our partner
organisations to sponsor and attend
debt and affordability eventsin our
region. In 2016/17, we attended seven
such events including Blue Monday
and the South Bristol affordability event
as well as hosting a workshop for our
partnersin the debt management and
support sector.

Satisfied customers

Over thelast year we have worked ona
widerange of projects and implemented
anumber of improvements to make
positive changes to our customers’
overall experience. These initiatives
have included areview of a number

of the key customer journeys as well
asmore qualitative research and
understanding of our comparative
performance. To aid our understanding,
we haverecently completed the
Institute of Customer Service business
benchmarking survey for the first time.
Our customers scored us 83.6 out of

Remuneration Committee

Financial statements

100. We are very proud that our scoreis
higher than both the utility and national
averages.

We use the following five indicators
toassess whether our customers are
satisfied with the service we provide:

- Ofwat’s Service Incentive Mechanism
(SIM), measuring the household
customer experience

» Customers’ assessment of whether we
provide value for money, measured
through our monthly consumer
experience surveys

» Customers’ assessment of how easy
we are to contact, measured through
our monthly consumer experience
surveys

» The volume of unwanted billing
contacts wereceive

« Customer satisfaction, measured
through our annual tracking survey of
household consumers.

Ofwat uses the SIM to compare the
performance of the water industry in
England and Wales inrespect of the
serviceit providesto customers. The
SIM comprises a composite quantitative
measure relating to the number of
callsreceived because something has
gone wrong - it captures the number
of written complaints and escalated
written complaints, and a qualitative
measure in the form of a customer
satisfaction survey.

Our SIM scorein 2016/17is 85.9,an
increase of 0.8 on the 2015/16 result.
In terms of the qualitative ranking
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we are joint 4th, this measurement
makes up 75% of the SIM score. Our
relative performance on the quantitate
element is not yet known until other
companies publish their results, these
will be available in July 2017. Following
publication of 2015/16 results, we were
ranked 5th.

Our focus this year has been built
around the need to quickly resolve

all enquiriesin order to improve the
SIM survey and improve the speed in
which customersreceive aresponse.
Projects which have supported this
have included improvements to

the customer journeys across new
supplies and metering. We have
scrutinised all elements of the journey
and in particular made a number of
positive changes with our third-party
contractor, Kier, to ensure a consistent
serviceisreceived at all stages. We
have also introduced ‘daily huddles’
with Kier, Network Managers and
Customer Service representation to
discuss all complaints and any known
operationalissues that may impact on
customers that day. Whilst we have
seen asignificant increase in written
complaints, a contributing factor to
thisis that we havereviewed and
amended which enquiries are logged
as complaints. Our overall customer
satisfaction hasimproved as customer
contact isbeingresolved quicker.
Whilst we have seen the complaint
numbers in SIM increase, at the same
time unwanted calls have decreased
and our performance in the survey
hasimproved. Email usageisalso
continuing toincrease; to help ensure
we are available to our customers on
amedium they wish touse we are
looking to introduce a live chat channel
and real-time feedback to help reduce
complaintsinthe coming year.

We survey customers every month
using the same independent research
agency that Ofwat uses to get feedback.
This allows us to obtain a consumer
rating of the value for money we
provide. In 2016/17,78.9% of consumers
inthese surveysrated our service as

Directors
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SIM Score

87 —
86 -
85 —
84 -
83 —
82 —
81 —
80

79

2014/2015

providing good value for money -
again aslight positive increase from
78% last year.

We have continued working with

a second independent consumer
research agency on our annual
tracking survey of 1,000 household
consumers. These consumers are
selected at random from across our
supply region to find out how they
rate our service. Thisis very different
from our other measures as most of
the customers surveyed will not have
had direct contact with us apart from
receiving their annual bill as well as
their perception of us from external
sources.

In March 2017, 86% of respondents rated
our service as excellent, very good or
good, compared to 83% the year before
and 69% in 2015. These increases and
the high level of customer satisfaction
isvery encouraging - however, it is still
less than our target of 93%. The survey
showed us that we had continued to
improve our customer satisfaction on
arange of attributes including value
for money, comparison to other utility
providers and our efforts with water
efficiency.

2015/2016

2016/2017

We have continued to supplement
these surveys with additional feedback
and insight including our online
customer panel, Let us know. We have
now had four surveys covering arange
of topics and the feedback from these
helps to inform our knowledge and
insight about what is important to our
customers. We currently have over
1,000 active members. All of the results
are available on our website.

We also continue to use feedback cards;
every customer will receive a feedback
card if we have worked near their
home. Wereceive around 100 returned
cards a month; customers can either
postthem in or fillin the survey online.

For our more specialist technical
customers, the Development Services
team have introduced a robust
customer engagement strategy for
both developers and self lay providers.
Thisincludes a mixture of anonymous
surveys, direct outbound phone calls
andreal-time feedback. To supplement
these activities, in March the first
Market Engagement Day was held at
Ashton Gate to discuss key topicsin
more detail.
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Our water consistently achieves exceptionally
high compliance against some of the most
rigorous testing standards in the world.

Easy to contact

While we understand the importance
of providing arange of channels
through which customers can contact
us, telephoneis still the preferred and
primary method, soitisimportant
that we monitor the satisfaction of this
service.

In 2016/17,94.4% of consumers surveyed
considered that it was easy to contact
usby phone - this was almost stable
tothe previous year. Thismeasureis
calculated through eight surveys of

100 consumers. Towards the end of the
year we have seen higher satisfaction
scores as we have embedded the use

of SMS messagingin the contact centre.
Although customers do not have to wait
for ustoanswer the phone, the use of
SMS has allowed our team to be more
available to deal with other enquiries
when unplanned bursts are active.

The use of SMS to support customer
communications appears tobe
improving thismeasure. To score highly
inthismeasure, customers expect us
tohave quick and accurate information
SO we are working on improvements to
make information more easily available
to our employees so they can answer
questions consistently and correctly the
firsttime.

Bills are accurate and easy to
understand

Our customers want bills that are
accurate, clearly presented and easy
tounderstand. We monitor thisby
measuring a subset of the number of

‘unwanted billing contacts wereceive.
‘Unwanted’is the term used by Ofwat
inits quantitative SIM measures for
calls which the customer would
prefer not tomake, in the sense that
they are dissatisfied because they are
experiencing a problem or concern,
are makingarepeat or chase call, or
want to complain. The audits that took
place in 2016 have helped us torefine
our methodology of how contacts are
classified within this measure. Historic
results have not beenrestated so year-
on-year comparisons do not reflect
underlying trends.

The changesin classification have
increased our reported results to
3,0961n 2016/17, which is higher than
our target and represents 11.8% of all
unwanted calls across the business.
Meeting our target is now, therefore,
even more challenging but we are
responding by increasing our efforts to
embed further improvements to reduce
the unwanted contacts.

Safe drinking water

Our aimis to supply our customers with
clear water and comply with stringent
regulatory standards. We do thisthrough
our Drinking Water Safety Plan (DWSP)
approach, which helps us toreduce and
manage any risks to water quality:.

Our Water Quality team collects
samples 365 days a year from across our
2,400 square kilometre supply zone.
The sampling scheduleis aligned to

a sophisticated computer-controlled

Remuneration Committee
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programme so that water quality is
checkedright from source to customers’
taps. Thisis evidenced by our water
quality results that are measured on a
calendar basis by DWI Standards: Mean
Zonal Compliance (MZC).

During 2016 our random compliance
sampling at customers’ properties
identified four taste and two odour
failures associated with internal
plumbing deficiencies. Although these
failures were solely attributable to
customers’ plumbing issues, they had
the effect of reducing our MZC figure
from 99.99% down to 99.97%.

In 2016, none of the 3,609 compliance
samples taken at treatment works
was found to contain coliforms. This
equates to zero non-compliance.

Routine compliance samples for
bacteriological analysis are taken at
the outlet of each of our treated water
servicereservoirs every week. Out

of the 8,161 samples taken, only one
was found to contain coliforms. This
equates to a compliance of 99.99%.

During 2016, no DWI Enforcements
Orders were served associated with
bacteriological quality at treatment
WOTKS.
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Water is good to drink Negative water quality contacts
Itis vitally important that our water
not only meets stringent standards but 3000 — 2829
isalso good to drink. We measure our
performance by the number of negative 2500 —
contacts about the quality of water our
customer services department receives.

2000 —
Our Negative Water Quality Contacts
(NWQC) measure relates to the number 1500 —
of customer contacts wereceive each
calendar year about taste, odour and 1000 —
appearance. Itis consistent with our
reporting to the DWIin that it excludes
contacts associated with reportable
events.

500 —

Wereceived 2,162 NWQCs during 2016, 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
whichis positively much lower than our
ODItarget of 2,4009.

Asshowninthe chart, there hasbeen
areducing trend in the number of
contacts we havereceived over the

last few years. We have now seen

the benefit of our AMP5 trunk mains
relining/replacement programme and
the associated systematic flushing of
the distribution mains supplied from
these trunk mains. The renovation of
the trunk mains reduced the amount of
corrosion debris seeding our network
and the associated systematic flushing
programme hasremoved historic
corrosion debris. Consequently, we

are getting a cleaner network and a
much-reducedrisk of discoloured water
contacts when thereis any disturbance
to flows caused by burst mains.
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We must offer a reliable and resilient service to
our customers who depend on us to supply water
without restriction or interruption.

Reliable supply

Our performance for reliable supply is
assessed on the number of unplanned
minutes without supply each

property experiences, and on our
capacity toavoid a service failure of

our assets, both above ground (non-
infrastructure assets) and below ground
(infrastructure assets).

Thisis one of our key targetsbecause the
impact of supply interruptionsis most
keenly felt by our customers. Despite
thefact that wereceive high levels of
satisfaction and praise from customers
inhow wemanage bursts, we are highly
incentivised toreduce the time people
are without water and are focusing on
initiatives to improve this score.

For 2016/17 werecorded a total of 13.1
minuteslost per property, whichisinline
with our target. Despite a 35% increase

in the number of burst mains during

the period, compared with 2015/16, the
level of interruption to supply has been
managed through a high proportion of
live repairs and rezoning.

We have continued to deliver
performance, maintaining our asset
health measure of asset reliability as
stable for both above and below ground
asset groups.

Resilient supply

Aresilient supply means that we are
able to cope with extreme or unusual
events,and thisis measured by the
number of people at risk from the failure

of asingle source asset (in supply areas
of more than 25,000 consumers).

Improvingresilience was one of the
key outputs for the capital investment
programme of AMP5 and continues
tobeakey outputin AMP6. As part

of our AMP6 programme, we are
further reducing the number of
customers atrisk from 288,589 to
9,063by undertaking amajor scheme
to construct 30 kilometres of new
mains toreinforce and support our
southern supply area. Site works started
in September 2016 and pipe-laying
commenced in December 2016. By the
end of March 2017, 71 kilometres of pipe
had been installed representing 24% of
the total and the project is on schedule
to meet the deadline of 31 March 2018.

Thisisanimmensely complex and
challenging project with an extensive
stakeholder engagement programme
to ensure amongst other things,
thatenvironmental issues are being
addressed and impact to the local area
and customers is mitigated.

Sufficient supply

One of our customers' most important
requirementsisan unrestricted water
supply. Our performance of thisis
measured by our level of service on the
frequency of supply restrictions during
periods of water shortageshose and
Ofwat’s Security of Supply Index (SOSD).
SOSIis theratio of water available, plus
regulatory headroom, to the forecasted
dry weather water demand for the

Remuneration Committee
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outturn year. If a score of less than 100%
is calculated, this would indicate that
there could have been a higher risk of
water use restrictions for our customers
that year. We are pleased that for 2016/17
our SOSI value was100%, indicating
sufficient supply with norestrictions. It
hasbeen 26 years since we have had a
hosepipeban, and although in 2016/17,
wereceived just 59% of the long-term
average rainfall, our combined reservoir
storage had reached 94% by the end of
March 2017. This was due to effective
operational management by the
Company inresponse to dry weather
conditions.

“‘Although in 2016/17 we
received just 59% of
thelongterm average
rainfall, our combined
reservoir storage had
reached 94% by the end
of March 2017”
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In November 2016 our pop-up Bristol
Water Bar won the Environmental
Innovation of the Year at the Bristol
Post Environment Awards
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Environmentally sustainable
We take environmental responsibility seriously and make efficient use
of our resources to both assist customers in becoming water efficient
and minimise the environmental impact of our business operations.

A good example of our effortsin this
areaisour creation of the Bristol Water
Bar in 2016, a pop-up bar that gives
people free drinking water at events
and festivals across its supply area.

In May 2017, the Water Bar won the
Community Project of the Year and
Outstanding Innovation Awards at the
Water Industry Achievement Awards.
The Water Bar featured at three different
public events in 2016: Bristol Pride,
Redfest and the Bristol International
Balloon Fiesta. Over 16,000 people
refilled over the summer with nearly
12,000 plastic bottles saved from
going to landfill at the Balloon Fiesta
alone. At Redfest, it was one of the key
environmental features of the event.

EFFICIENT USE OF RESOURCES
BYTHE COMPANY

Leakage

There are multiple benefits to
managing leakage effectively
includingreducing therisk of having
toimpose water restrictionsif our area
experiences sustained periods of dry
weather, reducing our impact on the
environment by reducing the amount
of water we need to abstract,and
reducing disruption to customers when
makingrepairs. For AMP6, we have set
challengingleakage targets atalevel

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
Leakage - million litres of water per day (M1/d) 43 42 44
Target 51 50 49

where the overall value of the water
lostisbalanced against the costs of
increased leakage control activity.

Our continued outperformance
against these challenging targets,
despite higher burst levelsin 2016/17,
isdriven by our strong commitment
todrive leakage down, and we go

into thisin greater detail in our 'War

on waste'report on page 34. The
combination of targeted investmentin
our network, improved monitoring and
control, and our proactive approach
toleakage management and leakage
reduction initiatives, such as pressure
management, continues to see us
actively working to reduce leakage
levels further. See page 23 for more.

Pumping efficiency

In our ongoing efforts to reduce our
energy consumption, reduce costs and
improve efficiency, our pump units
over 40kW have improved efficiency
by 56.4% due to the installation and

use of new and more efficient pumping
machines. In addition, operational
pumping combinations and pump
speeds for the large raw water pumping
stations are now selected with regard to
optimum duty point whenever possible,
improving the overall efficiency of our
pumping system.
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16,000

More than 16000 thirsty
customers refilled their
bottles at our award-
winning pop-up Bristol
Water Bar

56.4%

In our ongoing efforts
toreduce our energy
consumption and
reduce costs, our pump
units over 40kW have
improved efficiency

by 56.4%

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
45 44 46
49 48 47
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4,000

In October 2016

we introduced an
extension to the change
of occupier metering
programme, resulting
in almost 4000 meters
being installed

[S@aN

EFFICIENT USE OF RESOURCES
BY CUSTOMERS

Metering

We encourage our customerstobe
more efficient in the way they use
water by increasing the number of
customers who are billed based on
their actual consumption of water. We
measure thisby meter penetration
expressed as a percentage of total
number of customers. We also provide
water-saving fittings and advice on
reducing water consumption to help
our customers save water.

Household meter penetration for
2016/17 is 49.6%, up from 47.3%in
2015/16. However, this is lower than
our target of 54.4%. We have seena
reduction of approximately 25% in the
level of meter optant requests, where
customersrequest the installation

of meters. We are continuing with

our selective household and non-
household metering programmes and
will continue to monitor our meter
penetration against our AMPG6 targets.

In October 2016 we introduced an
extension to the change of occupier
metering programme and increased
the number of surveyors. We target

all properties which are subject to
ownership changes. The programme
extension has resulted in almost 4,000
metersbeing installed under this
programme within 2016/17, which has
increased by 2,500 from the previous

period. A metering action plan hasnow

NS

been introduced with the aim to meet
the 2020 penetration target of 66% and
reduce the current deficit in meters to
beinstalled.

Average water consumption per
customer per day (per capita
consumption “PCC") for 2016/17 was
144 1litres per person per day which is
OA4litresbelow the target figure of 144.5
litres set at PR14. Both the unmeasured
PCC (+1.5%) and the measured PCC
(+4.2%) have shown an increase of
demand from 2015/16. This increase is
attributable to the dry weather during
the year, with nine of the 12 months
seeingbelow average rainfall, which
leads to customers using more water
for gardening.
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Our Purton solar photovoltaic
system has continued its successful
operation and in the past 12 months
has produced 1,218,381 kWh of
sustainable electricity
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SUSTAINABLE
ENVIRONMENTALIMPACT

Total carbon emissions

One key measure of our environmental
impactis our carbon emissions. We use
almost 81.4 million kilowatt hours of
electrical energy to treat and distribute
water. Thisaccounts for almost 90%

of our total carbon footprint. We can
play our partinreducing the carbon
emissions associated with energy

use by improved pumping efficiency;,
reducing leakage and helping our
customers use water more efficiently.
This, together with improved energy
efficiency of our buildings and vehicle
fleet, and development of renewable
energy sources, enables us to manage
those aspects of our carbon footprint
that we can control.

We take partin the Carbon Reduction
Commitment, a UK initiative for large
energy usersto cut their carbon
footprint. Our carbon footprint has
reduced over the year from 41,000
tonnes of CO2 equivalent to 38,000
tonnes of CO2 equivalent.

Thenew Southern Resilience Schemeis
one of our biggest engineering projects
and we will use gravity rather than
pumping to move water from Barrow

to Cheddar.

Our ongoing energy efficiency
programme continues to work on
improving management of water
sources and pumping. Water efficiency
measures and promotional activities
can help our customers save water and
reduce their water use by a total of over
1.5 million litres during the year.

Total annual quantity of emissions (in
tonnes of CO2 equivalent) resulting
from the combustion of fuel and the
operation of any facility where we
burndiesel or heating oil (direct scope 1
emissions) was 1,507 tonnes.

We use the Standard Water UK
calculation methodology to calculate
our carbon emissions shown above as

CSR  Directors

Corporate governance

anormalised “kg CO2 per Ml of water
into supply”. This measure has reduced
significantly since 2010 thanks to our
use of renewable energy, our energy
efficiency programmes and a national
reduction in the carbon emissions
associated with energy use, which
accounts for over 90% of our total
carbon footprint.

2010/11 435.0 kg/Ml
2011/12 422.5kg/Ml
2012/13 384.3kg/Ml
2013/14 384.1kg/Ml
2014/15 398.3kg/Ml
2015/16 375.3kg/Ml
2016/17 343.4kg/Ml
Renewable energy

Our Purton solar photovoltaic system
has continued its successful operation
and in thelast 12 months has produced
1,218,381 kWh of sustainable electricity,
used at our treatment works at Purton.
Thishasresulted in a carbon saving of
over half a million kilograms of CO2in
2016/2017.

Raw water quality of sources

The quality of our water sources,
particularly in the Mendip lakes, can
beimpacted by deterioration due to
nutrients and sediment that can enter the
watercourses from land and activitiesin
the catchment area of the source.

We have been working with local
landholders and farmers to identify
where theseissues can be addressed and
through our partnership programmes
with key stakeholders, such asthe
Mendip Lakes Partnership, we are able to
work together on these issues.

The partners involved include Natural
England, the Environment Agency,
Wessex Water, Avon Wildlife Trust,
Farming & Wildlife Advisory Group and
Catchment Sensitive Farming. We are
continuingto hold arange of successful
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farm engagement and training sessions
with landholders in the key catchment
areas.

Biodiversity Index (“BI”)

Protection and enhancement of our
natural environment isnow being
supported by our new Bl approach.
This approach looks to protect and
enhance the natural environment by
first measuring the value and benefit
of our own sites and then using the Bl
to quantify the impact of our actions
on the broader environment. This
calculation and method is a tool we are
still developing, but we are able to use
it to measure how we are performing
in terms of habitat protection and
enhancement.

This year we have been applying the
BIto the Southern Resilience Scheme.
The schemeis being scored before

and after works take place at sites from
Barrow down to Cheddar. Working
with our partners such as Avon Wildlife
Trust, local schools and landowners
we have proposals for the creation of
new habitats which will improve the
biodiversity and support wildlife across
awider stretch of our landscape.

Environmental discharge compliance
Thismeasureisassessed on a calendar
year basis and sorelates to 2016
performance. We monitor all of our
discharges which have been consented
by the Environment Agency. Over

95% of the samples we took were fully
compliant with the discharge consent
conditions. Of the failures recorded over
half of them were associated with the
various discharges at Barrow Treatment
Works. Our Solutions Engineering Team
isin the process of evaluating the most
appropriate means to address the issues
leading to these failures.
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War on waste

Our proactive and innovative approach
toleakageis continuingtohavea

positive impact on our performance and
maintaining our statusin the industry top
five for this key regulatory target. This year
wehave achieved 46.4 megallitres per day,
below our target of 47ml/d for 2016/17.See
page 23 for more information.

Thismeasure is the amount of water that
entersthe distribution system but isnot
delivered to customersbecauseitislost
from either the Company’s or customers’
pipes. For 2016/17 leakage levels were
maintained marginally below the control
curve throughout the spring and summer,
but started torisein the late autumn. Cold
spells atthe end of November and in
January resulted in higher than desired
leakage levels and during this period the
Severe Weather Task Force was deployed
to deal effectively with the excess leakage.
Additional leakage detection resources
were deployed during January toMarch
2017 toreduce leakage levelsback to the
control level.

Thelast two AMPs have seen the greatest
improvementin leakage performance and
thisislargely due to the mainsand surface
replacement programmes carried out, our
pressure control implementation project
and a more proactive approach towards
leak detection, including using some
innovative technology and methods. In the
last year we have replaced 12 kilometres of
the distribution mains network that was
inpoor condition and repaired around
4500 leaks on our system, including 1,034
burst water mains. In addition to the leaks
repaired on our network, we also identified
inexcess of 1,600 leaks on private customer
service pipes, providing free or subsidised
repair of these private leaks inmore thana
quarter of cases.

Leakage detection
The Bristol Water area of supply is divided
into District Meter Areas (DMASs)and each

areaisremotely monitored using a variety
of telemetry and logger solutions, so that
network flow and pressure data isavailable
on adaily basis. This enables Inspectors
tohoneinonsuspected leaks andisolate
them so fewer properties are affected.

Our team of 25 Leakage Inspectors have
arange of skillsand equipment at their
disposal. They select the appropriate
method of leak location depending on
the situation, but the techniques that

are predominantly used are isolations
(splitting the DMAs into smaller network
elements when leakage is suspected),
leak noise sounding using listening sticks,
and leak pinpointing using analogue and
digital correlators.

For thisreporting year 98.2% of all
properties are under continual night flow
monitoring in 397 DMAs. On average
approximately 336 (92%) days of valid
night flow data was obtained for these
areasand used to determine average night
flow levels, which enables us to pick up
any anomalies early. While active leakage
controlisindustry standard, we are helping
develop advanced network management
through a five-year collaboration with
Imperial College London and Cla-Val. The
Dynamic Meter Area project isbeing tested
in Bristol and is enabling us to monitor and
meet water demand across the city by
usingadvanced pressure, flow monitoring
and leakage management.

We are continually exploring new ways
of improving on current practices and
provide step changes in leakage control,
including the use of satellite imaging
toassist in detecting leaks. A vast
programme of pressure management
was implemented under the previous
AMP programme, startingin 2008/09.
This scheme involved the investigation,
implementation and commissioning

of new control valves aimingtoreduce
background leakage and burst rates.
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The outcome of this project resulted
in72new schemesbeingintroduced,
with additional pressure optimisation
of existing schemes. Anew phase of a
programme of pressure management
and control has now commenced, and
aconsultation started in February 2017
with the investigation of approximately
50 schemes for implementation of

new pressure management areas.
Implementing the most beneficial 1520
schemesin 2017/18 will increase the
coverage of pressure management to
almost 65% of the properties in the Bristol
Water supply area.

In addition, existing systems are further
optimised with ancillary controls systems
and pressure management technology
(electronic and hydraulic flow modulation
of the pressure control valve), as well
asanumber of advanced pressure
management systems being trialled this
year.In order to maintain the leakage
savings and burst reduction achieved
through pressure control, an active
programme of control valve maintenance
is ongoing with valves undergoing
periodic scheduled maintenance.

Havingachieved so much in the last two
AMPs our targets are now set to help us
achieve amore gradual and sustainable
dropinleakagelevels. Thisis essential in
order for us to deliver an economically
viable leakage management programme
tobenefit the business, our customers
and the environment. To support the
‘War on waste, a Leakage Action Plan

was introduced in October 2016. This
multifaceted action plan covers anumber
of key areas to reduce the overall run-
time of leaks, and targets specifically

the awareness, location and repair time
elements of the overall run-time. A key
element of this Leakage Action Planis the
assessment of the Sustainable Economic
Level of Leakage, a project undertaken by
an external consultant.
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In the last year we have replaced
12 kilometres of distribution
mains network
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Employing the very best people and fostering
the right culture within our businessis key to our

continued success.

ATTRACTING AND RETAINING
THEBEST PEOPLE

Resourcing

We have established a Resourcing
Delivery Team which has enabled
Bristol Water to have the "right people,
intheright place, with theright
experience, at theright time" Dedicated
to developing aresource strategy that
fits the needs of the business, securing
our future, the team are focusing on
time, cost and quality within the hire
process. The Resourcing Delivery Team
are also working hard to ensure that
Bristol Water is seen as an ‘employer

of choice’, continuing to develop our
employer brand within the external
marketplace.

With the advancements of our I'T
capabilities, the team have redeveloped
the careers microsite alongside a new
Applicant Tracking System (ATS),
mirroring our employer brand, focusing
onthe candidate experience toretain
that strong brand presence and attract
thebest talent.

Training

Our workforce must be skilled to deliver
the outstanding customer service we
expect and meet the new challenges
we face asan industry. Talented people
are the foundation of our success and
we do all we can to care for our staff, to
motivate them and develop their many
and varied skills. The new operating
model has focused attention on
multiskilling and developing our staff

to take on new roles and also provided
an opportunity to attract new talent
externally.

We have established a dedicated
function within the People, Health

and Safety directorate to focus on
delivering a comprehensive learning
and development strategy. This will
ensure that all of our people are trained
to therequired standards and also have
personal development opportunities.
We are improving our training records
toreflectand track all required training
and developing training matrices to
ensure that people are safe and trained
sufficiently for all required activities.

Development

Our appraisal process provides all
employees with an opportunity to agree
meaningful objectives for their work
andreview their performance and talk
about development needs at least twice
ayear. We also ensure that objectives
align to our corporate strategy. We also
use this process to identify and plan
training and development needs that
support people to competently deliver
their role and develop new skills. This
caninclude informal opportunities
such as secondments, work shadowing
and coaching, and also more formal
activities such as further education and
training.

Reward

We haverecently introduced the
Towers Watson (TW) Global Grading
System following a transition to our
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new operatingmodel. The TW system
enables us to benchmark our reward
proposals to ensure that our people
are fairly rewarded and that we remain
competitive in the marketplace,
attracting andretaining top talent.

Culture

In the past we have conducted
Employee Engagement Surveysto give
everyone an opportunity to provide
feedback on how they feel about
working for Bristol Water. The survey
was not possible last year due to the
ongoing Company restructure, so we
conductedregular “‘temperature checks”
with our employees: short surveys on
specific activities within the Company.
This gives us valuable insights into how
our employees are feeling and where we
canmake improvements.

The Company systematically provides
employees with information on matters
of concern to them, consulting them or
their union representatives regularly,

so that their views can be taken into
account when making decisions that are
likely to affect their interests.

Asaninclusive employer, we promote
equality and inclusion throughout

our people policies, procedures

and practices. We are committed to
employment policies which follow
best practice as set out by Acasand
based on equal opportunities for all
employees. The Company gives full
and fair consideration to applications
for employment from disabled persons,
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33%

During 2016/17 we have
seen a 33% reduction

In the number of staff
accidents

havingregard to their particular
aptitudes and abilities. Appropriate
arrangements are made for the
continued employment and training,
career development and promotion
of disabled employees. If members of
staff become disabled the Company
continues employment, either in the
same or an alternative position, with
appropriate retraining being given,
ifnecessary.

Safe working practices

The health and safety of our employees,
contractors and members of the public
remains of paramount importance.

We continually invest in our people
ensuring that they have the right skills,
knowledge and training to work safely
ensuring their own safety and that

of others. We work closely with our
contract partners striving to ensure

we all have the same vision and are
workingto achieve the same health and
safety goals.

Allindividuals who work for us, directly
or indirectly, undergo health and safety
induction training. This knowledgeis
supported by a Code of Conduct booklet
which sets out the positive health and
safety behaviours that we expect.
Regular health and safety committee
meetings are animportant avenue for
consulting with representatives from
across the business, whererisks and
issues arereviewed and appropriate
actionsagreed.

We have increased our focus and

internal communication on hazard
reporting and hazard elimination
toidentify potential hazards before
they becomerealised. This targeted
approach has seen a positive impact
on our accident performance numbers
with a significant overall reduction
beingrealised. Our continued aimis to
reducereportable accidents to the HSE
toaminimum, which means applying
a continuousimprovement process
across the whole company so thereis
total commitment from all employees
and contractors.

Whilst thereis no way to totally
eliminate risk, Bristol Water is a safe
place to work. During 2016/17 we have
seen a 33% reduction in the number
of staff accidents, during this time

we have also seen animprovement
inminimising contractor injuries.
Reductionin accident numbers
continues tobe an area of focus
toensure that overall trends are
improving and best practice is
implemented.In 2016/17, one accident
wasreportable under the RIDDOR
regulations to the HSE; this was an over-
seven-day injury.
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We need to spend customers and investors' money
efficiently and wisely to retain investor confidence,
maintain returns in line with the expectations of the
financial markets, deliver improved services and

keep water bills affordable.

In 2014/15 we launched Project
Channel, abusiness efficiency
improvement programme designed

to adapt Bristol Water to AMP6

requirements and opportunities, which

included working under TOTEX (Total

Expenditure - operating costs and

capital costs) and outcomes as well as

the delivery of enduring efficiencies

to meet the demands of the modern

water sector. As part of this programme,

during 2016/17 we have:

« Finished the internal reorganisation
to help the Company be aleaner and
more balanced organisation as well as
develop new capabilities, improving
morale and staff engagement

» Delivered significant initiatives such
asthenewrisk process within Asset
Management and the continuous
improvement pilots as part of Ways of
Working.

» Achieved additional savings ahead
of the annual target; two areas where
savings have been achieved are
energy and transport.

We are committed to ensuring we

are always operating at our best, we

actively seek to foster a culture of

continuous improvement to:

» Support the efficient delivery of water
servicesto our customers

« Empower our people to contribute to
the success of our Company.

During 2016/17, our Business
Improvement team launched a series of
initiatives across our New Mains, New
Supplies, Water Quality, Standpipes

and Transport teams to embed process
optimisation tools, techniques and
expertise.

Tosupport these initiatives, we

trained and accredited 42 staff in Lean
Competency System fundamentals (@
process optimisation approach originally
developed at the Lean Enterprise
Research Centre at Cardiff University).

Theinitiatives are ongoing and target

arange of benefits of our customers,

stakeholders and investors. Some

examples of the improvements we are

making will:

» Improve our first-time resolution for
customer enquiries

» Improve the usability of our website

« Reduce the manual effort associated
with some of our processes

« Increase the skill set of our staff

« Reducebacklogs in cash flow

- Simplify how we pay our suppliers.

Investor confidence

We use effective financial management
and open communication to maintain
investor confidence in order that

we can secure funds to invest in the
business to deliver our long-term
strategy. We have maintained better
than the minimum investment grade
ratingrequired under our licence. Our
rating with Moody'sis Baal.

Fair returntoinvestors
Tobeasustainable business, itisimportant
thatreturnsare fair and sufficient toattract
investorstofund the investment required.
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“We were consistently
praised throughout the
interviews for being
reliable and easy to
contact, providing high-
quality services and
dependable at all levels”
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Our return onregulated equity (RORE)
was 5.25% in 2016/17, an improvement
from 2015/16's comparable RORE of
3.94%, but slightly lower than the 5.8%
assumed in our Final Determination
which included significant challenges.
The improvement mainly relates to
two areas. The first arises from £1m
lower ODI penalties at £0.2m earned
during the year, the only penalty being
inrespect of meter penetration. The
second was a £1.2m closing of the gap
between the actual interest on debt (in
real terms) and that allowed in the Final
Determination.

Highly reputable

In order to obtain the views of other
stakeholders we annually survey a
randomly selected group of people
including Regulators, MPs, other utility
companies, businesses and a range of
partner organisationsincludinglocal
and regional government. We have
carried out in-depth interviews with

a sample of key stakeholders, who

are asked their views on how well we
performin a number of key areas. Due
to the changes in the Non-Household
Retail Market survey respondents will
change accordingly next year.

In 2016/17 we conducted 34 in-depth
interviewsbut in addition we have
carried out a more robust online survey,
thisreceived 384 responses, up from
271responses in 2015/16. Of 418 total
respondents, 86% rated the services we
provide as excellent, very good or good,
up from 83% in 2016.
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Wealsoasked stakeholders view

onour reputation with 66% citinga
positive response, up slightly from 64%
in2016.75% alsorated the quality of our
communication as excellent, very good or
good,an increase of 7% on 2015/16's survey.

Stakeholders also expressed widespread
satisfaction with the quality of the water
provided, and thereliability of supply -
and they emphasised theimportance of
focusing on delivering this essential task
aswellas engaging with our customers
through all elements of the Company.

Thein-depth interviews provided
overwhelmingly positive, detailed
feedback on the Company’s performance
andreputation over thelast year.
Encouragingly, Bristol Water was highly
regarded by virtually all of the in-depth
interview respondents, who were selected
because of their status as key influential
stakeholders who had regular and current
contact with thebusiness. There were
asmallnumber of stakeholders, where
our relationships have been historically
more challenging and, despite significant
progress, we need to continue tobuild
more positive interactions. Equally a
number of stakeholders commented that
the culture of Bristol Water was changing,
there were continuing improvementsin
communicationsand asa Company we
remain helpful and ‘easy to deal with'

We were consistently praised throughout
the interviews for beingreliable and easy
to contact, providing high-quality services
and dependable at all levels.

Remuneration Committee
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86%

of stakeholders rated
the services we provide
as excellent, very good
or good

75%

of stakeholders rated
the quality of our
communication as
excellent, very good
or good
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2017 2016

£m £m
Turnover 111.0 1109
EBITDA 50.8 55.3
Operating profit 31.3 361
Profit before tax 20.9 278
Profit after tax 20.0 28.6
Net debt (excluding 8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference shares) at 31 March 295.6 290.8
Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) 470.7 4412
Ratio of net debt (excluding 8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference shares) toRCV 63% 66%
Capital investment before grants and contributions 38.8 301

Turnover of £111.0m is consistent with
the previous year.

EBITDA fell by £4. 5mreflecting higher
costs. Of this, £3.0mrelatesto the
curtailment gain on the closure of the
defined benefit scheme in 2015/16.
Adjusting for this one-off effect, our
costsincreased by £1.5mreflecting
inflationary increases, an increase in
electricity costs and higher operational
costs due to significant bursts offset
by cost savings achieved through our
efficiency programme. A risk-based,
proactive analysis of need, solution
options and timing of expenditure
hasbeenintroduced thathasledtoa
significant reduction in network and

production costs as well as cost savings
in central management costs.

Operating profit decreased by £4.8m
reflecting the £4.5m decrease in EBITDA
and a £0.3mloss on disposal of assets.

Profit after tax decreased by £8.6m

to £20.0m, thereduction isdriven by
higher interest costs of £2.1m (due to
higher indexation charges) and an
increaseintotal tax of £1.7m. For the
current year, thereis an overall tax
charge of £0.9m compared to an overall
tax credit of (£0.8m) last year. During
the year, future corporation tax rates
fell from 18% to 17% which gaverisetoa
£3.3m credit to deferred tax. The overall

effective tax rate was 4% (2015/16:-3%).
The principal reason for the effective
tax ratebeinglower than the standard
corporation tax rate of 20% (2015/16:
20%)is the effect of the rate change
onthe opening deferred tax balances
duringthe year.

Our tax strategy, which was approved by
theboard, is published on our website.

Netdebt

Themain cash sources we use to
finance our normal operations and
the extensive capital programme are
the water bills paid by our customers
and debt from financial markets and
institutions.
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Net debt excluding the 8.75%
irredeemable cumulative preference
shares was £295.6m (2015/16:
£290.8m), representing approximately
63% (2015/16: 66%) of the RCV of
£470.7m (2015/16: £441.2m). The
increasein RCV reflects an increase
due to indexation of £13.9m and net
additions to RCV during the period of
£15.6m.

We actively manage the net debt
(gearing) ratio and maintain a headroom
margin to meet adverse impacts from
risks and uncertainties.

Our practiceis to maintain a debt
portfolio with mainly long-dated
maturitiesreflecting the long-term
nature of the Company’s asset base.

Cash, including deposits with banks,
was £16.1m (2015/16: £18.0m), the
significant cashflows during the year
were:

« cashinflow of £49.9m from operations,

« cash outflow of £35.7m for capital
expenditure,

« cashinflow of £3.8m for contributions
received,

» repayment of £0.3m debt and issue
expenses £0.3m,

« baselevel dividend of £6.0m, which
includes payments made in advance
of the opening of the non-household
retail market due to structural changes
in working capital requirements
betweenretail and wholesale
businesses,

« inter-Company loan interest related

dividend of £3.2m,

- netinterest payments of £8.8m,
including £1.1m preference share
dividend payments,and

» corporation tax payment of £1.4m.

Dividends

Itis our practice to pay an annual level of

ordinary dividends comprising:

» abaselevel taking into consideration
therevenues allowed by Ofwat in the
five-year determination of price limits,
the Company’s funding requirements
and the actual performance of the
business;and

» anamount equal to the post-tax
interest receivable from Bristol Water
Holdings UK Limited, a UK parent
Company, inrespect of inter-Company
loans.

Totalbase level dividends and
dividends in respect of the inter-
Company loans paid during the year
were £6.0m (2015/16 nil) and £3.2m
(2015/16: £3.2m) respectively. Base level
dividends included a £4m payment
inadvance of the opening of the
non-household retail market in April
2017, due to the structural changesin
working capital requirements between
retail and wholesale businesses.

Inaddition, annual dividends of £1.1m
(2015/16: £11m) continued to be paid on
theirredeemable preference shares.
Theirredeemable preference shares

are shown as debt in the balance sheet,
and the dividend is therefore shownasa
finance cost in the income statement.

Pensions

Pension arrangements for employees
were historically provided partly
through our membership in the Water
Companies Pension Scheme (“WCPS”),
which provides defined benefits based
on final pensionable pay. We have a
separate section within WCPS for the
regulated water business; the section
was closed to new employees some
years ago.

In March 2016, the Company closed

its two sections of the WCPS to future
accrual for existing members. The two
sections are part of a defined benefit
scheme and members of this scheme
became deferred members on closure.
Employees who were part of the
schemesreceived one year's future
accrual, covering the current financial
year. Since that closure, all employees
are offered membership in a stakeholder
pension scheme.

The latest triennial valuation of the
pension scheme was completed as at

31 March 2014. The total deficit as at 31
March 2014 measured on a long-term
scheme fundingbasis was £2.8m. This
represented a funding level of 98.4%.
Thenext triennial valuation will be at 31
March 2017 however, the draft results of
this valuation will not be received until
autumn 2017.

From1st April 2016, there are no
employer contributions to the scheme.
Subsequently, the Trustees agreed
that deficit contributions, previously of
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the construction of the
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on the 30 kilometres

of trunk mains from
Barrow treatment works
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£0.4m per annum, would cease on 30th
June 2016.

The actuarial valuation under

International Financial Reporting

Standard 19 IAS19) and therefore

FRSI101 at 31 March 2017 shows a net

pension surplus of £32.3m which

hasbeenrecognised in the financial
statements (2015/16: £31.9m). The
funding deficit of £2.8mand the
accounting surplus of £32.3mare not
comparable because:

- the funding deficitisbased ona
position at 31 March 2014 and the
accounting surplusisbased ona
position at 31 March 2017, and

« the approach for valuation of scheme
liabilities in the financial statements
isvery prescribed by accounting
standards.

The pension fund isin surplus under
[AS19. Asthe scheme hasbeen closed
tofuture accrual the surplus can

not berecovered through ongoing
contribution payments. Bristol Water
hasanunconditional right to the refund
of any surplus should one exist at the
termination of the scheme. Therefore,
the pension asset is shownnetof a

35% income tax rate which would be
applicableif the funds wererepaid to
Bristol Water from the pension scheme.

Further financial information in
relation to defined benefit and defined
contribution pension schemesis
disclosed innote 24 to the financial
statements.

Remuneration Committee

Financial statements

Capital programme

During the year, we invested £38.8m
(2015/16: £30.1m) in capital expenditure
before contributions. The capital spend
in 2016/17 was significantly higher than
the prior year reflecting the increase

in activity tomeet the AMP6 capital
programme; although significant
progress hasbeen made this year, we
plan for further increases in capital
expenditure as our key projects for
AMP6 move from planningto delivery.

Capitalinvestment during the year

included the following key projects:

« Construction of the Southern
Resilience Scheme which is our
biggest scheme for AMP6. Work has
started on the 30 kilometres of trunk
mains from Barrow treatment works
to Sandford and Cheddar to Banwell.

« Replacement of 11.2 kilometres of the
distribution mains network that was
inpoor condition

« Upgrading electro chlorination
processes at treatment works

« Meter replacements including smart
meter roll-out

« Development of I'T infrastructure for
Non Household Retail Separation

- Implementation of UV treatment at
Barrow

- Continuation of the National
Environment Programme
investigating the presence of invasive
species and the protection of eels.

In addition to the schemes listed above,
we have also started algae removal
investigations at Cheddar Treatment Works.
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Risk and uncertainty

Riskis aninevitable aspect of operating a business. Decisions that balance
risk exposure with intended financial rewards within risk tolerances are the
responsibility of our management under the supervision of the Board.

Risk management framework
Werecognise theimportance and
benefits of timely identification,
assessment and management of

risks that may impact our ability to
achieve our strategic objectives.In
thisrespect, we are committed to
prudent risk management practices
within the context of an Enterprise

Risk Management ("ERM") framework.
Ariskregisterismaintained and a
comprehensivereview isundertaken on
abiannual basis by the senior managers
group and the Board.

Our ERM framework isbased on

four core principles which establish

the culture and tone that guide

risk management decisions. Risk

managementis:

- Everyone'sresponsibility;

» About decision-making;

- Embedded within existing
management routines; and

» About people and culture.

Board
and ARAC

Internal audit

Our implementation of the ERM
framework includes the following
hierarchy of responsibilities:

« Board of Directors and Audit and Risk
Assurance Committee CARAC") have
overall governance responsibility

for overseeingmanagement’s
implementation of the risk
management policy.

Internal Audit is responsible for
reviewing management’s practices
tomanagerisk and reporting to the
ARAC.

Senior Management isresponsible
for the implementation of the ERM
framework to all applicable activities
andreportingtothe ARAC.

Business Units are responsible for
the application of arisk management
framework to identify, monitor and
reportrisk.

Risk Owners are responsible for

the identification and day-to-day
management and oversight of risks in
their assigned area.

Risk management processes
Thefollowing six key ERM processes
integraterisk management activities
with strategic and operational planning,
decision-making and day-to-day
oversight of business activities.

« Riskidentification is the process of
identifying and categorising risks that
could impact our objectives.

« Risk assessment is the process of
determining the likelihood and impact
of therisk. We use a five-pointrating
scale for likelihood and impact.

Remuneration Committee

Financial statements

« Risk prioritisation is the process of
rankingrisks and considering our
appetite to thoserisks based on the
Corporate Risk Appetite Statement.

» Risk managementresponsesare
measures taken to optimise our net
risk exposure within overall tolerance
toachieve the desired balance
betweenrisk and reward.

» Monitoring and reporting are
the processes of assessing the
effectiveness of risk management
responses.

« Training and support ensure
that personnel tasked with risk
management responsibilities have
sufficient knowledge and experience
to complete their risk management
obligations.

Our risk management approachis
comprehensive and proactive and
issupported by the experience and
specialised knowledge of the senior
management. We use arisk matrix to
regularly assess and update the net
exposure (including mitigating factors)
of each known material risk.

Werecognise that we operate within
acomplex regulatory environment
anditisnot economically viable to

fully mitigate all therisks that we

face. Therefore we prioritise our risk
management strategies by assigning the
risksinto threerisk categories as shown.
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The table below lists the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company at the date of thisreport and the mitigation that
we havein place to manage the impact of these risks upon the business. This list isnot exhaustive. Some risks have not been

included in this section on the basis they are not considered material.

Lower appetite risks, where we seek to fully mitigate risk in most circumstances and where innovation is encouraged, but not at

therisk of loss of performance:

Risk and description Impact

Water Quality, Health and Safety and
Environmental incident risks are
operational risks concerning failure of
our mitigations and controls to prevent
an accident, pollution or water quality
incident.

Incidents and accidents could have
harmful impacts on employees, the
communities that we serve or the
environment, leading to reputational
damage, penalties and remediation
costsresulting in lower netincome.

Major incidentrisk is an operational
risk associated with the significant
failure, or prolonged loss of use, of akey
operational asset or location.

Major incidents could impact our ability
to supply water for prolonged periods
and may have harmful impacts on the
environment and communities we
serve leading toreputational damage,
penalties and remediation costs
resulting in lower net income.

Regulatory submissions and
compliancerisks are strategic risks,
which cover price determinations and
our Water Resource Management Plan
(WRMP).

The price determinations periodically
made by Ofwat limit the prices the
Company can charge its customers.

WRMPs set out how we intend to meet
customers' water needs over the next 25
years, and are therefore closely linked
to subsequent price determination
submissions.

Monitoring and Mitigation

We minimise our incident and
accidentrate by following approved
procedures, monitoring adherence

to these procedures, proactive asset
maintenance and providing adequate
training.

We assess and improve resilience to
reduce the population exposed to
major disruptions to water supplies. We
also undertake exercises and training,
developing business continuity plans
tominimise customer impact, as well as
being fully compliant with S10 & S12 of
the Reservoir Act.

We have dedicated internal resource
focused on these key submissions,
supplemented by external input
asrequired, and with appropriate
governance in place.

We have also conducted internal and
external reviews of our approach to
PR14 to identify key learning points for
future submissions.

44 Bristol Water plc Annual Report 2016/17



Introduction  Strategicreport

CSR  Directors

Corporate governance

Remuneration Committee

Moderate appetite risks, where we accept some residual risk and where innovation is encouraged:

Risk and description

Funding and Investor confidencerisks
are strategicrisks concerning the ability
toaccess timely and cost-effective

debt or equity to support our capital
expenditure programme and replace
maturing debt.

Water Resourcerisks are strategic
risks, which include planning for
increased population and demand for
water, together with climate change
and extremes in weather.

Change inregulatory regimeis the
regulatory risk of changes in the
Regulatory Regime adversely affecting
us, including the introduction of retail
competition, upstream separation and
abstraction reform.

Expense managementrisk is the
financial risk concerning unexpected
non-recoverable increases in costs.

Impact

Inability to access cost-effective debt
or equity could result in higher interest
costs, lower cash flow or liquidity
difficulties.

Inability to maintain water supplies by
underestimating the demand for water
in comparison to the resource available.

Favourable changes can create new
opportunities for greater efficiencies,
while unfavourable changes can
reduce efficiency, increase costs and
have harmful effects on employee and
customer relations. The abstraction
reform may also affect the Water
Resourcerisk.

Unanticipated increases in costs could
resultinlower earnings and cash flow.

Monitoring and Mitigation

We maintain good relationships with
our equity and debt investors through
regular performance reporting and
communication.

We closely manage our funding and
debt servicing, maintaining sufficient
liquidity tomeet 12 months’ funding
requirements.

We maintain Water Resource Plans to
manage long-term water resourcerisk,
allowing usto developrisk resilience.
We encourage customer metering,
promote efficient use of water by
customers, and we actively manage
leakage to control wastage from our
system.

We maintain business continuity plans
and ongoing monitoring of resource
levels to manage residual exposures.

We monitor and maintain active
dialogue with policy-makers to identify
opportunities and respond to any
legislative changes to minimise the
impact.

Inrespect of Retail Competition, we
have successfully made changes to our
businesses which allow us to interact
with the new NHH retail market.

We mitigate thisrisk by following
policies, procurement strategies,
efficiency initiatives, and reducing
exposure/hedging where appropriate.
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Risk and description

Customer Satisfaction is a reputational
risk in relation to meeting customer
service expectations.

Supply chain failure is an operational
risk of not being able to maintain
supplies of key materials or services.

Asset managementrisks are
operational risks relating to managing
and operating our collection,
treatment and distribution assets.

Capital investment evaluation and
delivery is a strategic risk concerning
our ability to invest effectively and
efficiently.

CSR  Directors
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Impact

Delivery of good customer
management practicesis aligned to
our corporate strategy, and canreduce
negative customer feedback and result
in financial reward through the pricing
mechanism. The opposite is also true.

Failure to maintain key supplies may
resultin an inability to operate specific
treatment processes, increasing the risk
of supply interruptions.

Inability tomanage assetrisks effectively
may result in increased supply
interruptions, resulting in additional
costsand reduced customer satisfaction.

Inability to evaluate and deliver the
capital programme may resultin
inefficiencies and potential financial
penalties through the pricing
mechanism where performance targets
arenotachieved.

Remuneration Committee
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Monitoring and Mitigation

We mitigate thisrisk by following
policies and procedures in support of
our “Bristol Water Bond'.

We perform monthly surveys to

assess customer satisfaction and
communicate with the public through a
variety of media.

We have a flexible approach to dealing
with specific incidents, for example
extending call centre hours.

We operate procurement processes to
reduce exposure to a single supplier
and seek treatment solutions which
avoid supply chain failure risk, within
our investment strategies.

We prioritise maintenance plans
based on performance monitoring,
inspections and key exposure
assessments.

We control the evaluation risk by
following policies and procedures
to assess and authorise appropriate
solutions.

We control the delivery of the
programme through a controlled
gateway project management process
from feasibility to completion.

Higher appetite risks, where we accept more residual risk and where speculative innovation is encouraged:

Risk and description

Humanresourcesretentionriskisan
operational risk concerning the ability
tomotivate, atiract and retain staff.

Current challenges include the
restructuring around introducing the
new operating model.
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Impact

Adequately trained and motivated
staff are fundamental throughout the
business inimproving the customer
experience both when incidents arise
and through working towards our
corporate aims.

The transition to the new operating
model brings challenges with
identifyingroles and responsibilities,
theloss of experienced staff, and an
increased number of vacancies.

Monitoring and Mitigation

We publish external compliments
received on the internal website and we
encourage staff involvement through
an incentivised suggestion scheme.

We use mobile working tools to

reduce paperwork and improve
communications for off-site workers.

The transition to the operating model is
now complete.
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Long-term viability

statement

The Directors have performed a
detailed assessment of Bristol Water’s
viability over a three-year period to
March 2020, the end of the current Asset
Management Period (AMP’), and have
also considered viability over a five-
year period and into the longer term.

Ofwat, the economic regulator for

the water industry, setsa Company’s
revenue over each five-year AMP
period. Our revenues over the next
three financial years, subject to inflation,
were set outin the CMA determination.

Considering the long-term nature of
the business, the protections that exist
under the regulatory model for price
control periods, the Company’s current
position, and its ability to effectively
and efficiently manage and finance

its operations, the directors have
determined that the three-year period
tothe end of the current AMP forms an
appropriate basis to primarily assess the
Company'slong-term viability:.

The Company fundsits investment
programme through access to debt
markets, securing funding that
balances the long-term nature of the
business with the need to maintain
efficient costs. The Company is
required to hold sufficient funds to
meet its Regulatory Licence and debt
covenant requirements, which include
maintaining an investment grade
credit rating. The Company sets formal
criteria and limits are placed on suitable
borrowers to mitigaterisk in this area,

with the Board approving named
authorised lenders with specific lending
limits. The Directors have made a key
assumption that the Company is able
toaccess markets toraise finance as
required.

The Company’s business plan,
developed following the CMA outcome
covering the period to March 2020,
isregularly assessed and updated to
reflect the Company’s current and
future performance. The assessment
considers operational performance
(against the Company's performance
commitments), financial performance
(future cash flows, financing options,
and key financial ratios) and the
economic outlook (interest rates,
inflation rates, input price pressure). It
also takes account of the funding we
have available to us. The Company
currently has cash of £16m available and
committed borrowing facilities of £70m
and is well placed to respond to the near
future events.

Therevised business plan hasbeen
stress tested to assess the potential
impact of the Company’s principal risks
and uncertainties and the effectiveness
of available mitigating actions. Risks
that have been assessed include high
inflation, interest rates and costs, tested
in severe but plausible combinations.

Available mitigations include restricting
dividend payments, discretionary
operating expenditure and pro-active
capital expenditure. The Company is

Remuneration Committee

Financial statements

committed to maintaining a credit rating
that isabove the minimum investment
gradelevel. In an extreme scenario, a fall
inrating to the minimum investment
grade level would loosen the financial
constraints that the businessis
managed under, whilst continuing to
meet Regulatory Licence obligations
and covenants. The Directors are
confident that the mitigating actions are
sufficient to address the combinations of
risks that have been considered.

Inrespect of thelonger-term, we are
developing our business plan for AMP7
and are confident that we can deliver
the improvements our customers want
through cost-effective solutions, using
innovative approaches. We therefore
consider we are well placed to meet
the challenges that our customersand
regulators will expect of us.

Based on this assessment, the Directors
confirm they have areasonable
expectation that the Company will be
able to continue in operation and meet
its liabilities as they fall due over the
three-year period ending March 2020
and beyond.

The Directors also considered it
appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on the going-concern basis,
as explained in note 31 to the financial
statements. Our external auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers sets out the
extent of their review of our viability
statementin their audit report on
pageldz.
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The main drivers of 2017/18 profitability

are expected to be:

- treated water revenues - these are
expected toincrease from 2016/17
due to inflation (2.2%), the wholesale
K-factor (0.5%) and correcting for some
of the underrecovery of revenuesin
prior years

« operating expenditure (‘opex”) - this

isexpectedtoincrease slightly in

2017/18.Increases are expected in
employments costs (due to the new
target operatingmodel being fully
implemented), power costs (due to
priceincreases), and periodic review
costs (due to activity ramping up
ahead of our PR19 submission in

2018/19). Management is committed

toachievingimproving efficiencies

across thebusiness

inflation or deflation - operating

costs, capital expenditure and the

Company'sindex-linked debt are

subject to inflation based on RPI at

various pointsin the year. Potential
adverse impacts of high inflation or

deflation are mitigated by the linking of

the majority of revenues through the
previous year's November RPI
energy costs - energy costsare
significant for the Company; spot
power costs are constantly changing
inline with crude oil and gas markets.
Management expects costs to remain
volatile in the future and to mitigate
the effect of adverse movements the
Company’s policy is to monitor prices
and enter into appropriate forward
contractsto “lockin’ future supply

prices. The Company has fully hedged

CSR  Directors

Corporate governance

&

its exposure to energy commodity
costsfor 2017/18

- socioeconomic conditions - significant

changes in the socioeconomic
conditions of customers may impact
uponrecovery of billed amounts

« weather - severe weather patterns
can affect the profitability in various
different ways. Measured income can
be affected by changesin volume
consumption, chemical and power
costs can be affected by raw water
quality and availability of different
water sources

- network maintenance costs can be
affected by mains burst activity

Remuneration Committee

Financial statements

&

Capital expenditure for the 2017/18 year
isexpected to increase significantly. Key
schemesinclude the completion of the
Southern Resilience Scheme and the
continuing programme of trunk mains
relining and mains replacements.

Approved by order of the Board, and
signed on its behalf by:

Mel Karam
Chief Executive Officer
13 July 2017
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Wereplaced 11.2 kilometres of the
distribution mains network that was
in poor condition and embarked on
our smart meter roll-out
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Our customers are our priority and as well as the improved service
performance we have reported in the strategic section, here are some of the
other ways we are working to improve our customer care and the culture of

our organisation.

Customer Service

With nearly 500 staff in a diverse range
of rolesitis vital that all our people
share our vision of what good customer
servicelookslike, and are empowered
todeliverit.

For the second year running we have
taken partin the Institute of Customer
Service (ICS) National Customer Service
Week’ giving employees a chance to
experience other’sroles through job
shadowing and workshops. There were
also daily tests and light-hearted tasks
that created a charged competitive
atmosphere and some great teamwork.

Aspartof our commitment to improving
the culture, we also took partin the
ICSnational survey to benchmark

our service against others, from the
retail giants to other utilities. We also
conducted our first ever ICS internal
survey to help us understand what

our customer-facing staff genuinely
think about our processes, culture and
strategic direction. This all took place in
January 2017 the results were excellent.
UK Customer Satisfaction Index (UKCSI)
isanational measure of customer
satisfaction. It assesses over 30
measures of the customer experience in
13 sectors for over 200 organisations. On
the UKCSI, we achieved a score of 83.6%
compared to a utility industry average
of 74.4%. We will create a small working
group as part of the Customer Service
Working Group to assess how we can
maintain these high-scoringresults and
improve on them for next year.

Our customers’ opinions are very
important to us and we seek feedback
and measurement across multiple
channels: from feedback cards after
work hasbeen carried out; to monthly
follow-up surveys for customers who
have been in contact with us;toan
annual survey of 1,000 customers; to
our quarterly online panel called Let
us Know’ which regularly receives
inexcess of 1000 responses. The
customer feedback we gain from these
channels hasresulted in us making
real operational changes to benefit
customers.

As we are working on our new Business
Plan for 2020-2025, more customers are
alsobeing approached and consulted
with to help ensure that we understand
their priorities and willingness to pay for
different aspects and levels of service.

Every water company hasa customer
challenge group which holdsthemto
account on performance and provide
ongoingassurance to Ofwat. We have
fully embraced our Customer Challenge
Panel chaired by Peaches Golding OBE,
who also holds the position of Lord
Lieutenant of Bristol. The Customer
Challenge Panel ensures that the
customer’s voiceremains at the heart

of Bristol Water's decision making. The
panel monitor delivery by Bristol Water
of its current commitments to customers
and help develop our business plan
proposals to ensure they reflect the
views of customersas well asthe
interests of other stakeholders and the
environment.

Customer communications
Theinfrastructure thatisrequired to
deliver water islarge and complex,
including our raw water reservoirs,
treatment works, pumping stations
and storage reservoirs. With

nearly 7000 kilometres of mains
connecting thisinfrastructure to the
homes and businessesin our supply
area, there’s alot of maintenance,
renovation and new mainslaying
required and this can impact
customers through supply issues or
roadworks.

Inthe case of planned work or
unplanned emergencies, we keep
customersinformed and updated by
letter, door drops, text messaging to
mobiles and landlines, our website
and Twitter. We also recognise that
others canbe affected indirectly
throughroad congestion and always
look at ways of maximising our reach
throughradio, social media and
signage.

For large projects like the Southern
Resilience Scheme we attend public
and council meetings and use our
mobile Customer Service Unit to
host drop-in sessions which we
publicise in advance to the local
community or special interest
groups.

Forday-to-dayissuesour Bristol-based
Operational CallCentredealswith
incomingcallsandemails;therewere
30,901 callsreceivedin2016/17by our staff.
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Wenow have a wide range of effective

outbound communication channels

including:

» Website: thisreceived 350,847 page
views

» Textmessagingto mobilesand
landlines to warn of operational issues:
we sent 49,016 in 2016/17

« Letters: 30,131 sent to customers about
the Southern Resilience Scheme,
notifying of works and updates

» Twitter - our followers haverisen by
80%inayeartoover 1,800

« Watertalk - our annual customer
magazineis delivered to more than
510,000 homesin our supply area
providing a valuable opportunity to
communicate with the majority of our
customers

Support for customers

Our work to support customers
struggling to pay their water bills has
continued over the year with a proactive
approach to those who may potentially
benefit from the social tariff and
payment schemes we offer. We assess
customers on an individual basis and
look to tailor the package of assistance
offered to their needs, and work closely
with Wessex Water, our joint venture
billing Company BWBSL and local and
national debt advice agencies to support
vulnerable customers and develop
policies and tariffs that are responsive to
societal needs.

Thenumber of customersreceiving
assistance through these measures has
increased by 23% since last year, toa

Directors

Corporate governance

total 0f 14,370. We have donated £75k to

debtadvice agencies across our supply

area to help them provide free advice to
our customers, and attended numerous
public events to support these agencies
inthe community.

Remuneration Committee

Financial statements

‘Our work to support
customers struggling
to pay their water bills
has continued over the
year with a proactive
approach to those
who may benefit from
our social tariff and
payment schemes’
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Providing an outstanding water service in a sustainable way
means we must engage with our customers and stakeholders
and focus on our environmental vision to make efficient use of

resources, and encourage our customers to do the same.

Saving water is good for both our
customers and the environment as it
reduces customers water and energy
bills and also reduces our energy
consumption and our carbon footprint.
We encourage customerstousethe
‘Save Water Save Money' service, which
is promoted and accessed through our
website. This provides guidance on
water use and potential savings that
canbe made by fitting a range of water
saving devices and other equipment,
most of which can be ordered for free.
In 2016/17 nearly 27000 devices have
been distributed which have helped our
customersto save nearly 190,000 litres
of water every day.

One of Bristol Water's key aimsis to

be environmentally sustainable.

A measure of this success is

to demonstrate a quantifiable
improvement in biodiversity. An
innovative approach called the
Biodiversity Index (BI) hasbeen
developed to manage and monitor our
effect on the environment, and to help
the Company improve theresilience
of the environmentby creatingan
improvement toits current status. This
new approach is designed to quantify
thebiodiversity at Company sites.

Commencingin AMP6, during
engineering, maintenance and routine
works, an appropriate amount of
offsetting must take place following
these works to mitigate and improve
impacted environmental features.
Enhancement works can either be on

that site or offset to another site. Thisisa
culture change at Bristol Water, and this
new way of working has been integrated
into the decision-making processes and
isnow arequirement for all works we
undertake.

The Southern Resilience Scheme has
allowed us to showcase this approach,
with biodiversity enhancements carried
out wherever a practicable opportunity
isidentified in order toleave asiteina
better environmental condition than
when we started.

By identifying features that may be
lost during the works, we are able to
quantify the amount of environmental
enhancement we can provide to offset
thelosses. This pioneering initiative
aims to provide the water industry
with atool for assessing the impacts of
all types of development from small-
scale site improvements to large, linear
infrastructure projects. Understanding
these impacts will allow for better, more
resilient environmental mitigation,
compensation and enhancement to be
provided.

Bristol Water also has aregulatory
commitment under the National
Environment Programme to deliver
eel protection and invasive species
schemes. These are directly related
tothe Blmeasure as they will deliver
improvements in biodiversity to the
wider Bristol Water catchments.

We are continuing the work we

started in AMP5 on metaldehyde,

with catchment management now
arequirement under the National
Environment Programme.In late

2014 we formed the Mendip Lakes
Partnership, comprising Bristol Water,
Natural England, Environment Agency,
Catchment Sensitive Farming and
Avon Wildlife Trust, to bring together
organisations with an interestin
improving environmental management
across the Mendip catchments.

This partnership is now supporting

the farming sector in the Mendip

Lakes catchments, whichis keento
protect water quality in theriversand
reservoirs, improve soil management
and enhance local wildlife.

Taken as a whole, our catchment
management and environmental
projects will make water cheaper to
treat for Bristol Water and improve the
environment for the local community.

“The Southern Resilience
Scheme has allowed
us to showcase our
environmentally
sustainable approach”
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34

great-crested newts
were trapped and
relocated out of harm’s
way from spring 2017

24

dormice hedges were
identified by our
environment team along
the chosen route for the
Southern Resilience
Scheme

Southern Resilience Scheme (“SRS™)
habitat protection

GREAT-CRESTEDNEWTS

In the Mendips and across the North
Somerset Levels, we have been
trapping great-crested newtsin order
to protect them from our construction
activities. In Autumn 2016, 34

newts were trapped and relocated

out of harm's way, with trapping
recommencingin spring 2017, when
they come out of hibernation. This
area provides significant habitats for
newtsand soitis essential that we also
protect asmuch of their environment
as possible during our work.

DORMICE

Our environment team has identified
24 dormice hedges along the chosen
route for the SRS. At these locations
we have had to remove sections of
hedge to allow us to install the pipe,
but not before searching the hedges
for any furry inhabitants and placing
temporary corridors to allow them
tomove across the fields when

they emerge from hibernation. Our
engineers and environment team
will replace the sections of removed
hedgerow with shrub and tree
species that will offer more food and
hibernation habitat in the long term.

CAVESPIDERS

In Winscombe engineers have
discovered cave spidersliving in the
Shute Shelve Tunnel. This elusive
arachnidisrarely seen thanks toits

Remuneration Committee
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love of living in total darkness. We

will be installing temporary lighting
thatis sensitive to the tunnel'sinsects
and other creatures but also allows
our engineersto get on with the job at
hand. We've also boarded up some of
their favourite alcoves making sure we
provided plenty of ventilation so they
can stay safe during our time in their
habitat.

BATS

Work in the tunnel was also suspended
after we discovered bats living there.
Our works will be undertaken taking
due care of the bat habitat and is under
licence from Natural England. We have
installed bat boxes outside the tunnel
entrance to give the bats a home during
our works and will allow the bats to
return to the tunnel once we have
finished our work.

BEE ORCHIDS

Our engineers are currently
translocating beautiful bee orchids
from fields to a temporary home of
subsoil in our compounds. They will
bereturned to their fields once the
construction work has moved on. We
will continue to monitor all of these
habitats until we are satisfied that they
arere-established.
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Community

We aim to make a positive difference by supporting
and promoting the wellbeing of communities and by
behaving in a socially responsible manner.

In 2016 Bristol Water partnered with
acommunity campaign called Refill
Bristol to promote tap water in the city
and encourage people to carry refillable
bottlesrather than buy single-use plastic
bottle waters. A network of more than
200 refill stations - where you can top
up with free tap water - exist tomake
Refilling easy, but Bristol Water took the
concept of Refill further by creatinga
free water bar that we took to festivals
and community events.

The Water Bar doesn't just promote tap
water, it elevates our product, making
itnovel and appealing, and allows

our messaging on other subjectstobe
better received. We were able to speak
to customers about water efficiency,
metering, leakage and a whole host of
other subjects and we estimate that
more than 16,000 peoplerefilled for free
at our summer events. The water bar
won the Bristol and Bath Environmental
Innovation Award 2016, Community
Project of the Year and Outstanding
Innovation awards at the Water Industry
Achievement Awards 2017 and Big Bang
Innovation award at the Utility Week
Star Awards 2017.

We have also been working on our
second public drinking fountain - our
first was installed in Millennium Square
in 2015, and we attracted support from a
local Environmental Consultancy called
Eunomia to pay for another. This was
unveiled by the Mayor of Bristol, Marvin
Rees, in one of Bristol's most historic and
prestigious locations - Queen Square.

This will not only make our product
freely available at one of the city’s
busiest pedestrian crossroads, it will
also helpreduce litter and plastic waste.

Asaresult of this collaboration, we are
now working closely with the council's

places team on improving other council-

owned drinking fountains and a wide
range of other water-related projects.

Looking ahead through 2017 we have
become an official partner in the Sugar
Smart City campaign. Thisfitsreally
well with our core aims of promoting
tap water and healthy hydration and is
areally good fit with Refill. We will use
the water bar as a platform to promote
both campaigns at the biggest city
events, and in the new school year we
will be working on a water promotion

project with the Healthy Schools team in

primary schools.

Bristol Water remains committed to
supporting community initiatives

that meet our criteria of beinglocal,
environmental and educational. Last
year we funded or offered supportin
kind in the region of £10k to the likes of
the Festival of Nature, Portway Sunday
Park, Dundry Slopes Community,
Roundhouse, Babbasa Youth Projects
and Avon Fire and Rescue. We have
alsodonated a second used van to The
Wheels Project, which helps young
people from socially deprived areas of
Bristol to learn mechanic skills.

Like many water companies, Bristol
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Water supports WaterAid as our
corporate charity. Aswell as including a
bespoke annual appeal for WaterAid in
our bills, we encourage staff to take on
fundraising challenges for the charity. A
team of 12 took part in the Tough Shlt 10k
challenge and raised nearly £1,000 and
we also donated £5 for every response
to our annual stakeholder survey,so a
further £2,000 went into the pot.

Many other local and national charities
have benefitted from staff volunteer
daysand fundraising at work through
dress down Fridays and cake sales. We
alsorecycle any scrap metal generated
through the course of our business
activities and the money received
from this exercise is donated tolocal
charitable causes.

‘Looking ahead through
2017, we have become
an official partner in
the Sugar Smart City
campaign’
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Employees

Weneed the best employees in order
to achieve our goal to deliver an
exceptional customer service.
Ensuring that our employeesremain
motivated and skilled in their roles is of
paramount importance to us.

Following the implementation of

our new operating model that saw
considerable changes to the structure of
the business, we have beenreviewing
the impact through confidential staff
surveys (temperature checks) and

will continue to domore of these. We
continue to use theresults to highlight
areas that require additional focus

to help ensure that the new model

is properly embedded to deliver the
efficiencies and improvements required
to support the business and our
customers now and into the future.

Inthelast year, we have redesigned
our Annual Review appraisal
process, to enable all employees to
have an opportunity toreview their
performance, development needs,
setnew objectives and recognise
achievement.

This year, we aim to develop

new learning and development
interventions, as well as focusing
on talent and succession planning,
to support employee engagement,
motivation and retention.

Our recruitment process has been
overhauled with anew careers

CSR Directors
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microsite to help us showcase our jobs
and workplace to quality applicants, and
anew portal to make therecruitment
experience easier for applicants and
hiringmanagers.

Improving communication across the
entire business hasbeen a key driver
this year and we have really stepped
up our internal communication
capability with new resource, upgrades
to our staff intranet and a series of
eventstoincrease awarenessand
engagement around significant projects
like non-household retail separation
and Channel, our internal business
improvement programme. One benefit
of the size of our organisationis that
senior managers have close proximity
toall staff. We have increased the time
that Executive Directors and senior
managers have spent out with our
operational employees to listen to and
understand their concerns.

A Health & Safety Review has also
been started this year that will focus

on safety in the workplace, and we will
be pursuing a proactive agenda for
safety and health, under the “Employee
wellbeing”banner, next year.

This year we have completed the Health
& Safety Laboratories Climate Tool
survey to benchmark safety culture.

We used theresults tobuild a Corporate
Health & Safety improvement plan to
improve our safety culture and the day-
to-day operation of the business. The
plan focuses on leadership, engaging
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Employees & suppliers

our employees, improving our accident
and hazard reporting systems as well as
areas for improvement specific to each
directorate within the business.

Toimprove leadership with the
business, IOSH Leading Safety courses
were organised for senior managers
and directors. The training establishes
abenchmark and is the foundation

on which we arebuilding to improve
our safety culture. Engaging with
employees and our contractorsisan
important part of this culture. We have
set up a programme of regular safety
communications passing on lessons
learnt from inside and outside the
business that are cascaded down to
each team providing opportunity for
regular face-to-face communications.
In December, weran a Health & Safety
Advent Calendar campaign to engage
with our workforce; not only toimpart
work related Health & Safety messages
butadvice in the home to safeguard our
employees and their families over the
festive period.

We have placed an increased focus

on hazardreporting, encouraging
employees and contractors toreport as
many hazards as possible. The system
provides feedback to anyone raising
ahazard at several stages within the
process ensuring the reporter is kept
informed. Thisregular communication
has encouraged more of our staff to
report hazards and that has had a knock-
on effect on our accident numbers. The
result of investment in our workplace
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‘Providing a highly
reliable water service
is our core business so
working closely with
suppliers to assist usin
delivering this serviceis
key to our success’
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and removing these hazards has seen
ayear-on-year reduction in the number
of accidents and is helping to deliver
our aim of a safe workplace.

We continue to consult with our
workforce at our quarterly Health

& Safety committee meetings that
seesanumber of positive actions
being taken to address issues raised
and we continue to reinforce our five
safety codes, the foundation of our
safety culture: Lead by Example, Risk
Assess your Task, Be Fit for Work, Be
Competent and Communicate.

Suppliers

Providing a highly reliable water
serviceis our core business so working
closely with suppliers to assist usin
deliveringthis serviceis key to our
success.

Specialist contractors and suppliers
help usdeliver our capital and
operating projects and these
contractors and suppliers are selected
because they have the same business
ethosasusand we believe they will
enhance the delivery of our service to
our customers.

Aspart of the appointment process,
contracting partners have tomeet the
rigorous cost and delivery criteria that
we apply within our business and all
our procurement procedures adhere to
the EU Utilities Directive.

We continually evolve how we provide
services to each customer group to
reflect the nature of each businessline

Remuneration Committee
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and specific market requirements. For
example, this year weimplemented a
new Wholesale Services function to
deliver the new non-household retail
market and manage the business-
to-businessrelationship through
dedicated account management.

Within Development Services our
management structure continues to
have two separate customer-facing
functions, oneretail facing and the
other wholesale facing to ensure self-
lay providers are not being unfairly
disadvantaged when it comes to
connecting new developments. These
changes will help effective competition
which can deliver benefits for
customers, offering choice and acting
asadriver for more customer-focused,
efficient and innovative services.

We have also moved Development
Servicesinto the Customer Services
directorate to further develop the
customer-facing nature of the services
provided.

We are committed to being fair and
effective in the way we work with all
external suppliers and contractorsin
order to support growth in thelocal
economy.

Mel Karam
Chief Executive Officer
13 July 2017
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-ty Non-Executive

}} o Chairman, Chair
v of Nomination

: Committee

Mr Ludeman was appointed to
the Board in July 2012. He is the
Non-Executive Chairman of Aspin
Group, TXM Plant, and the London
Transport Museum. Heis also a
Non-Executive Director of Interserve
and Eversholt Rail Group. Formerly
he was Chief Executive Officer of Go-
Ahead Group plc and has 40 years’
experience in the transport industry.

Independent Non-

Executive, Member

ofthe ARAC,
Nominationand
Remuneration Committees
Mr Tutton was appointed to the Board
in January 2015. He is an economic
consultant specialising in economic
regulation, especially in the energy
sector. Currently a Panel Member at the
Competition and Markets Authority,
his previousroles have included UK
Director of Regulation at National Grid
and Director of UK Utility Regulation’ at
PricewaterhouseCoopers.

L

Chief Executive

Officer

Mr Karam joined
the Company in April
2017 as Chief Executive Officer.
Prior to joining the Company,
he was Partner and Global Head
of Asset Management at KPMG
International leading their work
across 25 countries. Mr Karam has
over 25 years of experience in asset
management and capital delivery in
the power and utility sector including
Thames and Southern Water.

Q} Independent Non-

| Executive, Member
. i % oftheARAC,
Nominationand

Remuneration Committees

Mr Davis was appointed to the
Board in November 2008. He

has amechanical engineering
background, having worked with
Rolls-Royce before moving to the
packaging industry, where he had
Managing Director roles in both the
UK and the USA. Mr Davisis alsoa
non-executive director at Thatchers
Cider Company Limited.

et et

Non-Executive,

Member of ARAC : =
MrSmerdonisCEO
of iCON Infrastructure CanadalInc.,
asubsidiary of iCON Infrastructure
LLP. Prior to joining iCON
Infrastructure he was Chief Financial
Officer of Capstone Infrastructure
Corporation from 2009-2017. Mr
Smerdon joined the Board on 5
October 2011.

Independent Non-
% ° Executive,Chair
/ (i " of ARAC,Member
of Nomination and

Remuneration Committees

Mr Hemus joined the Board on1April
2016 as anindependent non-executive
director. He was an audit partner at
PricewaterhouseCoopersfor 23 years
and, for thefinal four years of his
career, was one of thetwo National
Risk and Quality Partnersfor the Audit
and Assurance section of thefirm. He
retired from PricewaterhouseCoopers
on30June2013.
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Independent Non-Executive, Chair of
Remuneration Committee, Member of the
ARACand Nomination Committee

Ms Wood joined the Board on1January 2017
as anindependent non-executive director. Sheis currently the
Legal Director and Company Secretary at Costain Group plc
and also hasresponsibility for human resources across the
Group. Sheis a Director of The Costain Charitable Foundation.
Ms Wood has abackground in construction and commercial
law and was formerly a partner at Hammonds.

i Non-Executive, Member of the ARAC,
Remuneration and Nomination
Commiittees
Mr Ichishiis Manager of the ITOCHU
Corporation of Japan, responsible for development of
ITOCHU's global water and environment sector project. He
hasheld various senior positions within the Itochu group. He
isalsoanon-executive director of Canaragua Concesiones,
S.A.He was appointed tothe Board on10 May 2012.

Chief Financial Officer

Mr Axtell was appointed to the Board on

30 January 2014. He joined the Company in
September 2013 as Deputy Finance Director

and was appointed Finance Director in January 2014. On 24

November 2015, Mr Axtell was appointed Chief Financial Officer.

Ontheresignation of Luis Garcia on 15 December 2016, Mr Axtell

acted asinterim Chief Executive Officer until 31 March 2017. Prior

tojoining the Company he held anumber of senior financeroles

at RWE, one of Europe’sleading electricity and gas companies.

Non-Executive, Member of the

Remuneration and Nomination

Commiittees
Mr MalanistheSenior Partner ofiCON
Infrastructure LLP,anindependentinfrastructureinvestment
firm whichhefoundedin2011. Mr Malan has over 20 years of
experienceininfrastructureadvisory and investmentatiCON
Infrastructure LL.P, Deutsche Bank and MacquarieBank.He
wasappointed totheBoard on 7 July 2016.
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Directors’report

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017,

Financialresults and dividends
The enhanced financial review
including financial results and KPIs is
contained in the Strategic Report on
pages40to42.

Thetotal dividend paid during the year

ended 31 March 2017 was 153.3p (2015/16:

53.4p) per ordinary share. The Board has
not proposed a final dividend in respect
of the financial year 2016/17 (2015/16:
£1m). The Company’s practice for
dividends to shareholders is contained
inthe Strategic Report on page 41.

Capital structure

Details of the issued share capital are
showninnotes19 and 25. The Company
has one class of ordinary shares,

which carry noright to fixed income.
Each ordinary share carries theright

to one vote at general meetings of the
Company.

There areno specificrestrictions on

the size of a holding or on the transfer
of shares, which are both governed by
the general provisions of the Articles of
Association and prevailing legislation.
The Directors are not aware of any
agreementsbetween indirect holders
of the Company’s shares that may
resultinrestrictions on the transfer of
securities or on votingrights. No person
has any special rights of control over
the Company’s share capital and all
issued shares are fully paid. The Articles
of Association themselves may be
amended by special resolution of the
shareholders.

Under its Articles of Association and

the Companies Acts, the Company has
inissue 5,998,025 ordinary shares as
disclosed innote 25. All the ordinary
shares are owned by Bristol Water Core
Holdings Limited, which isitself a wholly
owned subsidiary of the CSE Water UK
group. In addition, the Company hasin
issue 12,500,000 8.75% irredeemable
cumulative preference shares of £1 each,
details of which are disclosed in note 25.

GOING CONCERN

Asdetailed in the Corporate
Governance Report on page 83,

the Directors continue to adopt the
going-concern basis of accountingin
preparing these financial statements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Details of financial risks faced by the
Company and therelated mitigating
factorsare included in note 20 to the
financial statements.

Remuneration Committee

Financial statements

DIRECTORS AND THEIRINTERESTS

The Directors who served during the year

or were appointed before thisreport were:

» KLudeman, Chairman

« [ Garcia, Chief Executive Officer
(resigned 15 December 2016)

- M Karam, Chief Executive Officer
(appointed 1 April 2017)

- M Axtell, Chief Financial Officer
(interim CEO from 16 December 2016
to 31 March 2017)

« C Curling, Independent Non-
Executive (retired 28 February 2017)

« P Mcllwraith, Independent Non-
Executive (retired 31 May 2016)

- R Davis, Independent Non-Executive

« T Tutton, Independent Non-Executive

- THemus, Independent Non-
Executive (appointed 1 April 2016)

« T'Wood, Independent Non-Executive
(appointed 1 January 2017)

» M Bernstein, Non-Executive (resigned
24 June 2016)

- M Smerdon, Non-Executive

« HIchishi, Non-Executive

» M Anglada, Non-Executive (resigned
15 December 2016)

« PMalan, Non-Executive (appointed 7
July 2016)

Messrs Axtell and Davis will offer

themselves for re-election and

Mr Karam and Ms Wood will offer

themselves for election at the Annual

General Meeting on 11 September 2017.

During the year, Mr Robson resigned as
Company Secretary. On hisresignation,
Mr Caldwell was appointed as Company
Secretary and resigned 31 March 2017.
Ms Jones was appointed as Company
Secretary on1April 2017.
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Service contracts

All current Executive Directors have
service contracts with 12-month notice
periods.

Other interests
Atnotimeduringthe year hasany
Director had a material interest in
any contract of significance with the
Company.

Theinterestsin shares and other
contracts of Mr Bernstein (resigned 24
June 2016) and Mr Smerdon with other
companies within the Capstone group
are not disclosed within thisreport.

Theinterestsin shares and other
contracts of Messrs Garcia and
Anglada (bothresigned 15 December
2016) and with other companies within
the Agbar or Suez groups are not
disclosed within thisreport.

Theinterestsin shares and other
contracts of Mr Ichishi with other
companies within the Itochu group are
not disclosed within thisreport.

Theinterestsin shares and other
contracts of Mr Malan with other
companies within the iCON group are
not disclosed within this report.

ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY AND
CONTROLLING PARTY

The details of ultimate parent Company
and controlling party,and the smallest
and largest group in which this
Company is consolidated, are provided
innote 27 to the financial statements.

CSR  Directors
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
The Company undertakesresearch
and development projects in relation
toitsbusiness. Expenditure during
the year amounted to £0.1m (2015/16:
£0.1m).

FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS

The details of the financial
instruments are provided innote 19 to
the financial statements.

INSTRUMENT OF APPOINTMENT
ANDREGULATORY ACCOUNTS

In accordance with its Instrument

of Appointment made under the
Water Industry Act1991 asamended,
the Directors are of the opinion

that the Company is in compliance
with paragraph 3.1 of Condition K

of that Instrument, which relates

to the control of the assets of the
Appointed Business. Copies of the
Regulatory Accounts required under
the Instrument of Appointment

are available from the Company
Secretary.

DIRECTORS QUALIFYING THIRD-
PARTY INDEMNITY PROVISIONS
During the year, and to the date of
approval of the financial statements,
the Company had in force a qualifying
third-party indemnity provision in
favour of all Directors of the Company
against any liability which may arise
inrespect of their current or past
duties as Director of the Company or
its holding companies, subject to the
conditions set out in the Companies
Act2006.

AUDITORS AND DISCLOSURE OF

INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Each of the persons whois a Director

at the date of approval of thisreport

confirms that:

- sofar as the Director is aware, there
isnorelevant audit information of
which the Company'’s auditors are
unaware; and

- the Director has taken all the steps
that he ought to have taken asa
Director in order to make himself
aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that
the Company'’s auditors are aware
of that information.

This confirmation is given and should
beinterpreted in accordance with the
provisions of s418 of the Companies
Act 2006.

EMPLOYEES

Information on employment policies
and practicesis contained within the
‘Best people, right culture’ part of the
Strategic Report on pages 36 and 37.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS
Information on environmental
matters and KPIs are contained within
the ‘Environmentally sustainable’
part of the Strategic Report on pages
3010 33.

OUTLOOK

Commentary on the main drivers of
future profitability is contained in the
Strategic Report on page 48.
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Corporate governance

THE STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS
INRESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT
Asrequired by the UK Corporate
Governance Code and the Bristol Water
Code, see page 83, the Directors confirm
that they consider that the Annual
Report, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced
and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders
toassess the Company’s performance,
business model and strategy. When
arriving at this position the Board was
assisted by a number of processes
including the following:

» the Annual Reportis drafted by
appropriate senior management with
overall co-ordination by the Chief
Financial Officer;

- communications to ensure
consistency across sections;

» an extensive verification process
isundertaken to ensure factual
accuracy;

« comprehensive reviews of drafts of
the Report are undertaken by the
Executive Directors and other senior
management; and

- the final draftis reviewed by the
ARAC prior to consideration by the
Board.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directorsareresponsible for
preparing the Annual Reportincluding the
Remuneration Committee Reportand the
financial statementsin accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors

Remuneration Committee

Financial statements

to prepare financial statements for

each financial year. Under that law

the Directors have prepared the

financial statements in accordance

with United Kingdom Generally

Accepted Accounting Practice (United

Kingdom Accounting Standards and

applicable law). Under Company law the

Directors must not approve the financial

statements unless they are satisfied

that they give a true and fair view of

the state of affairs of the Company and

of the profit or loss of the Company for

that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies
and then apply them consistently;

» make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;

- state whether applicable UK
Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements
respectively; and

- prepare the financial statements on
the going-concern basis unlessitis
inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for
keeping adequate accountingrecords
that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements and the
Remuneration Committee Report
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comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are alsoresponsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence for
takingreasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the
Company’s website. Legislation in

the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislationin
other jurisdictions.

The Directors consider that the annual
reportand accounts, taken asa whole, isfair,
balanced and understandable and provides
theinformation necessary for shareholders
toassessa Company’s performance, business
modeland strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names
and functions are listed on pages 64
and 65 confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge:

- the financial statements, which have
been prepared in conformity with
Financial Reporting Standard 101,
give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit
of the Company; and

« the Strategic Report contained in the
Annual Reportincludes a fair review
of the development and performance
of the business and the position of the
Company, together with a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties
thatit faces.

CSR  Directors

Corporategovernance Remuneration Committee Financial statements

NS

Corporate governance

The Company’s statement on corporate
governance can be found in the ‘Corporate
governancereport on pages 70 to 83.

The ‘Corporate governance report’

forms part of this ‘Directors report and is
incorporated into it by cross-reference.

Approved by order of the Board, and
signed onits behalf by:

Catherine Jones
Company Secretary
13 July 2017
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Introduction

The Boardis committed torunthe
Company inthebestlong-term interests
of our customers, shareholders and
wider stakeholders. The Board and its
committees have overall responsibility
for the management of the Company
anditsregulated business. They set

the Company’s values and standards,
make strategic decisions, and provide
leadership for the long-term success

of the Company. We believe this can
only be achieved if the activities

of the Company are supported by
appropriate governance processes,
within a framework of effective controls,
enablingriskstobe managed and
thenecessary financial and human
resourcesare in place for the Company to
meetits objectives. The Board monitors
the Company’s compliance with its
statutory and regulatory obligations to
its customers, shareholders, regulators,
other stakeholders and the environment.

Ofwat, our economic regulator, also
enforces the same approachinits
publication on the principles of
Board Leadership, Transparency and
Governance, the “Ofwat Principles”.

We have fused together these Ofwat
principles and the UK Corporate
Governance Code into our code of
corporate governance (‘the Code”),
available on our website. Our viability
statement can be found on page 47 to 48.

We detail below how, in practice, the
Company has appliedits Code of corporate
governance. The Board considers that it
complies with all of therequirements of its
Code of corporate governance.

Board and board committees

THE CHAIRMAN

The Chairman, whoisa Non-

Executive Director independent upon
appointment, isresponsible for the
leadership of the Board and for its
effectiveness. He sets the agenda for the
Board meetings, providing adequate time
for each agendaitem. He isresponsible
for the culture of the boardroom
whichis one of openness and debate
encouraging,in particular, the effective
contribution of Non-Executive Directors.

NON-EXECUTIVEDIRECTORS

The Non-Executive Directors monitor
the performance of the Executive
Directors and management, and form
the majority of the members of three
key board committees, namely:

« ARAC whichreviews the integrity
of financial information, financial
controls andrisk management;

« Remuneration Committee whichreviews
Company remuneration policy and
Executive remuneration packages;and

« Nomination Committee which
oversees the Board composition and
succession planning.

The Board membership means that

the Board is compliant with the Ofwat

Principles which require that:

- Independent Directors (including an
Independent Chairman) are the largest
single group on the Board, compared
with (i) Executive Directors, and (ii)
Non-Executive Directors who are not
independent;

« the number of shareholders’
representatives onthe boardis
not greater than the number of
Independent Directors (excluding an
Independent Chairman); and

- there are fewer executives than
Independent Non-Executive Directors
(including an Independent Chairman)
on the Board.

A copy of the terms and conditions of
appointment of Non-Executive Directors
areavailable to shareholdersby writing to
the Company Secretary, Catherine Jones.

At 25 May 2017 the Board of Bristol Water
plc (the “Board”) comprised the Chairman
(aNon-Executive Director), two Executive
Directors and seven other Non-Executive
Directors. Four of the Non-Executive
Directors are, in the opinion of the Board,
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independent. None of the Non-Executive
Directors have served for more thannine
years on the Board.

Tony Hemus was considered tobe
independent of the management of the
Company on hisappointment having not
been involved with Bristol Water before
or inthe audit at Bristol Water despite his
roleasapartner at PwC, the Company’s
auditors. Given that Tony Hemusretired
inJune 2013 hewasa partner at PwCfora
two-month period during the three years
prior to hisappointment. However, this
was not viewed asbeing a factor affecting
hisindependence.

Theindependent Non-Executive
Directors constructively challenge and
help develop proposals on strategy
andbring independent judgement,
knowledge and experience to the Board's
deliberations. The Independent Directors
are of sufficient calibre and number to
ensure that their views carry significant
weight in the Board's decision-making.

Therecruitment process carried out
during the year for Mel Karam, Chief
Executive Officer,and Tracey Wood,
Non-Executive Director, was conducted
by an external independent firm, Odgers
Berndston, in conjunction with ateam
appointed by the Nomination Committee
consisting of the chairman and Mr Axtell.
Mr Karam was appointed with effect from
1 April 2017 and Ms Wood was appointed
with effect from1January 2017 Details of
Mr Karam's and Ms Wood's background
and experience are mentioned on pages

CSR  Directors

Corporate governance

64 and 65.

The Board executes overall control of
the Company’s affairs by reference to
the schedule of mattersreserved for its
decision. These include the approval
of strategy, financial statements, major
capital expenditure, authority levels
for expenditure, treasury,and risk
management policies.

The Directors are provided with
appropriate, accurate and relevant
financial and operational information
necessary for them to discharge their
duties. The management information

is prepared by senior management of
the Company and produced on a timely
basis for consideration and review by
the Directors. Clarification, amplification
and specific updates are provided as
requested by Directors. Senior managers
periodically attend the Board to provide
appropriate levels of information on
keyissues. The Company Secretary is
responsible for the provision of legal
guidance and supportasand when
appropriate and on corporate governance
matters. In furtherance of its duties, there
areagreed procedures for the Directors
to take independent professional advice,
ifnecessary, at the Company’s expense.
All Directors have accessto the advice
and services of the Company Secretary.
The appropriateness of the information
receivedisreviewed as part of the Board
evaluation process carried out annually.

Thereis clear segregation between the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive

Remuneration Committee

Financial statements

Officer to ensure appropriate Board
balance and the Board has approved a
specific statement on responsibilities for
eachrole.

REVIEW OF THEBOARD
PERFORMANCE

The Board performs an annual review
of its performance and considers this
tobe sensible part of good corporate
governance. Following an external
independent evaluation of the Board
andits committees performancein
2013/14,the Board has conducted an
internal evaluation of its performance
including that of its committees and
individual Directors. Each Director was
asked to answer a suite of questions on
performance devised for the Company
which included areas of corporate
governance. Theresults were considered
atthe 7 July 2016 board meeting.

The Company is privately owned and
representatives of each shareholder are
Board members, thus there is good face-
to-face ongoing contact during the year
and at Board meetings.

The non-executives met without the
Executive Directors present on 26 May
2016, 7 July 2016, 22 September 2016,
30 November 2016, 2 February and 23
March 2017.

Suchinteraction ensures that the
members of the Board, and in particular
the Non-Executive Directors, develop
an understanding of the views of
shareholders.
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The following table sets out the attendance of Directors at the Board and committee meetings during the year:

Number of meetings

Board Maximum Percentage ion| Nomination
meetings possible attendance meetings i Committee

attended during during (maximum 5) i meetings
(maximum 9) | appointment | appointment i (maximum 1)
period

K Ludeman, Chairman 9 9 100%
L Garcia, Chief Executive Officer 5 5 100%
(resigned 15 December 2016)
M Karam, (@ppointed 1 April 2017) 0 0 0%
M Axtell, Chief Financial Officer 2 9 100%
P Mcllwraith, Non-Executive 0 1 0% g 1 0
(retired 31 May 2016)
C Curling, Non-Executive 7 8 88% 4 3 1
(retired 28 February 2017)
R Davis, Non-Executive 9 9 100% 4 4 1
T Tutton, Non-Executive 9 9 100% 5 4 1
T Hemus, Non-Executive 8 9 89% 5 4 1
(appointed 1 April 2016)
T Wood, Non-Executive 2 2 100% 1 2 0
(appointed 1 January 2017)
M Bernstein, Non-Executive 1 1 100%
(resigned 24 June 2016)
M Smerdon, Non-Executive 9 9 100%
H Ichishi, Non-Executive 8 9 89%
M Anglada, Non-Executive 5 5 100%
(resigned 15 December 2016)
8 8 100%

P Malan, Non-Executive
(appointed 7 July 2016)

72 Bristol Water plc Annual Report 2016/17



Introduction Strategicreport CSR

In accordance with an approved
scheme of delegation, the Board
delegates day-to-day and business
management control to the Executive
Directors.

Directors  Corporate governance

The Board considers the Chairman to be
the principal point of reference to whom
concerns of whatever nature may

be conveyed. Mr Tutton is the senior
independent member of the Board and
inthe event that an individual does

not wish toraise a concern with the
Chairman, such concerns may beraised
with Mr Tutton.

Under its Instrument of Appointment
as a water undertaker, the Company

is subject to anumber of ring-fencing
conditions to protect it from the

risks arising from other activities
which may be carried out by other
companies within the group so that the
Company does not, whether through
itsinvolvement in those activities or by
its financial policies, put at risk its ability
either to carry outits functionsasa
water undertaker or to finance them.

Audit and Risk Assurance Committee
(“ARAC”)

The ARAC's terms of reference include
the points recommended by our Code.
Its duties include monitoring internal
controls, approving the accounting
policies and reviewing the interim

and annual financial statements
before submission to the Board. The
Committee, is currently chaired by Mr
Hemus, Independent Non-Executive
Director, and currently comprises three
other Independent Non-Executive
Directors, Messrs Davis and Tutton
and Ms Wood, and two Non-Executive
Directors, Messrs Smerdon and Ichishi
(appointed 15 December 2016). Mr
Mcllwraith retired from the Committee
on 31 May 2016 and Mr Curling retired
on 28 February 2017 Mr Hemus is

the only qualified accountant on the
Committee. The external auditors
attended all meetings during the year
and the internal auditors report to this
Committee on aregular basis.

The Committee is formally constituted
with terms of reference which
includes areview of whistle-blowing
arrangements. A copy of the terms of
referenceis available to shareholders
by writing to the Company Secretary,

Remuneration Committee

Financial statements

Catherine Jones.

Areas of management judgements

considered by the Committee

The Committee reviewed the financial

statements along with the areas of

significant management judgement
and other significant financial

matters. In forming their view on

the appropriateness of accounting

treatment and disclosures in relation to

these areas of management judgement
and financial matters, the Committee
considered:

» Specific factorsinrelation to individual
judgements and mattersincluded in
the following tables,

- assurance from the internal audit
procedures, and effectiveness of the
internal control environment of the
Company.

—
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Financial Judgement How the Committee addressed the judgement

Pension surplus valuation

Pension arrangements for the Company’s employees are
provided partly through the Company’s membership of
the WCPS, which provides defined benefits based on final
pensionable pay.

Due to the nature of the benefit, the amounts recognised in
the financial statements which are based on the principles
set out in [AS19, involve significant judgements around the

assumptions including:

 longevity estimation for scheme members,

- rate of return on the scheme assets,

« calculation of the present value of pension liability,

- tax deduction,and

- other demographic factors.

Accordingly, accounting for pensionsisregarded as a key
judgemental area.

Bad debt provision

Amongst utilities, water companies are in a unique situation
whereby they have a statutory duty to supply customers, but
no statutory power, in case of non-recovery of the water bills,
to cut-off supply of domestic water users. This contributes to
a higher level of bad debt in the water industry compared to
other utilities despite the fact that water bills generally cost
less than other utilities.

The calculation of bad debt provision is based on estimation
of collection rates in future years, and therefore involves a
degree of management judgement as to the appropriateness
of the provision level relative to the debtor balances.

Specific factors considered by the Committee:

The calculations for determining the pension position
were performed by an independent and qualified
actuary in accordance with the principles of the
accounting standard (IAS19).

An assessment of the degree of prudence within these
assumptions.

Thelast funding valuation was performed as of 31 March
2014 which required a more detailed review of the key
actuarial assumptions by the actuary.

Tax was deducted at 35% on the basis that this is the
rate which would be applied to the surplus if it were
recovered by the Company.

Specific factors considered by the Committee:

The Committee has reviewed the key aspects of the
calculation and has had detailed discussions with the
management on the basis for judgement applied for the
bad debt provision.

The method of calculation is considered to be sufficiently
prudent. All debt thatis over four years old is fully
provided for, and the provision for the amountsless than
four years old, follows a systematic approach based on
the historic collection rates, adjusted for any known
economic factors.

The judgement applied by the managementis
considered appropriate and functions as a bridge
between the provision calculation based on historic
collection rates, and the recent collection trends and
economic factors.

The underlying collection and debtor balances
information, used for the calculation of the provision, is
provided by our joint venture Company (BWBSL), which
uses arobust system and audited procedures to collate
this information.
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Financial Judgement How the Commiittee addressed the judgement

Accounting for expenditure on infrastructure assets Specific factors considered by the Committee:

The Company owns a network of mains and associated » Thenature of capital projectsisreviewed by Capital

underground pipework, and impounding and pumped Project Managers and Finance to determine their

raw water storage reservoirs. These assets are collectively accounting treatment.

called Infrastructure assets.. » There arerobust processes and controls to appropriately
allocate staff time between work on capital and

Depending on the nature of the underlying work, operational projects.

expenditure on infrastructure assetsis either capitalised » Management perform quarterly reviews of the

as addition to fixed assets or treated as operational costin actual financial performance versus budget which

the Income Statement. helpsidentify anomalies in accounting treatment of

infrastructure projects.
Given the size and complex nature of the capital
programme, the accounting for infrastructure projects
involves significant management judgement.

Capitalisation of employment costs Specific factors considered by the Committee:
Payroll costs are allocated to cost centres that reflect the - Anassessment is made to ensure the required criteria
nature of activity being undertaken. A judgement is applied, for capitalisation is met (directly attributable to an asset,
based on the activity for each cost centre, of an appropriate probable future economic benefit and can be measured
proportion to capitalise. reliably).
» Thereisaformal procedure under which proportions are
reviewed.

Other significant financial matters considered by the Committee:

Revenue recognition Specific factors considered by the Committee:

Based on the number of properties, approximately 50% « Theincome accrualisbased on historic metered

of our customers have a water meter installed at their volumes, calculation of consumption not billed, and the

properties. Meters for the majority of the customers areread applicable tariffs.

on asix-monthly basis. - Underlying data is provided by our joint venture
Company (BWBSL), which uses arobust system and

Therefore at the end of the year, an estimation of water audited procedures to calculate the accrual.

consumed by the customers, over the period between their e Theaccrued income amounts and supporting reports

last meter reading date and the year-end date, ismade and arereviewed for reasonableness by the Company’s

an income accrual recognised accordingly. management.

The Committee is of the view that the accounting treatment and disclosures in relation to the areas of management judgement and
other significant financial matters considered above are appropriate.

Going Concern
Management continues to prepare accounts on a going-concern basis. More details are set out on page 83 and in the Viability
Statement included in the Strategic Report on pages 47 to 48.
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(cont.)

External auditors

The ARACisresponsible for the
development, implementation and
monitoring of the Company’s policy

on external audit. The policy assigns
oversight responsibility for monitoring
the independence, objectivity and
compliance with ethical and regulatory
requirements to the ARAC, and day-to-
day responsibility to the Chief Financial
Officer. It states that the external auditors
arejointly responsible to the Board

and the ARAC and that the ARACisthe
primary contact. The policy also sets
out the categories of non-audit services
which the external auditors will and
will not be allowed to provide to the
Company, subject to de minimislevels.

Tofulfilitsresponsibility regarding the
independence of the external auditors,
the ARACreviewed:

« the external auditors’ plan for the
financial year, noting the role of the
senior statutory audit partner, who
signsthe auditreport;

- the arrangement for day-to-day
management of the audit relationship;

» areport from the external auditors
describing their arrangements to
identify, report and manage any
conflicts of interest; and

« the overall extent of non-audit services
provided by the external auditors, in
addition toits case-by-case approval of
the provision of non-audit services by
the external auditors.

To assess the effectiveness of the
external auditors, the ARAC reviewed:

- the arrangements for ensuring the
external auditors’ independence and
objectivity;

« the external auditors' fulfilment of the
agreed audit plan and any variations
from the plan;and

» therobustness and perceptiveness of
the auditorsin their handling of the
key accounting and audit judgements.

Based on the above assessments,

the Committee is of the view that the
external auditors are independent and
effective.

EXTERNAL AUDIT TENDERING
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP became
the Company’s auditorsin 2012. Asa
Public Interest Entity with debt listed
on the London Stock Exchange, the
Company will, in future, be subject

to the mandatory auditor rotation
requirements of the European Union.
Subject to the detailed implementation
of the European requirements in

the UK, thisislikely to mean that the
Company will put the external audit
out to tender at least every 10 years,
and change auditors at least every

20 vyears. The ARAC will, however,
continue to consider annually the
need to go to tender for audit quality
or independencereasons. These
measures will also mean the Company
complies with the UK Corporate
Governance Code provision that the
external audit should be put out to
tender at least every 10 years.

The detail of auditors remuneration

isprovided in note 6d of the financial
statements.

Internal auditors

The ARACisrequired to assist the Board

tofulfilitsresponsibilities relating to the

adequacy of the plansrelating to the
internal auditors. To fulfil these duties
the Committee reviewed:

- Internal Audit’s terms of reference and
access to ARAC and all members of the
Board;

- Internal Audit's plans and its
achievement of the planned activity;
and

» Theresults of key audits and other
significant findings, management’s
responses thereto, and the timeliness
of resolution.

Remuneration Committee

Therole and composition of the
Remuneration Committeeis set out in
the Remuneration Committee Report on
page 86.

Nomination Committee

Under the chairmanship of Mr
Ludeman this committee has the task
of recommending new appointments
tothe Board, reviewing reappointments
when they become due and
undertaking annual performance
evaluations of the Board Members.
Before making an appointment the
Committee evaluates the balance

of skills, knowledge and experience
ontheBoard and, in thelight of this
evaluation, prepares a description

of therole and capabilities required
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for a particular appointment. It
alsoreviews the structure, size and
composition of the Board and makes
recommendations to the Board with
regard to any changes. Mr Ludeman will
not chair this committee if it discusses
the performance of the chairman or

the appointment of anew chairman

of the Board. Its current membership
comprises Messrs Ludeman, Davis,
Tutton, Hemus, Malan (appointed 8 July
2016),Ichishi (appointed 15 December
2016) and Ms Wood (appointed 1
January 2017).

The Committee met during the year
todiscuss succession planning for the
non-executive directors.

In accordance with our Code the

Committeereports that the Board hasa

‘Board Diversity Policy’ which confirms

that the Board is committed to:

- all searches for the Board candidates
being conducted, and appointments
made, on merit, against objective
criteria and with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board,
including gender:;

« satisfyingitself that plans are in
place for orderly succession of
appointments to the Board and to
senior management to maintainan
appropriate balance of skills and
experience within the Company and
onthe Board and to ensure progressive
refreshing of the Board.

Currently thereis a single female
representation at the Board level. In our

CSR  Directors
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f

workforce of 461 at 31 March 2017 around
31% (2016 - 28%) were women, whilst in
senior/middle management executive
positions the female representation

was around 27% (2016 - 29%). The
Nomination Committee hasreviewed
and monitored compliance with the
Board Diversity Policy and is of the

view that the Board Diversity Policy is
complied with.

Modern Slavery Act

Bristol Water plc strongly opposes
slavery and human trafficking, and
would never knowingly conduct
business with suppliers or contractors
engaged in such practices. We servea
population of 1.1 million people and all
the associated businessesin anarea of
2400 square kilometres (1,000 square
miles) centred on Bristol.

We have several key contract partners
who work with us to help us deliver
servicesfor our customers in our supply
chainincluding amongst others Bristol
Wessex Billing Services, Kier Services
and Wipro. They and our other suppliers
know we require our contractors and
suppliers to comply with the Modern
Slavery Act 2015 (the "Act”), and that we
will not continue to purchase goods or
services from any supplier that is found
tobe engagingin human trafficking or
usingslave labour.

Bristol Water does, and will continue to,
review its own operations and supply
chain to evaluate human trafficking
and slavery risks. At present thisis

Remuneration Committee

Financial statements

done internally. Bristol Water also
includes compliance with the Actas
arequirement before entering new
agreements with contractors or suppliers.

Bristol Water has provided training to
its procurement staff on this topic, all of
whom are aware of therisks of human
trafficking and slavery, and Bristol
Water's obligations under the Act. The
training materials are made available to
allin the Company.

Currently, Bristol Water considers there
tobeno evidence of slavery and human
trafficking within its own operations,
and low risk in those of its suppliers and
contractors.

Commitment

Sufficient time is available both for the
executive and non-executive directors
toundertake their responsibilities.

The expected time commitment is
considered as part of the appointment
process of non-executive directors
including the requirement for additional
commitment outside scheduled Board
meetings whenrequired including for
induction. A defined expected time
commitmentis set outin the terms of
appointment of non-executive directors.

Directors disclose their other
commitments at the time of
appointment. Further updates are made
asrequired, if anon-executive director
takes any additional commitment.
Executive Directors do not hold any
non-executive directorships.
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Induction and training of directors
New directorsreceive appropriate
induction on their appointment to the
Board covering the activities of the
Company and its key business and
financial risks, the terms of reference of
the Board and its committees and the
Company's latest financial information.

Ongoing trainingis provided as
necessary and includes updates from
the Company Secretary on changes to
the Listing Rules, requirements under
the Companies Act and other regulatory
matters. Directors may consult with

the Company Secretary at any time on

mattersrelated to their role on the Board.

The Chairman regularly reviews and
agrees with each director their training
and development needs. Also, all the
directors have access to independent
professional advice at the Company’s
expense where they judge it necessary
to discharge their duties, with requests
for such advice being authorised by the
Chairman or the Company Secretary.

Retirement and re-election of
directors

Alldirectors are subject to election by
shareholders at the first annual general
meeting after their appointment, and to
re-election thereafter at intervals of no
more than three years.

Allnon-executive directors who have
been directors for nine years or more
need to offer themselves for re-election
ateach annual general meeting.

On 29 April 2016, Capstone Infrastructure
announced the successful completion
ofitssaletoiCON Infrastructure
PartnersII, L.P.(ICONIII"), an English
limited partnership with 37 limited
partner investors comprising, inter alia,

international pension funds,asset manager

and insurance companies. Thelargest
limited partner in iCON Il represents c. 8%
of the aggregate investment commitments
toiCONIIL Themanaging general

partner of iCONII1isiCON Infrastructure
Management ITI Limited (iCON").

On 15 December 2016, Capstone
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Infrastructure announced that it

had completed a transaction with its
ultimate parent entity,iCON Il to sell its
50% indirect interest in Bristol Water.
Accordingly Bristol Water’s ultimate
holding entity isnow iCONIII.

iCON has, inits capacity as managing
general partner of iCONIII, been made
aware of Ofwat’s “Board leadership,
Transparency and Governance -
Holding Company Principles” published
in April 2014 which set out Ofwat’s
expectations for holding companies

of regulated water companies to show
their adherence to the highest standards
of corporate governance. This section
of theannualreport addresses these
Holding Company Principlesand a

note will be placed on the Bristol Water
website noting the compliance with
these principles and cross referring to
thisreport where necessary.

There areno mattersreserved specifically
by the Board of Bristol Water for the
shareholders.iCON has confirmed on
behalf of iICON Il that, other thaniCON
[II'slimited partners and iCON III's direct
and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries,
thereare no other beneficiaries of the
regulated Company within theiCON group
structure.iCON has, on behalf of iCONIIIin
its capacity asmanaging general partner of
iCONIIL given an undertaking compliant
with Condition P of the Company’slicence
when it took control of the Company (the
“Condition P Undertaking”).

iCON has confirmed, on behalf of iCON

[ITinits capacity asmanaging general

partner of iCON I, as follows:

- ithasbeen briefed on Bristol Water's
dutiesunder the Water Industry Act
1991 and the licence;

- itisaware of and will comply with the
terms of the Condition P Undertaking,
including:

- its obligation to provide all such
information as may be necessary to
enable Bristol Water to comply with
the requirements of the conditions
of itsappointment as a water
undertaker;and

- it willrefrain from any action which

Remuneration Committee

Financial statements

would or may cause Bristol Water to
breach any of its obligations under
the Water Industry Act1991 or the
conditions of its appointment asa
water undertaker;
« it will provide Bristol Water with the
information it needsto assureitself
that Bristol Water isnot at risk from the
activities of the wider Bristol Water
group;
it will disclose to Bristol Water details of
any issueidentified by its directorsin
respect of the Bristol Water group that
might materially impact upon Bristol
Water so that Bristol Water can take all
appropriate steps;
it will facilitate the ability of Bristol
Water to meet the requirements of its
own Code of Corporate Governance;
and
it will support Bristol Water's ability
tomake strategic and sustainable
decisions in the long-term interests of
the Company.

&

—
-}\.——
-

(
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The chart below sets out the corporate structure and the table following the chart lists the relevant directors,
all of whom have given appropriate disclosure of their interests.

iCON III BRISTOL

I infrastructure

iCONIIIWATER

= infrastructure

50%

30%

Water 2 Business Limited

water ¢~
business

30% 20%
CSE Water UK Ltd
100%
Bristol Water Holdings UK Ltd
100%
50%

Bristol Water Holdings Ltd

ST
JTOGR\

100%

Bristol Water Core Holdings Ltd

100%

Bristol Water plc

BRISTOL
WATER

Bristol Wessex Billing Services Ltd

100%

Searchlight Collections Ltd
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Conper e I

iCON Infrastructure Pariners I, LP English Limited Partnership » No Designated Members
domiciled in Guernsey Managing General Partner
-iCON Infrastructure
Management III Limited

iCON III Bristol Limited Incorporated in Guernsey Paul Malan (appointed
Taxresident in the United Kingdom 13December 2016)

Richard Stevens (appointed

13December 2016)

CSE Water UK Limited Incorporated in England & Wales Hajime Ichishi

(iCON III Bristol owns 50%, iCON III Holding Company » Michael Smerdon

Water owns 30% and Itochu owns 20%) - Michael Bernstein (resigned 28
June 2016)

Waleed Elgohary (resigned

10 May 2016)

Paul Malan (appointed 10 May 2016)
» Enis Moran (appointed 28 June
2016 and resigned 31 March 2017)
Scott Springett (@ppointed 1 April
2017 and resigned 12 June 2017)

Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited Incorporated in England & Wales Hajime Ichishi
(Wholly owned by CSE Water) Holding Company « Michael Smerdon

» Michael Bernstein (resigned 28
June 2016)
Waleed Elgohary (resigned
13May 2016)
Miquel Anglada (resigned
15December 2016)
Paul Malan (@ppointed 13 May 2016)
Enis Moran (appointed 28 June
2016 and resigned 31 March 2017)
Scott Springett (@ppointed 1 April
2017 and resigned 12 June 2017)

Bristol Water Holdings Limited Incorporated in England & Wales Hajime Ichishi

(Wholly owned by Bristol Water Holding Company » Michael Smerdon

Holdings UK Limited) » Michael Bernstein

(resigned 28 June 2016)

Waleed Elgohary (resigned
13May 2016)

Miquel Anglada (resigned

15 December 2016)

Paul Malan (appointed 13 May 2016)
» Enis Moran (@appointed 28 June
2016 and resigned 31 March 2017)
Scott Springett (@ppointed 1 April
2017 and resigned 12 June 2017)
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Bristol Water Core Holdings Limited Incorporated in England & Wales « Hajime Ichishi

(Wholly owned by Bristol Holding Company » Michael Smerdon
Water Holdings Limited) - Michael Bernstein (resigned 28
June 2016)
« Waleed Elgohary (resigned
13 May 2016)
« Miquel Anglada (resigned
15 December 2016)
 Paul Malan (appointed 13 May 2016)
 Enis Moran (appointed 28 June
2016 and resigned 31 March 2017)
» Scott Springett (@ppointed 1 April
2017 and resigned 12 June 2017)
Bristol Water plc Incorporated in England & Wales » Details of directors are
(Wholly owned by Bristol Water Holds Water Undertaker Licence on pages 64 to 65
Core Holdings Limited) under Water Industry Act 1991
Bristol Wessex Billing Incorporated in England & Wales » Colin Skellet
Services Limited Joint Venture Billing Company » Andrew Pymer
(Bristol Water Holdings « Luis Garcia (resigned 15
Limited owns 50%) December 2016)
» Mick Axtell (appointed
24 January 2017)
» Ben Newby
Searchlight Collections Limited Incorporated in England & Wales « Alex Chapman
(Wholly owned by BWBSL) Debt Collection Company - Lynne Stephens
Water 2 Business Limited Incorporated in England & Wales  David Elliott (resigned 1 April 2017)
(Bristol Water Holdings Non Household Retailer « Mohammed Siddiq (appointed 29
Limited owns 30%) Holds Water Supply Licence April 2016 and resigned 1 April 2017)

Christopher Chambers
(appointed 29 April 2016)

Luis Garcfa (resigned 15
December 2016)

Ben Newby (resigned

31 January 2017)

Sarah Johnson (@appointed

31 December 2016)

Enis Moran (appointed 31 January
2017 and resigned 1 April 2017)
Alan Morgan (appointed

1 April 2017)
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Internal control

The Company has complied and
continues to comply with the Code
provisions on internal control having
established the procedures necessary
toimplement the guidanceissuedin
September 1999 (the Turnbull Committee
report) and by regular review and
reportingin accordance with that
guidance.

The Board has overall responsibility for
the system of internal control, and for
reviewing its effectiveness, whilst the
role of management is to implement the
Board policies onrisk and control. The
system of internal control is designed
to managerisks to appropriate minima
rather than eliminate any risk of failure
inachievingbusiness objectives.In
pursuing these objectives, internal
controls can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

TheBoard encourages a culture of risk
identification and management across
all aspects of the business, and uses the
following main processes to review the
effectiveness of the system of internal
control:

The Executive Directors:

» have delegated to them the authority
tomanage the business and to
implementinternal control and risk
management processes, specifically
the Company has compiled a risk
register containing the key risksit faces
during the conduct of its business; and

» have established a system of KPIs and
risk-identification matrices.

The Company operates through a

formal board structure, which:

» considers material financing and
investment decisions;

- reviews therole of insurancein
managingrisks;

 reviews and approves financial
budgets and emerging financial
results;and

» reviews on aregular basis detailed Key
Performance Indicator reports, which
include the identification of material

Directors

Corporate governance

risks and the actions taken to manage
suchrisks.

The ARAC:

- reviews internal and external audit
work plans and commissions, where
appropriate, reviews of specific issues;

« assesses therisk managementand
controlarrangementsincluding risk
reporting;

- considersreports from management,
internal and external auditors on the
system of internal control and any
material control weaknesses identified;

« discusses with management the
actions taken on any problem areas
identified by the Board membersand
management or in theinternaland
external audit reports;and

- the Chairman of the Committee reports
the outcome of the ARACmeetings to
the Board and the Board receives the
minutes of all ARAC meetings.

The Board:

- monitors compliance with the
obligations of the Company under its
licence as a water undertaker;

- considers material financing and
investment decisionsincluding the
giving of guarantees and indemnities,
and monitors policy and control
mechanisms for managing treasury
risk;

- reviews on aregular basisasummary
KPIreport whichincludesthe
identification of material risks and the
actions taken to manage suchrisks;

- reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management process and significant
riskissues;and

 reviews and approves financial
budgets and emerging financial
results.

The Board undertook formal
assessments of risk management
and control arrangements including
theriskregister on 6 July 2017 and
concluded that the overall internal
control framework was working
effectively. Thereview included an
assessment of the effectiveness of
internal controls within the group’s
joint venture, BWBSL.

Remuneration Committee
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Directors’responsibilities inrespect of
the Annual Report

The statement of the directorsin respect
of the Annual Report, and the statement
of directors responsibilities are
contained within the Directors Report on
pages68and 69.

Going concern

Inassessing the going-concernbasis, the
directors have considered the cash flow
and financial ratios projections of the
Company for the foreseeable future.

Thekey risks to the Company
areregulatory requirements and
developments, operational events and
performance problems. The Company
iswell placed torespond to the near
future events, with cash of £16m available
and committed borrowing facilities of
£70masat 31 March 2017.0n 3 July 2017
the Company entered into new credit
facilities of £25 million with an expiry
date of 7 December 2021.

The Company isnotimmune to

the continuing financial market
uncertainties in the medium term,
which have the potential toimpactits
ability to obtain appropriate financing
todeliver the current and future capital
programmes. The Directors have
considered the viability of the Company
inaccordance with the requirements for
aviability statement which can be found
onpages47to4s.

The Directorsreport that, after making
enquiries, they have concluded that the
Company has adequate resources or the
reasonable expectation of raising further
resources asrequired to continuein
operation for the foreseeable future.

Accordingly, they continue to adopt the
going-concern basis in preparing the
accounts.

Approved by order of the Board, and
signed onitsbehalfby:

Catherine Jones
Company Secretary
13 July 2017
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Remuneration
Committeereport

Introduction

Ibecame Chair of the Remuneration
Committee (‘the Committee”) with
effect from1March 2017 having been a
member since joining the Company’s
Board in January 2017.

Iam pleased to present, on behalf of the
Board, our Committee report inrespect
of the year ended 31 March 2017 together
with our approach for 2017/2018.

This Committeereport hasbeen
prepared under the principles of
Schedule 8 to the Large and Medium-
sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations
2013 issued by the Department for
Business, Innovation and Skills (‘BIS”)
governing the content of remuneration
reports and the provision of the
Companies Act 2006.

The Board hasreviewed the Company’s
compliance withits policy on
remuneration-related matters. It isthe
opinion of the Board that the Company
complied with all remuneration-related
aspects of its Code during the year.

Key matters

In the year under review the Company
has met its many challenges, delivering
on the AMP6 programme for our
customers whilst developing and
implementing a new operating model
and embedding subsequent ways of
working.

The Committee continues to take a
disciplined approach to ensure our
remuneration framework supports the
strategic direction of the Company. This
section summarises the key matters
considered by the Committee and
decisions made during the year.

« Salary A review of theimpact of
inflation on salaries was conducted
in 2016/17 resulting ina 1.5% increase
inbase salary as of April 2017 for
all employees, including the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO"). This was
agreed with representatives of the
recognised Trade Unions. This
increase compares to 0.6% awarded
inthe previous year. The new Chief
Executive Officer joined the business
on1April 2017 and was therefore not
eligible for thisincrease.

« Annual bonus The Committee gave
consideration to the objectives and

Remuneration Committee
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targets of the Company’s annual
bonus scheme for 2016/17,in which

all employees participated during the
year. This included the introduction of
a5% of salary bonus scheme in place
of the capped Company-wide scheme
for those in junior graded roles, and
the introduction of a10% of salary
scheme for those at team leader and
junior management level. This means
that all staff are now on performance-
related bonus schemes which are set
by reference to a percentage of base
salary. The weighting of the Personal
and Business elements of the schemes
was also amended to place more
emphasis on Business performance for
those in the higher bonus schemes.

Pension The Company continues

to operate a Company stakeholder
(defined contribution) scheme and
previous members of the Water
Companies Pension Scheme (“WCPS”)
have automatically been enrolled

in the stakeholder scheme. All
employees are now enrolled on this
scheme with matching employer
contributions (to a maximum
employer contribution of 6%), unless
they have “opted out”. A deed was
signed on 31 March 2016 between
Bristol Water plc and The Water
Companies (Pension Fund) Trustee
Company to close both Company final
salary schemesto future accrual.

« Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”)
Plansfor anew LTIP were postponed
atthebeginning of AMP6. An LTIP
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hasnow been agreed for the CEO and
CFO only. The LTIP covers the AMP6
period from 1 April 2015 to 31 March
2020 and was granted on 15 May 2017.
Participants can earn up to 34.2% of
salary for each year of the plan based
on the Company’s performance
againstlong-term strategic goals of
the Company, including customer
outcomes. Further details are provided
onpage97.

» Departing directors Mike King left
the Company on 31 December 2015.

Annual Salary £230,000

Holiday Entitlement

LTIP

Company Car

Life Assurance

CSR  Directors

Corporate governance

Luis Garcia left the Company on 15
December 2016. Payments made to
Mike King and Luis Garcia are shown
onpage 90 of this document.

« Mick Axtell additional
responsibilities Following Luis
Garcia’'s departure Mick Axtell was
appointed interim CEQ, in addition to
CFO duties, to the end of March 2017.
This coincided with a job evaluation
of his CFO role using the new Towers
Watson methodology. Based on this
review the Committee considered

25 Days + Bank Holidays
Maximum of 60% of Basic Salary

Performance period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2020 (AMP6)

Years for benefit accrual (Ist April 2017 to 31 March 2020)

Paymentsbased on the Company’s performance against long-term strategic goals of the Company,
including customer outcomes
The maximum payment is 34.2% of salary for each year of the performance period in employment
with an expected minimum of £55,000 per annum
50% will be paid following the end of AMP6 with the remaining 50% paid one year later

Perk Car (Any available on current Fleet list)

4x Annual Salary

Remuneration Committee
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it was appropriate to permanently
increase his salary by 7.41% to
£145,000, rather than pay a higher
amount for a shorter period. The
increase was effective from
1December 2016.

New CEO Mel Karam commenced his
appointmentas CEO on1April 2017.In
order to secure the highest possible
candidate, bringing therightlevel of
experience to the organisation, the
remuneration package offered reflected
thelevel of skill and expertise required.

The following sets out the annual bonus payments for executive directors awarded in respect of 2016/17. A summary of the
annual bonus performance measures and the extent to which performance was achieved is set out on page 91.

Luis Garcia - Former CEO
Mick Axtell -

81%

CFOfrom1April 2016 to 15 December 2016 84%

and Interim CEO from 16 December 2016

to 31 March 2017

Tracey Wood
Remuneration Committee
Chairman

13 July 2017

Proportion of maximum
bonus achieved Bonus Payment

£35k

£37k
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Remuneration
Committee report (cont.)

Role and composition of the
Remuneration Committee

The Committee makesrecommendations
tothe Board on the overall remuneration
strategy, and on the remuneration of the
Executive Directors and Senior Executives
of the Company, in consultation with the
Chairman and/or CEO as appropriate.

Themembership of the Committee during
the year comprised:

Mr Curling (Chair until retirement 28
February 2017), Ms Wood (@appointed 1
January 2017 and Chair from1March
2017), Mr Davis, Mr Tutton, Mr Mcllwraith
(retired 31 May 2016), Mr Bernstein
(resigned 24 June 2016), Mr Hemus
(appointed 1 April 2016), Mr Malan
(appointed 7 July 2016) and Mr Ichishi
(appointed 15 December 2016).

Attendances at Committee meetings
areset outinthe Corporate Governance
Report.

The Committee is formally constituted
with written terms of reference. A copy of
theterms of reference has been provided
toall equity shareholdersandisavailable
on the Company’s website.

Duringthe year the CEO, head of Human
Resourcesand Company Secretary
provided material advice and services
tothe Committee. Guidance wasalso
obtained from Towers Watson to support
decisions onthe Company’s grading
structure and remuneration strategy and
from Deloitte, inrespect of the new LTIP.

The total fees paid to Towers Watson in the
year for services to the Committee were
£2,650(2016: £nil). The total fees payable

to Deloitte for services carried out to the
Committee are £6,965 (2016: £nil). Deloitte
alsoprovided advice duringthe year tothe
Company on other technical matters.

The Committeeis satisfied that the
advicereceived from Towers Watson
and Deloitte isindependent. No Director
played apartin any decisions about his
or her own remuneration. No Committee
member has any personal financial
interest or conflict of interest arising from
cross-Directorships or from day-to-day
involvement in running the business.

Executive Directors’ remuneration
policy

Thekey principle underpinning
remuneration policy is to offer
remuneration packages which areatan
appropriate level to attract, motivate and
retain Directors and senior managers of the
calibreneeded to execute the Company’s
business strategy, whichisimportant
forthe delivery of a consistently high-
quality serviceto customersand a sound,
sustainable financial performance.

The Committee’s approach on incentives
isfor any annualbonustobealigned to
the Company’s performance againstits
strategic and business objectives for the
year,and for the performance targets

of any LTIP schemetobebased on the
longer-term strategic and sustainable
success of thebusinessin the current
regulatory environment.
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Summary of Directors remuneration policy The main elements of the remuneration package for Executive Directors are:

Policy and approach

Remuneration
element

Purpose and link to
strategy

Maximum
opportunity

Change in policy since
2015/16 and changes

Salary

Annual bonus

LTIP

Pension

Benefits

Toattractand retain
high-performing
individuals reflecting
market value of role
and Director’s skills,
experience and
performance.

Todrive and reward
performance against
personal objectives
and selected financial
and operational

KPIs which are

linked directly with
business strategy and
customer outcomes
Ofwat's measures of
SUCCESS.

Incentivise long-
term delivery of safe,
excellent-quality
water, outstanding
customer service
and achievement of
financial objectives.

Align Executive
Directors'long-term
interests with those of
customers, long-term
shareholders and
other stakeholders.

Attract and retain
high-performing
individuals reflecting
market value of role
and Director’s skKills,
experience and
performance.

Attract and retain
high-performing
individuals reflecting
market value of role
and Director’s skills,
experience and
performance.

Factors taken into account when
determining basic annual salary
levels are market data provided by

a selected market leading provider,
objective research, the individual
Executive Director’s performance
during the year and pay and
conditions throughout the Company.

Salaries are reviewed at the discretion
of the Committee.

2017/18 Annual bonus is based:

- 90% on the following business
objectives: customer service,
financial, Periodic Review 2019, and
operational and health and safety
targets;and

- 10% on the achievement of role-
specific strategic objectives

The same business objective
targets are applied to all staff who
receive bonuses. The customer
service and operational targets are
setaround measurable outcomes
which the Company believes are
important to customers such as water
quality, leakage target compliance,
minimising interruptions to supply
and the Ofwat customer service
measure, the SIM.

Bonus scheme targets are set annually.

The LTIP is based on performance
over the AMP6 period from 1 April
2015 to 31 March 2020.

LTIP awards are based on the
Company's performance against long-
term strategic goals of the Company
including customer outcomes.

50% will be paid following the end of
AMP6 with the remaining 50% paid
one year later.

There is no share option scheme in
operation.

Pension contributions are made to the
Company stakeholder schemesat a
specified percentage of basic salary.

Reflecting market practice and
comprising the provision of a
Company car and private medical
insurance.

Base salary increases
are appliedinline
with the outcome
of any Company-
wide annual pay
award following a
review conducted
by the Committee
in consultation
with trades unions.
Increases will
normally be inline
with the increases
awarded to the rest
of the Company
workforce.

Maximum of:

» 60% of base salary
for the CEO

» 30% of base salary
for the CFO

savein exceptional
circumstances.

The maximum
payment is 34.2% of
salary for each year
of the performance
period the Director
isin employment
with an expected
minimum payment
of £55000 pa for Mel
Karam.

Maximum Employer
contribution of 6% of
base salary.

N/A

implemented for 2017/18.

During 2016/17, the
Company introduced

a consistent and robust
role-grading methodology
which is aligned to salary
and total remuneration
benchmarking survey

data from a market-leading
provider. Thisis in line with
the Company-wide policy.

No proposed changes for
2017/18. Salaries will next be
reviewed with effect from 1
April 2018.

Anew bonus structure was
implemented for 2016/17
putting a higher weighting
of the bonus on Business
Performance at 70%.

For 2017/18 the number

of measures attached to

the bonus plan will be
reduced to reinforce the
messages around the key
underlying measures which
underpin the delivery of the
Company’s strategy.

The Committee has also
removed the link between
the personal element of the
bonus and the performance
rating and instead
introduced a role-specific
objective for each Executive.

An LTIP scheme has been
agreed for the CEO and CFO
only for AMP6.

It was agreed in principle in
March 2017, and awarded in
May 2017.

The LTIP will continue to
operate during 2017/18.

Defined Benefit (Final Salary)
scheme no longer exists and
all staff including Directors
are now on the Defined
Contribution (Stakeholder)
scheme since 1st April 2016.

No change proposed during
2017/18.

None and none proposed
during 2017/18.
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Remunerationin different performance scenarios
Inline with the BIS disclosure requirements in respect of Directors remuneration, the minimum, expected and maximum total
remuneration of the Executive Directors based upon the proposed policy for 2017/18 is shown in the charts on the following pages.

Themaximum scenario described below is included to comply with the disclosure requirements introduced by the BIS in respect of
Directors remuneration. This shows the maximum amounts that could be earned during the year, and it is dependent on the required

conditionsbeing met. It is the opinion of the Committee that the maximum levelis highly unlikely tobe reached given the stretching
nature of the targets set.

Theminimum award represents all elements of the remuneration package which are not dependent upon performance criteria,
namely base salary, the benefits package and pension (a fixed percentage of base salary linked to employee contribution up toa
maximum employer contribution of 6%).

The maximum award represents the maximum total package which may be earned on an annual basis by each Director assuming
that allthe Company and individual performance targets relating to bonus are achieved in their entirety.

M Karam: Chief Executive

30% 0.8% M Salary

Maximum i Bonus
[ LTIP
34% 09% W Pension
M Benefits
Expectation 261% 134%
46% 1.2%
Minimum
- 100 200 300 400 500
Remuneration (£000)
M Axtell: Chief Financial Officer
35% 1.7% M Salary
Maximum 579% 174% 195% M Bors
= LTIP
i 40% 19% M Pension
M Benefits
Expectation 153% 12.9%
7 55% 2.7%

Minimum 91.8%

- 50 100 150 200 250 300

Remuneration (£000)
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Remuneration policy for the appointment of new Executive
Directors

Whenrecruiting an Executive Director, the Committee aims

to offer a package in line with the policy outlined above.
However, the Committee retains discretion to make a proposal
whichis outside the standard terms in order to secure the
appointment of the right calibre of individual. In determining
the appropriate arrangements, the Committee retains the right
tobenchmark therole against other similar positions in the
wider market and may take into account any other relevant
factors.

The Committee may also make arrangements to compensate
the new Executive Director for “loss” of existing remuneration
benefits when leaving a previous employer. In doing so,

the Committee may take account of the form in which

the previous remuneration was granted, the relevant
performance conditions and the length of the time which the
performance periods have remaining.

Service contracts
Details of the employment contracts of the Executive
Directors at the end of the year are as follows:

Contract Notice
date period Unexpired term

MKaram 15 May 2017 6months Rolling 6 months

MAxtell 11November2015 1year Rolling1year

Thenotice periods disclosed above are considered by the
Committee to be suitable given the nature of each role and
eachdirector’s function within the business.

Uponloss of office, a Director willnormally be entitled to salary
and benefits during their notice period subject, however, to

the Company’sright to exercise discretion havingregard to
theindividual's performance during the period of qualifying
service and the circumstances contributing to the loss of office.

o= =

S

Directors’ contracts donot provide for other compensation
payable on early termination.

Remuneration policy for Non-Executive Directors
Theremuneration of the Non-Executive Directorsis determined
by the Board and is based on market evidence of fees paid
tonon-executive directors in companies of comparable size
and on the time required for the proper performance of the

role. Additional responsibilities are also taken into account. No
Director votesinrespect of his own remuneration.

Non-Executive Directors do not have contracts of
employment, donot participate in the Company-designated
pension schemes or bonus schemes and do not receive any
benefits in kind. Non Executives are paid reasonable expenses.
Theterms of appointment do not entitle Non-Executive
Directorstoreceive compensation in the event of early
termination of their appointment.

Fees paid to non-executive directors arereviewed at the
discretion of the Board. Fees for any newly appointed Non-
Executive Director would be in-line with the above policy.

Shareholder and employee input in setting remuneration
policy

The Committee isaware of the need to set performance targets
which align the interests of the executive team with those of
the Company's shareholders. The Committee has assistance
in setting this vital alignment as certain Committee members
represent the Company’s shareholders. As the shareholders
arerepresented on the Committee, and therefore their views
are taken into account in the Committee meetings, the AGM
doesnotreview the details of remuneration policy separately.

The Committee does not consider it appropriate to consult
with the general workforce on matters of executive
remuneration, butithasregard to the levels of remuneration
throughout the workforce when considering pay for Executive
Directorsto achieve an appropriate balance.
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Application of remuneration policy in 2016/17
This section hasbeen prepared under the principles of Schedule 8 to The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013. The information has been audited as indicated.

Single total figure for remuneration of executive directors for 2016/17 (audited)

T T T

2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Salary/fees 1733 194 1384 128 - 87

Change since 2015/16 -12.1% - 6.2% - = =
P5- AMP5S 47 - 2 = 55 -

Single Figure 273 257 189 178 55 97

1 Resignedasthe CEO on15December 2016, accordingly, the remuneration in the above table reflects nine months’ of Mr Garcia's service.

2 Resigned asthe Regulation Director on 31 December 2015 and, accordingly, the remuneration in the above table reflects only Mr King's nine months'service. In
addition to the remuneration in the table, consideration of £118k was made for compensation for loss of office, as agreed by both parties. Payment was split over
two years with £59k being paid in 2016/17 (2015/16 £79k).

w

The salary for Mr Garcia includes £27k for payments he was entitled to onleaving under his contract, comprising of £10k for hisremaining holiday for 2016 and
£17k for onemonth's salary.

4 Followingtheresignation of Mr Garcia, Mr Axtell was appointed as Interim CEO.

Mr Axtell'ssalary during the year was:
1st April 2016 - £135,000 (having been set at that level in November 2015)
1st December 2016 - £145,000 - based on re-evaluation of CFO role and consideration of appointment as Interim CEQ.

5 TheLTIP for 2014/15 represents the benefit earned from performance measures which were met during 2014/15.In 2014/15, an estimate by management of the
value of the awards was accrued in the Financial Statements and the amount shown above reflects difference in the actual award paid above the estimate.

Asdisclosed in the 2014/15 Directors' Remuneration Report 48.08% out of maximum of 60% paid out in relation to the LTIP for the AMP5 period. The payments
were made in two equal instalments on 30 September 2015 and 30 June 2016 subject to the participants continuing employment. The amount disclosed in the
tablerelates to the second instalment of the LTIP.

Included within the Financial Statements is an accrual for the AMP6 LTIP, however, thisis not shown above as the LTIP has not vested in the period and the
components of the LTIP are dependant on future years' performance.

Bonus includes amounts earned based on performance during 2016/17, which have been accrued and approved, but not paid as
at 31 March 2017 and relates to the period served as a director.

Salary (audited)

A salary review conducted by the Committee during 2016/17 resulted in a 0.6% increase in base salary effective from April 2016 for
allemployees,including the then CEO (L. Garcia) but not the CFO as his salary had recently been increased in line with hisnew role
(2015/16: all staff: 0%; CEO: 0% base salary increase).

Annual bonus for 2016/17 (audited)
The maximum opportunity for the CEO and the CFO for the year ended 31 March 2017 remained unchanged from 2016 at 30% of
base salary.

The performance measures established by the Committee for the 2016/2017 bonus continue to align reward with strategy whilst not
encouraging inappropriate businessrisks to be taken.
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The achievement of the performance measures has been reviewed, with appropriate input from the Audit Committee, following
the end of the 2016/2017 financial year. The maximum 2016/2017 bonus opportunity against each of the main performance
measures is shown below together with the award actually received.

Duringthe year under review, a process was introduced involving setting personal objectives for all employees. Performance
against these objectives would determine arating which, along with business performance and bonus scheme entitlement, would

then dictate the amount of bonus awarded.

The table below represents the business performance measures which forms 70% of the basis of the bonus:

Component | Description Target Weighting Achievedin | Performance
year achieved

EBITDA Financial measure indicating Meet performance target ~ 25% 690% 17.3%
profitability of the Company during setinbudget as agreed
the year with the Board
Channel Measure of savingsachievedintheyear  Meettargetsetinbudget  20% 100% 200%
Efficiency compared with Business Plan as agreed with the Board
Unplanned Measure of reliability of supply Meet targets set by 8% 80% 64%
Customer recording how long on average, the Board using Ofwat
MinutesLost customers were without water measures
Leakage Measure of efficient use of resources Meet targets setby Ofwat  12% 904% 10.8%
by the Company in achieving ie. 47Ml/d.
environmental sustainability
Mean Zonal Measure of water quality supplied to Meet compliance targets 5% 100% 50%
Compliance customers,determinedby scientific setby the board
testing and benchmarked against
industry levels.
Negative Measure of water quality relating to Meet target set by the 5% 838% 42%
Water taste, odour and appearance of water Board
Quality
Contacts
SIM Measure of customer satisfaction Meet targets set by 10% 100% 10.0%
implemented by Ofwat the Board using Ofwat
measures
Customer Measure of customer satisfaction Meet target set by the 5% 267% 1.3%
Satisfaction Board
Survey
Health & Measures of number of lost time Meet target set by the 75% 0% 00%
Safety - injuries, severity rating and leading Board

Employees indicator on hazard prevention

Health & Measures of number of lost time Meet target set by the 25% 100% 2.5%
Safety - injuries, severity rating and leading Board
Contractors indicator on hazard prevention

Total 775%
out of 100%

Bristol Water plc Annual Report 2016/17 91



Introduction Strategicreport

CSR  Directors

Corporate governance

Remuneration
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Inaddition to these performance
measures, the remaining 30% of
Executives bonusisbased on personal
performance which isassessed
inaccordance with the personal
performanceratings given by each

of their linemangers. Luis Garcia was
assessed as a ‘High Performer’and Mick
Axtell asan ‘Exceptional Performer’
carryingscores of 90% and 100%
respectively.

Theresulting bonus awards, after
assessment of personal and business
performance elements, were:

81% of maximum
bonus entitlement,
ie.24.0% of year-end
base salary

L Garcia

M Axtell 84% of maximum
bonus entitlement,
ie.25.5% of year-end

base salary

The payment made to Luis Garcia was
pro-rated in line with his servicein 2016/17
(nine months). Mick Axtell'sbonus was
based on hissalary at the end of the year.

The average bonus payment per
employee for 2016/17 was £800 (2015/16:
£900). Thisis the average bonus for those
atthelowest grade group.

The Committee determined that thelevel
of bonus awards above were appropriate,
reflecting thelevels of performance

achieved against the strategic objectives
duringtheyear.

Benefits (audited)

For Executive Directors benefits include
the provision of a company car or
equivalent cash allowance,and private
medicalinsurance. Depending on the
individual employeerole, the benefits
may include provision of company car
and fuel, car and fuel allowances, health
care or child care vouchers.

Pension arrangements (audited)
At31March 2017, no Director wasaccruing
benefits under the Company’s defined
benefit pension scheme.

Mr Garciabecame amember of the
Company-designated stakeholder
pension scheme in October 2013

under the Government’s pension auto-
enrolment legislation. Since that time, and
until hisdeparturein December 2016, the
Company made contributions equivalent
to 6% of annual base salary to the scheme
on Mr Garcfa’'sbehalf. Contributions

paid to the scheme for the financial year
totalled £9,690 (2015/16: £11,556).

At31March 2017 Mr Axtell was amember
of the Company-designated stakeholder
pension scheme and the contribution
paid to the scheme during the financial
year was £8,300,an amount equivalent to
6% of annual base salary (2015/16: £7651).

Any newly appointed Executive Directors
recruited externally will be offered

Remuneration Committee

Financial statements

membership of a Company-designated
stakeholder pension scheme or the option
of a contribution by the Company toa
personal pension plan.

Interestsinshares (audited)
Duringthe year ended 31 March 2017
none of the Directors had any interestin
the ordinary or preference shares of the
Company.
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Single total figure for remuneration of Non-Executive Directors for 2016/17 (audited)

Salary/fees

KLudeman 100 100
P Mcllwraith 7 43
CCurling 37 40
R Davis 36 35
T Tutton 38 2
AHemus 42

T Wood 10

HIchishi! -

M Smerdon! -

P Malan! -

Single Figure 270 253

1Noremuneration hasbeen paid by the Company.
The Non-Executive Directors donot receive abonus or any other benefits.
There are no changes to Non-Executive Directors fees and they will be reviewed in September 2017.

Theremuneration policy for the financial year was approved by the Committee on 6 July 2017.

Bristol Water plc Annual Report 2016/17 93



Introduction  Strategicreport CSR Directors Corporategovernance RemunerationCommittee Financial statements

Historic Chief Executive Officer Remuneration
The following table shows the total remuneration payable by the Company to Luis Garcia, the Chief Executive Officer, in respect of

service for the five-year period from1 April 2012 to 15 December 2016 and the remuneration payable to Mick Axtell as interim Chief
Executive Officer for the period to 31 March 2017.

Year ended 31 March:

Base salary 185 189 194 194 173 42 215
Annual bonus

Annual bonus 58 54 51 40 35 1 46
Annual bonus as proportion of salary 31% 29% 27% 21% 24% 26% 25%
Maximum bonus achievable (of base 36% 36% 36% 30% 30% 30% 30%
salary)

Proportion of maximum bonus 87% 79% 73% 68% 81% 84% 87%
achieved

LTIP earned - 48 187 = - - -
LTIP as proportion of salary 0% 25% 95% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Benefits 9 9 10 11 8 1 9
Pension - 6 12 12 10 2 12
Total remuneration 252 306 454 257 226 56 282

1 Theremuneration for the current year reflects that Mr Garciaresigned as CEO on 15 December 2016. It includes £27k for payments he was entitled to onleaving
under his contract. His bonus was based on the salary excluding these amounts, ie. his salary pro-rated to the proportion of the year he was in post (£145Kk).
2 Theabove table apportions Mick Axtell'sremuneration to reflect the period that he was interim CEO from 16 December 2016 to 31 March 2017.
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The 2014/15 LTIP payments are being made in two equal instalments; the first instalment was paid on 31 December 2015 and the
second instalment was paid on 25 November 2016.

Percentage Changein Remuneration for the CEO Compared to all Employees

« Salary - The salary paid to the individual undertaking the role of CEO for 2016/17 (excluding £27k payments entitled to on
leaving) declined by 3.1% compared to 2015/16. The aggregate salary for other employees for 2016/17 declined 1.9% compared to
2015/16.

- Annual bonus - The proportion of base salary awarded to the CEO as annual bonus for 2016/17 increased by 3.35% compared
with the prior year (2015/16: decrease of 5.67%). The proportion of base salary awarded to all other staff as annual bonus for the
same period fell by 0.04% compared with the prior year (2015/16: decrease of 0.05%).

« Benefits - Benefits, including benefits in kind, payable to the CEO decreased by 27.27% for 2016/17 compared with the prior
year (2015/16: increase 6.89%). Benefits payable to all other eligible staff have remained constant compared with the prior year
(2015/16: constant).

Relative importance of spend on pay

The Committee isaware of the importance of pay across the Company in delivering the Company’s strategy and of the level of
executive remuneration in relation to other cash disbursements. The table below shows the relationship between the Company’s
financial performance, payments made to shareholders and expenditure on payroll.

Year ended 31 March 2017 Year ended 31 March 2016

EBITDA 50.8 -81 55.3
PBT 209 -24.8 278
Payments to shareholders:

Baselevel dividends 60 1000

Inter-Company loan interest-related dividends 32 00 32
Payments to employees:

Wages and salaries excluding Directors 154 19 157
Wages and salaries including Directors 163 18 166

Thebaselevel dividends comprise £5.0m due to a redistribution of working capital in advance of the sale of the non-household retail
book to WaterZ2Business and £1.0m as a distribution to shareholders.
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How theremuneration policy willbe applied in 2017/18
The same remuneration policy as outlined above will be applied during 2017/18.

Salary

Asoutlined above, areview of the impact of inflation on salaries was conducted in 2016/17 resulting in a1.5% increase inbase salary as
of April 2017 for all employees, including the CFO. The inflationary increase was not relevant to the CEO as he started on 1 April 2017.
The salaries for 2017/18 for executive directors are therefore as follows:

CEO Mel Karam £230000
CFO Mick Axtell £147175
Annualbonus

The annual bonus scheme will continue to operate for all employees. Some detail of the process and methodology have been
changed as outlined below.

The maximum bonus for 2017/18 for the CEQ is 60% reflecting the leadership required and criticality of the role. The maximum bonus
opportunity for 2017/18 for the Chief Financial Officer is 30%.

The Committee has, however, decided to simplify the structure of the annual bonus plan and reduce the number of measures
in order toreinforce the messages around the key underlying measures which underpin the delivery of the Company's strategy.
The Committee hasalsoremoved the link between the personal element of the bonus and the performance rating and instead
introduced a role-specific objective for each Executive.

The performance weightings have been agreed as follows:

Financial 20%
Outcome Delivery Incentive (‘ODI") 20%
Customer Service 15%
Periodic Review 2019 (‘PR19") 15%
Health and Safety 20%
Role Specific 10%
Total 100%

Their achievement will be reviewed, with appropriate input from the Audit Committee at the end of the year.
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2017 LTIP Grant (audited)

Assetoutaboveanew LTIP was approved at a Board meeting in March 2017 and grant was made to the two Executives on 15 May 2017.
The performance periodis1 April 2015 to 31 March 2020. The period which the AMP6 LTIP relates to spans 1 April 2015 until 31 March
2020 for Mick Axtell and from 1 April 2017 until 31 March 2020 for Mel Karam. An estimate of the cost accrued to the end of March has
been included in the 2016/17 accounts. The LTIPis based on achievement against the following performance conditions:

Totex Performance Measure 20%
Dividend Performance Measure 10%
Outcome Delivery Incentive (‘ODI") Performance Measure 10%
Service Incentive Mechanism (‘SIM") Performance Measure 10%
Company Monitoring Framework Performance Measure 10%
PR 19 Final Determination/Delivery Plan Performance Measure 15%
Asset Management Capability Assessment Performance Measure 25%

Themaximum paymentis 34.2% of salary for each year of the performance period the director is in employment subject to the
achievement of the performance with an expected minimum payment of £55,000 pa inrespect of Mel Karam.

Assoon as practical following the end of the Performance Period, the Committee shall determine the extent to which the
Performance Condition hasbeen achieved, and shall determine the Award Payment (if any).

50% of the Award Payment shall be paid as soon as practical after the Award Payment Determination Date and the remaining 50%
shallbe paid as soon as practical after the first anniversary of the Award Payment Determination Date.

Approved by order of the Board, and signed onits behalf by:
Tracey Wood

Chair of Remuneration Committee
13 July 2017
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Investors’report

The Board of Bristol Water plc seeks
touphold the highest standards

of transparency and openness in
performingits functions and dealing
with all of our stakeholders. A key
aspect of thisrelates to the ownership of
Bristol Water plc. Accordingly, the Board
hasrequested information from the
ultimate shareholdersin the Company
inrelation to, inter alia, the ownership
and corporate structure of the group as
well asmattersrelated to financing and
dividend policy of the group.

The description below has been
prepared based on the disclosures
provided by Bristol Water plc’s ultimate
shareholders.

Ownership and corporate structure
At 31March 2017,80% of Bristol Water plc
was ultimately owned by two investment
funds (the “iCON Funds”) which are
affiliated with iCON Infrastructure LLP
("iCON"),iCON Infrastructure Partners
III,L.P.(iCON1II") as to 50% and iCON
Infrastructure Partners Il (Bristol), L.P.
("iCON Bristol”) as to 30%, along with 20%
which was ultimately owned by Itochu
Corporation (‘Itochu”).

TheiCON Funds acquired their indirect
interestsin Bristol Water plc during

the financial year ended 31 March
2017,and details of the transactions
whereby this occurred are outlined in
more detail below. The iCON Funds are
English limited partnerships which are
domiciled in Guernsey. The iCON Funds
employ typical partnership structures

used for institutional investment,
pursuant to which partners themselves
(rather than the partnership) are taxable
on their share of any profits or gains

of the partnership asand when these
arise. The ultimate investorsin the

iCON Funds are pension funds, asset
managers and insurance companies
from countries around the world
including UK, Germany, France, Canada,
the United States and Japan. Further
information concerning iCON, whichis
an experienced investor in the UK water
sector, can be obtained at
www.iconinfrastructure.com.

Itochu has owned itsindirect 20%
shareholding in Bristol Water plc

since May 2012. Itochuis a diversified
group based in Japan whichislisted
on the Tokyo stock exchange. Further
information concerning Itochu canbe
obtained at www.itochu.cojp.

The ultimate holding Company of Bristol
Water plc is CSE Water UK Limited,
whichisa UKincorporated and UK tax
resident Company. The iCON Funds

and Itochu areindirect investorsin CSE
Water UK Limited. TheiCON Funds hold
their interestsin CSE Water UK Limited
through holding companies which

were incorporated in Guernsey but are
taxresident in the UK, namely iCONII
Bristol Limited in the case of iCON Il and
iCON III Water Investments Limited in
the case of iCON Bristol. ltochu owns its
shareholding through a UK incorporated
and UK taxresident holding Company
(100% owned subsidiary).

Remuneration Committee

Financial statements

CSE Water UK Limited owns100% of
Bristol Water plc indirectly through three
further wholly owned, UK incorporated
and UK tax resident holding companies,
namely Bristol Water Holdings UK
Limited, Bristol Water Holdings Limited
and Bristol Water Core Holdings

Limited. Bristol Water Holdings Limited,
theintermediate holding Company,

also ownsa30% shareholdingin

Water 2 Business Limited and a 50%
shareholding in Bristol Wessex Billings
Services Limited, alongside its 100%
indirect shareholding in Bristol Water plc.

The following ownership changes
relating to Bristol Water plc occurred
during the year ended 31 March 2017

« iCONIII an €813 million infrastructure
fund (and one of the iCON Funds),
acquired 100% of Capstone
Infrastructure Corporation
(“Capstone”) on 29 April 2016. Capstone
was a Toronto stock exchange listed
infrastructure Company that, at the
time of iICON III's takeover, owned a
50% shareholding in Bristol Water
plc (via CSE Water UK Limited)
alongside 100% of Capstone Power
Corp., adiversified Canadian power
generation Company, and 33.3% of
Varmevarden AB, a Swedish district
heatingbusiness;

On15 December 2016, CSE Water UK
Limited acquired Sociedad general
deaguasde Barcelona S.A (‘Agbar”), a
member of the Suez Environnement
Company SA group of companies’
("“Suez”) 30% shareholding in Bristol
Water Holdings UK Limited. Suez's
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(‘*O&M") agreement with Bristol

Water Holdings UK Limited came to
an end on the same date (together

the "Agbar Purchase”). The Agbar
Purchase was financed by a new
equity subscription by iCON Bristol
(via itsholding Company) to fund the
purchase by CSE Water UK Limited of
Agbar’s shareholding. Simultaneously,
theiCON Funds and Itochu (via

their respective holding companies)
provided short-term funds to CSE
Water UK Limited to finance payments
owed by Bristol Water Holdings UK
Limited to Agbar connected with

the ending of the O&M arrangement
with Agbar, further detail on which

is contained below. iCON Bristol
temporarily financed its share of
funding for the Agbar Purchase with a
temporary investment in iCON Bristol
by iCON I (via a holding Company).
Asaresult of this transaction, the
tiered ownership structure pursuant
to which shareholders had held their
interests at different levels within

the group was collapsed, thereby
simplifying governance of the group;
Simultaneous with the Agbar
Purchase on15 December 2016, an
intragroup transfer within the iCON
group was undertaken whereby
Capstone’'s 50% shareholding in CSE
Water UK Limited was transferred
from Capstone to be held directly by
iCONTII (via its holding Company),
thereby eliminating Capstone from
iCON III's ownership chain for its 50%

CSR  Directors

Corporate governance

shareholdingin Bristol Water plc;and
= On 29 January 2017,iCON III (via its
holding Company) wasreplaced as
the temporary investor in iCON Bristol
by the introduction of new limited
partners to iCON Bristol, thereby
completing a series of transactions
whereby iCON Bristol was established
asaco-investment fund alongside
iCON III separately holding a 30%
indirect shareholding in Bristol Water
plc.iCON Bristol's interest is managed
inparallel and consistent with iCON
[II'sindirect investment in Bristol
Water plc. The new limited partners
introduced into iCON Bristol were a
subset of the institutional investors
that areinvestorsiniCONIIL This
transaction was undertaken in order
tomanage diversification of iCONIII's
investment portfolio, having regard for
the significant size of iCON III's indirect
investmentin Bristol Water plcasa
proportion of its overall portfolio.

TheBoard considers that the new
ownership of the Bristol Water plc’s group
should be positive for governance of the
Company and positionsit well to meet
future challenges.

Financing and dividend policy of the
group

Inrespect of dealings of the group with
its ultimate shareholders:

No dividends were paid during the year
(2015/16: £nil) by CSE Water UK Limited
to the holding companies of ltochu or the

Remuneration Committee
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iCON Funds (or their predecessor owners
of CSE Water UK Limited), or by Bristol
Water Holdings UK Limited to Agbar.

There arenolong-term shareholder loans
provided by the ultimate owners of Bristol
Water plc, theiCON Funds and Itochu,

to CSE Water UK Limited or any of its
subsidiaries (including Bristol Water plc).

In December 2016, the iCON Funds

and [tochu contributed additional

funds totalling £9.0 million to the group
headed by CSE Water UK Limited.

These funds are being provided on
ashort-term, non-interest bearing

basis to CSE Water UK Limited by the
holdings companies of the iCON Funds
and Itochu, pro-rata to their ownership
interestsin CSE Water UK Limited. They
were on-lent by CSE Water UK Limited
to Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited to
fund payments that were made to Agbar
on 15 December 2016 in connection with
the ending of Agbar's O&M arrangement
with Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited.

Asat 31 March 2017, Bristol Water plc's
netdebt, including preference shares,
was £308.1m correspondingtoaratio
of 65.5% toitsregulated asset base,
which is in close proximity to the 62.5%
notional capital structure that Ofwat
assumed for water companies in AMP6.
Thenet debt of the consolidated group
comprising CSE Water UK Limited and
its subsidiariesis similarly consistent
with Ofwat’s assumption, after having
adjusted for the £9.0m of short-term
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receivables and accounting for mark-
to-market adjustments for debt arising
atthe time of CSE Water UK Limited's
acquisition of its interests in the group.

Withregard to arrangements within
the group comprising CSE Water UK
Limited and its subsidiaries:

There are two upstream loans from
Bristol Water plc toits immediate 100%
shareholder Bristol Water Holdings
Limited: a £47.0 million loan from Bristol
Water plc earning interest at the rate of
6.042% and a £21.5 million loan from
Bristol Water plc earninginterest at the
rate of 5.550% (together the “Upstream
Loans"). Bristol Water plcreceived
interest payments of £3.2 million net of
taxinrespect of the Upstream Loans
from Bristol Water Holdings Limited

in the year ended 31 March 2017 (£3.2
million in 2015/16). Bristol Water
Holdings Limited’s interest payments
to Bristol Water plc are current, being
funded by dividends that Bristol Water
Holdings Limited receives from Bristol
Water plc. The Upstream Loans have
been outstanding since 2003 and 2005,
respectively, and are entirely internal
to the consolidated group headed by
CSE Water UK Limited. Management

is currently exploring options for the
repayment of the Upstream Loans
inorder to further simplify financial
arrangements within the group.

During the year Bristol Water plc
paid dividends of £9.2 million (£3.2
million in 2015/16) to its immediate

Remuneration Committee
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100% shareholder, Bristol Water
Holdings Limited. £4.0 million of these
dividends were paid in anticipation

of the opening of the non-household
retail market which led to structural
changes within the group, in particular
funding of asset transfers from Bristol
Water plc to Water 2 Business Limited
and the movement of working capital
requirements from the wholesale
business within Bristol Water plc to

the non-household retail activities

of Water 2 Business Limited. These
funds have subsequently been applied
tomeet the group’s obligations to

fund Water 2 Business Limited. The
remainder of the dividends paid were
largely applied to funding interest
payments owing to Bristol Water plc
inrespect of the Upstream Loans as
well as making payments to Agbar
inrelation toits O&M arrangement
(whichisnolonger in place). As aresult
of the use of funds entirely within the
group, no dividends were paid by the
group to its ultimate shareholders (as
detailed above).

Mel Karam
Chief Executive Officer
13 July 2017
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INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2017

2017 2016
Note £m £m
Revenue 325 11.0 1109
Operating costs 6 (79.7) (74.8)
Operating profit 313 361
Other net interest payable and similar charges 7 9.3) (72)
Dividends on 8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference shares 7 an (WD)
Net interest payable and similar charges (104) 83)
Profit before tax 209 278
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 8 0.9) 08
Profit for the financial year 200 286
Earnings per ordinary share 9 333.3p 476.7p

All activities above relate to the continuing activities of the Company:.

There is no material difference between the profit on ordinary activities before tax and the profit for the financial year stated above.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 March 2017

2017 2016

Note £m £m
Profit for the financial year 200 286
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Actuarial loss on retirement benefit surplus 24 0.6) 22)
Attributable current taxation 8 (X)) 11
Remeasurements of defined benefit pension scheme 8 0.2) 80)
Change in the fair value of the interest rate swaps 19 0.2 03
Attributable deferred taxation 8 o 01
Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of tax 0.7) 93)
Total comprehensive income for the year 193 193
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

at 31 March 2017 2017 2016
Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 5734 556.6
Intangible assets 1 51 50
Other investments - Loans to a UK holding Company 12 68.5 685
Deferred income tax assets 23 51 52
Retirement benefit surplus 24 323 319
6844 667.2
Current assets
Inventory 13 11 13
Trade and other receivables 14 22.3 307
Cash and cash equivalents 15 161 180
395 500
Assets classified as held for a sale 16 81
Total assets 7320 7172
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings and derivatives 18,20 (290.9) (3084)
875% irredeemable cumulative preference shares 18,25 (125) 125)
Deferred income 21 (72.0) (700)
Deferred income tax liabilities 23 (614) 641
436.9) (4550)
Current liabilities
Current portion of borrowings and derivatives 18,20 (20.8) (2]
Trade and other payables 17 (34.6) (330)
Current portion of deferred income 21 an 17)
Provisions for liabilities 22 - ©2)
(570 (353)
Liabilities classified as held for a sale 16 1.0)
Total liabilities (495.0) (490.3)
Net assets 2370 2269
Equity
Called-up share capital 25 6.0 60
Share premium account 44 44
Otherreserves 4.3 41
Retained earnings 222.3 2124
Total Equity 2370 2269

The financial statements of Bristol Water plc, registered number 2662226 on pages 103 to 141, were approved by the Board of Directors
on 13 July 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

Mel Karam, Director, CEO and Mick Axtell, Director, CFO
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 March 2017
Share Capital
Called up premium redemption  Hedging Retained
sharecapital  account reserve reserve earnings Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at1 April 2015 6.0 44 58 15) 1961 2108
Profit for the year 286 286
Other comprehensive income for the year:
Actuarial loss recognised in respect of
retirement benefit obligations 22) 22)
Attributable current taxation 11 11
Remeasurement of defined benefit scheme 80) 80)
Fair value of interest rate swap 03 0.3)
Attributable deferred taxation 01 01
Total comprehensive income for the year 02 195 193
Ordinary dividends (32) 32
Balance as at 31 March 2016 60 44 58 a7 2124 2269
Balance asat1April 2016 60 44 58 a7 2124 2269
Profit for the year 200 200
Other comprehensive income for the year:
Actuarial loss recognised in respect of
retirement benefit obligations 06) 06)
Attributable current taxation OD OD
Remeasurement of defined benefit scheme 02 ©2)
Fair value of interest rate swaps 02 02
Attributable deferred taxation =
Total comprehensive income for the year 02 191 193
Ordinary dividends ©2) (92)
Balance as at 31 March 2017 60 44 58 15) 222.3 2370

The Board has proposed a dividend of £nil in respect of the financial year 2016/17 (2015/16: £1m).

During the year the board approved dividends totalling £9.2m, representing £3.2m in relation to the interCompany loan with BWHUK,

£50m due to a redistribution of working capital in advance of the sale of the non-household retail book to Water 2 Business Limited and

£10m as a distribution to shareholders.
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CASHFLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2017
2017 2016
Note £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 209 278
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, net of amortisation of deferred income 17.2 172
Amortisation of intangibles 6 20 20
Difference between pension charges and normal contributions 24 05 (29)
Loss on disposal of assets 6 03
Interest income 7 @n 42)
Interest expense 7 161 140
Pension interest income 7 (1.6) (1))
Decrease in inventory 0.2
Decrease in trade and other receivables 0.2 45
Decrease in trade and other creditors and provisions a7 5o)
Additional contributions to pension scheme 24 (0% )] ©4)
Cash generated from operations 499 509
Interest paid (11.8) 116)
Corporation taxes paid a14) 22)
Net cash inflows from operating activities 36.7 371
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property plant and equipment and intangibles (35.7) (335)
Contributions received 21 38 42
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 01 01
Interest received 7 41 42
Net cash used in investing activities 277) (250)
Cash flows from financing activities
Transaction costs related to loans and borrowings 0.3)
Payment of finance lease liabilities 0.3) 03)
Preference dividends paid 7 ()] (Gh))
Equity dividends paid 9.2) 32
Net cash used in financing activities (10.9) 46)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents 1.9) 75
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 15 180 105
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 15 16.1 180

106 Bristol Water plc Annual Report 2016/17



Introduction  Strategicreport CSR  Directors

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Bristol Water plc (‘the Company”) is one of six regulated Water
only supply Companies (‘WoCs") in England and Wales. The
Company is the licensed monopoly provider of water services
in the Bristol area, and as such isregulated by the Water
Services Regulation Authority - Ofwat.

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in England. The
address of its registered office is Bridgwater Road, Bristol, BS13 7AT.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of the Company are prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for financial asset and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) measured at fair
value and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101,
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework - Disclosure exemptions from
EU-adopted IFRS for qualifying entities’ (FRS 101) and with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS
101 requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.

It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

The following exemptions from the requirements of IFRS have
been applied in the preparation of these financial statements, in
accordance with FRS101:

- Requirements of IFRS 13 fair value measurement (disclosure
of fair value techniques and inputs)

- Paragraph 38 of IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements’
comparative information requirements in respect of

(i) paragraph 79@)(1v) of IAS I;

(il) paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 ‘Property, plant and

equipment’

(ili) paragraph 118(e) of IAS38 Intangible Asset

- The following paragraphs of IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements:

- 10(f) (a statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the preceding period when an entity
applies an accounting policy retrospectively or
makes aretrospective restatement of items in its
financial statements or when it reclassifies items in its
financial statements),

- 16 (statement of compliance with all IFRS),

- 38B-D (additional comparative information)

- 134-136 (capital management disclosures)
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- Paragraph 30 and 31 of IAS 8 ‘Accounting policies, changes
in accounting estimates and errors’ (requirement for the
disclosure of information when an entity has not applied a
new IFRS that has been issued but is not effective).

- Paragraph 17 of IAS 24, Related party disclosures’ (key
management compensation)

- Therequirements in IAS 24, Related party disclosures’ to
disclose related party transactions entered into between two
or more members of a group.

In the current year the Company has adopted a statement of
financial position presentation which is in line with the financial
statements produced by its parent Company under [FRS. The
2015/16 comparative figures have been represented accordingly.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by
the Company in preparing these financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all years presented,
unless otherwise stated:

3.1 Goingconcern

The Company meets its day-to-day working capital requirements
throughits cash reserves and borrowings. The Company’s
forecasts and projections show that the Company will be able

to operate within the level of its current cash reserves and
borrowing facilities. After making enquiries, the Directors have
an expectation that the Company has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The
Company therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis
in preparingits financial statements. Further information on the
Company's borrowingsis given innote 314

3.2 Revenue
Revenue comprises charges to customers for water and other
services, exclusive of VAT.

Revenue from metered water supply is based on water
consumption, and is recognised upon delivery of water.
Revenue from metered water supply includes an estimate

of the water consumption for customers whose meters were
not read at the reporting date. The estimate covers the period
between the last meter reading and the reporting dates and is
recorded within accrued income.

Revenue from unmetered water supply is based on either the
rateable value of the property or on an assessed volume of
water supplied, and is recognised over the period to which the
bill relates.

Revenue from other services is recognised upon completion of
therelated services.
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3.3 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Tangible assets are stated at historic purchase costless
accumulated depreciation and comprise infrastructure assets
and other assets. The cost of assets includes their purchase
cost together with incidental expenses of acquisition and

any directly attributable labour costs and salaries which

are capitalised. Repairs and maintenance of assets is capital
expenditure when it is probable future economic benefits will
flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes

a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use

are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs are capitalised using a weighted average interest rate of
applicable borrowings.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged, where appropriate, on a straight-

line basis on the original cost of assets over their expected
economic lives. Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation
of long-life assets commences when the assets are brought into
use.

Assets are depreciated after commissioning over the following
estimated economic lives:

Infrastructure assets 23to 213 years
Operational properties and 310100 years
structures
Plant and equipment
comprising:
Treatment, pumping and 2to 30 years
general plant
Computer hardware, 4tol5years
communications, meters
and telemetry equipment
Vehicles and mobile plant 4to10 years
Assets under construction Not depreciated

The assets remaining useful lives are reviewed periodically and
adjusted prospectively, where appropriate.

Impairment
The values of fixed assets are reviewed annually to determine
whether their carrying amounts exceed their fair values in

use. Where such an excessis believed to exist it is treated as an
impairment loss and charged to the Income Statement.

Disposal

An asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and

the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Income
Statement when the asset is derecognised.

34 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised
and expenditureisreflected in the Income Statement in the
year which the expenditure is incurred.

Assets are depreciated after commissioning over the following
estimated economic lives:

Computer software 3tol0years

Assets under construction Not amortised

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their
useful lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is

an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite life is reviewed at least at the end

of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life

or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates.

Disposal

An asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and

the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Income
Statement when the asset is derecognised.

3.5 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a
sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They
are stated at the lower of carry amount and fair value less costs
tosell

3.6 Grantsand contributions (deferred income)
Grants and contributions received in respect of network and
other assets are recognised in line with the provisions of
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International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(‘TFRIC") 18: Transfer of Assets from Customers.

Contributions are shown within deferred income on the
Statement of Financial Position and the related amortisation is
recognised in the Income Statement over the useful life of the
relevant assets.

Grants and contributions in respect of expenditure charged to the
Income Statement are recognised when the related rechargeable
expenditureis incurred.

3.7 Pension costs

The Company operates both defined benefit and defined
contribution pension arrangements. Defined benefit pension
arrangements are provided through the Company’s membership
of the Water Companies’ Pension Scheme (WCPS) via a separate
section.

Defined benefit scheme

Defined benefit scheme liabilities are measured by an
independent actuary using the projected unit method and
discounted at the current rate of return on high quality corporate
bonds of equivalent term and currency to the liability. In the
prior year the increase in the present value of the liabilities of the
Company’s defined benefit pension scheme expected to arise
from employee service in the period was charged to operating
profit. As the scheme was closed 31 March 2016 there are no
employee service costs incurred in the period. Scheme running
costs are charged to operating profit.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period or immediately if the benefits
have vested. Past service costs arising on a plan settlement or a
curtailment are included immediately within operating costs.

The amount charged or credited to finance costs is a net interest
amount calculated applying the liability discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments,
changes in actuarial assumptions and amendments to pension
plans are immediately recognised in the period in which they
occur in other comprehensive income.

Defined contribution schemes

Costs of defined contribution pension schemes are charged

to the Income Statement in the period in which they fall due.
Administration costs of defined contribution schemes are borne
by the Company.

3.8 Research and development

Research and development expenditure is charged to the
Income Statement as incurred. Development expenditure is not
capitalised as it does not meet the recognition criteria of IAS38.

Corporate governance
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3.9 Distributions to shareholders

Dividends and other distributions to shareholders are reflected
in financial statements when approved by shareholdersin a
general meeting, except for interim dividends which are included
in financial statements when paid by the Company. Accordingly,
proposed dividends are not included as a liability in the financial
statements.

3.10 Leased assets

Assets financed by leasing agreements that transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the lessee are
capitalised and depreciated over the shorter of their estimated
useful lives and the lease term. The capital portion of the lease
commitment isincluded in current or non-current creditors as
appropriate. The capital element of the lease rental is deducted
from the obligation to the lessor as paid. The interest element

of lease rentals and the depreciation of the relevant assets are
charged to the Income Statement.

Operating lease rental payments are charged to the Income
Statement as incurred over the term of the lease.

311 Taxation

Current tax, including UK corporation tax, is provided at
amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) for the year, and any
adjustment to tax payable or receivable in respect of the prior
years, using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Advance Corporation Tax (‘ACT") in respect of dividends in
previous years is written off to the Income Statement unless

it can be recovered against mainstream corporation tax in the
financial year or with reasonable assurance in the future. Credit is
taken for ACT previously written off when it is recovered against
mainstream corporation tax liabilities.

Deferred tax isrecognised in respect of all timing temporary
differences arising between the carrying amount of assets for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, carried forward tax credits or
tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured on an
undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply
when the related asset is realised or liability is settled, based
on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets isreviewed at each
reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if
alegal enforcement right exists to that effect, the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxation authority and that authority permits
the Company to make a single net payment.
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Tax is charged or credited to other comprehensive income
if it relates to items that are charged or credited to other
comprehensive income. Similarly, tax is charged or credited
directly to equity if it relates to items that are credited or
charged directly to equity. Otherwise tax is recognised in the
Income Statement.

3.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial
Position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as defined

above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

3.13 Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventory valuation is determined using the weighted average
cost method. Following established practice in the water
industry, no value is included in the financial statements for
water held in store.

3.14 Financial instruments

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost.

The net costs of issue of loans (being expenses incurred
less premiums received) where material are amortised over
the lives of the respective loans and disclosed within net
borrowings. Immaterial amounts are written off as incurred.
Index-linked loans are considered to be effective economic
hedges and are valued at cost plus accrued indexation.

In accordance with the provisions of IAS 32, Financial
Instruments: Presentation’, and IAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement’, the Company fair values its
interest-rate swaps on the Statement of Financial Position.

Hedge accounting

The Company documents at the inception of the transaction
the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking a hedge transaction. The Company also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on

an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair value or cash flows of hedged items.

Derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability. The full
fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current
asset or liability if the remaining maturity of the hedged item
is more than 12 months and, as a current asset or liability, if the
maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.
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The effective portion of the swaps' fair value movements is
recognised in the other comprehensive income. Should there
be any ineffectiveness; the ineffective portion of the fair value
movements would be recognised immediately in the Income
Statement within finance charges.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Company
revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument
expires, is terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting. Accordingly the cumulative gains/losses
previously recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income are reclassified immediately to the Income
Statement.

3.15 Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a legal

or constructive obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. Provisions are not discounted as the
effect of the time value of money is not considered material.

3.16 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

3.17 Creditors

Creditors are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

Revenue Recognition

An estimate of water consumption by metered customers
since the date of the last bill and the corresponding income
that remains not billed (accrued income) is required to be
made each year. The accrual is based on metered volumes,
and consumption already billed and tariffs. The accrued
income is £12.6m (2015/16 £12.6m) and is included in note 14
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prepayments and accrued income.

Classification of costs between operating expenditure and
capital expenditure

Expenditure on assets can be for repairs, maintenance or
enhancement, and judgement is required to determine whether
it should be classified as operating expenditure or capital
expenditure.

The Company incurs a high level of infrastructure maintenance
expenditure. Each infrastructure scheme is reviewed to
determine the accounting treatment as either capital or
operating expenditure, depending on the nature of the scheme.
Consideration is given to a range of factors, including the degree
of upgrade which results from the maintenance project, the
frequency of the maintenance relative to the overall life of the
underlying asset, whether the maintenance is likely to result in
increased useful life or enhanced working standard or capacity
of the asset, and if the maintenance is expected toresultin a
separate component of infrastructure asset. The results are
assessed against the requirements of accounting standards.

Payroll costs are allocated to cost centres that reflect the nature

of activity being undertaken. A judgement is applied, based on

the activity for each cost centre, of an appropriate proportion

to capitalise. This is a formal procedure under which figures are
reviewed and assessed to ensure they meet the required criteria
(directly attributable to an asset, probable future economic benefit
and can be measured reliably). See note 6 (a) for capitalised
payroll costs.

Useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment

The annual depreciation charge for property, plant and
equipment is sensitive to changes in the estimated useful
economic lives and residual values of the assets. These are
amended when necessary to reflect current estimates, based

on technological advancement, future investments, economic
utilisation and the physical condition of the assets. See note 10
for the carrying amount of the property plant and equipment and
note 3.3 for the useful economic lives for each class of assets.

Useful economic lives of intangible assets

The annual amortisation for computer software is sensitive to
changes in the estimated useful economic lives of the assets. These
are amended when necessary to reflect current estimates, based
on technological advancement, future investments and economic
utilisation. See note1l for the carrying amount of the intangible
assets and note 34 for the useful economic lives of the assets.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Company makes an estimate of the recoverable value of
trade and other receivables. When assessing impairment of
trade and other receivables, management considers factors
including the credit rating of the receivable, the aging profile of
thereceivables and historical experience. See note 14 for the net
carrying amount of the receivables and associated impairment
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provision.

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Company has an obligation to pay pension benefits to certain
employees. The cost of these benefits and the present value of
the obligation depends on a number of factors, including; life
expectancy, asset valuations and the discount rate on corporate
bonds. Management estimates these factors and receives advice
from the pension scheme administrators in determining the net
pension obligation in the balance sheet. The assumptions reflect
historical experience and current trends.

In March 2016 the scheme closed to future benefit accrual and
asaresult any surplus on the scheme would only be available
to the Company as refund rather than as a reduction in future
contributions. Under current UK tax legislation an income

tax deduction of 35% is applied to a refund from a UK pension
scheme, before it is passed to the employer which is shown as a
restriction to the value of the net pension scheme asset.

See note 24 for the disclosures of the defined benefit pension
scheme.

Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The
Company uses the services of third party experts to provide the
valuation. See note 19 for details of the Company’s interest rate
swaps.

5. REVENUE

Revenue is wholly derived from water supply and related
activities in the United Kingdom. The maximum level of prices
the Company may levy for the majority of water charges is
controlled by the Water Services Regulation Authority (Ofwat)
through the RPI +/- K price formula.
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6. OPERATING COSTS

(@) Operating costs includes - 2017 2016
£m £m
Inventory recognised as an expense 2.3 2.2
Wages and salaries, including restructuring costs and other termination benefits 16.3 166
Social security costs 18 17
Defined contribution scheme costs (note 24) 17 12
Defined benefit scheme costs (note 24) 05 14
Total payroll cost 203 181
Less capitalised as tangible assets (54 59)
Net staff cost 149 122

Depreciation of tangible assets (note 10)

On owned assets 186 177

Onleased assets 03 12
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 11) 20 20
Amortisation of related deferred income (mote 21) a1.7) a7

Other operating charges

Research and development expenditure 0.1 01

Auditors remuneration 01 02

Impairment of trade receivables (note 14) 29 26

Loss on disposal of tangible assets 0.3

Other chargeslessrecoveries 399 383
Total operating costs 79.7 74.8

(b) Employee details

The monthly average number of employees by activity, including Directors on a service contract, (full-time equivalents) during the year
was as follows:

2017 2016
No. No.
Water treatment and distribution 228 252
Support services 12 100
Administration 87 80
Non-appointed activities 12 16
439 448
(c) Directors’ emoluments - 2017 2016
£m £m
Aggregate emoluments of Directors, being remuneration, bonus, pension, LTIP and benefits in kind 0.8 08
Compensation for loss of office 0.1 01
09 09
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The highest paid Director during the year was Mr Garcia; full details of his, and all other Directors emoluments, are disclosed in the
‘Remuneration Committee report’ on pages 84 to 97.

(d) Independent auditors’ remuneration
During the year the Company obtained the following services from the Company’s auditor and its associates:

2017 2016
£000 £000
Fees payable for the audit of the Company’s annual statutory financial statement 64 63
Fees payable for other services:
thereview of the Company’s interim financial statements 8 14
services pursuant to legislation, principally related to regulatory accounts and returns 42 36
agreed upon procedures work for our PR14 submission - 10
Review of PR 14 process = 110
Review of PR 19 process 30
pension scheme review - 3
PwC Inform’ subscription 1 1
Total non-audit fees 81 174
7. NET INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES
2017 2016
£m £m
Interest payable and similar charges relate to:
Bankborrowings 2.3 2.3
Termloans and debentures:
interest charges 95 94
indexation and amortisation of fees and premium on loans 35 17
Finance leases 01
Capitalisation of borrowing cost 04 05)
Dividends on 8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference shares 11 11
16.1 140
Lessinterest receivable and similar income:
Interest income in respect of retirement benefit scheme (note 24) a6 15)
Loan to Bristol Water Holdings UK Litd - interest receivable 4.0) 4.0)
Other external investments and deposits income ((0X)] 02
5.7) 57
Total net interest payable and similar charges 104 83

Therate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation was 54% (2016: 46%), which is the weighted average
interest rate of applicable borrowings.

Dividends on the 8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference shares are payable at a fixed rate of 4.375% on 1 April and 1 October each
year. Payment by the Company to the share registrars is made two business days earlier. The payments are classified as interest in
accordance with IAS 39 “Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement”.
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8. TAXATION
2017 2016
£m £m
Tax expense / (income) included in Income Statement
Current tax:
Corporation tax on profits for the year 33 21
Adjustment to prior periods 0.2 (06)
Total current tax 35 15
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of timing differences 0.9 38
Adjustment to prior periods 0.2) 04
Effect of change in rate 3.3) ©65)
Total deferred tax (note 23) (26) 23)
Tax expense / (income) on profit 09 08
Tax expense income included in other comprehensive income
Current tax:
Current year tax on defined benefit plan = an
Prior period adjustment on defined benefit plan 01
Deferred tax:
Remeasurement of swap liability = D
Effect of corporation tax change in rate - 09)
Effect of pension change in rate - 98
Remeasurement of post employment benefit liability 0.2 (09)
Total tax expense included in other comprehensive income 0.3 6.8

The current tax relief in the OCI in the prior year of £11m reflects the pension tax accounting, which generates an overall tax credit in the

period. This credit has been allocated to the OCI to offset against the actuarial loss for the period.
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Reconciliation of the tax on profit on ordinary activities
The current tax rate for the year is lower (2015/16: lower) than the standard rate of tax. A reconciliation between tax expense and the
product of accounting profit multiplied by United Kingdom domestic tax rate is as follows:

2017 2016
£m £m
Profit before tax 209 278
At statutory income tax rate of 20% (2016: 20%) 4.2 56
Adjustments in respect to current income tax and deferred tax of previous years = 0.2
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes:
8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference share 0.3 03
Other (0.
44 57
Effective income rate before rate change 21.1% 205%
Effect of tax rate change on opening balances 3.3) 66)
Effect of tax rate change on current year movement 0.2) 01
Total taxation expense / (income) included in Income Statement 09 08

A change toreduce the UK Corporation tax rate to 17% from 1 April 2020 was substantively enacted on 6 September 2016 and is
reflected in these financial statements.

9. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE

2017 2016
m m
Basic earnings per ordinary share have been calculated as follows -
Earnings attributable to ordinary shares £20.0 £286
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 6.0 60

As the Company has no obligation to issue further shares, disclosure of earnings per share on a fully diluted basis is not relevant.
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Freehold land,
operational Assets
properties and Plant and Infra- under
structures equipment structureassets construction Total

£m £m £m £m £m
At1 April 2015
Cost 3134 365 396.7 164 7630
Accumulated depreciation (1276) (22.2) 672) = (2170)
Netbook amount 185.8 143 3295 164 5460
Year ended 31 March 2016
Opening net book amount 1858 143 3295 164 5460
Additions = = - 296 296
Disposals - 0D - - D
Capitalisation of completed assets 147 16 128 (291
Depreciation charge (note 6) (102 (35) 5.2) = 189)
Closing net book amount 1903 12.3 3371 169 556.6
At 31 March 2016
Cost 3172 347 4095 169 7783
Accumulated depreciation (126.9) 224) (724) = (2217)
Netbook amount 190.3 123 3371 16.9 556.6
Year ended 31 March 2017
Opening net book amount 190.3 12.3 3371 16.9 556.6
Additions - - = 364 364
Disposals 04 - = - 04
Capitalisation of completed assets 12 31 133 (276)
Depreciation charge (note 6) (10.2) (35) B.2) - (189)
Transferred to assets classified as held for sale 02 OD - = 03
Closing net book amount 190.7 11.8 3452 257 5734
At 31 March 2017
Cost 3233 366 4227 257 8083
Accumulated depreciation (1326) (24.8) (775) = (234.9)
Netbook amount 190.7 1.8 345.2 25.7 5734

Included within disposals are assets with a nilnet book value at time of disposal. The original cost of these assets was £39m (2016: £134m).

The net book value of property, plant and equipment includes £4.9m (2016: £4.8m) of borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
IAS 23. During the year ended 31 March 2017 £04m (2016: £0.5m) was capitalised using a weighted average interest rate of 54% (2016:
46%). Thisis the weighted average interest of applicable borrowings.

Assets under construction include all expenditure on plant, vehicles and other assets up to the point at which they are brought into use
upon completion.

Included above at 31 March 2017 is freehold land, not subjected to depreciation in the year, of £1.7m (2015/16: £1.7m).

Property, plant and equipment transferred to non-current assets held for sale amounts to £0.3m (2015/16: £nil) and are disclosed in note 16.
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Included above at 31 March 2017 are tangible assets held under finance leases analysed by asset type as follows:

Freehold land,
operational
properties and Plant and Infrastructure
structures equipment assets Total
£m £m £m £m
At 31 March 2017
Cost 100 21 12 133
Accumulated depreciation (8.6) (eA))] (1.0) a117)
Netbook value 14 = 0.2 16
At 31 March 2016
Cost 255 21 12 2838
Accumulated depreciation (220) @D 10) @51
Netbook value 35 - 02 37

During the year a lease in secondary rental period with a cost of £15.5m and £1.6m net book value of operational assets was terminated.
The assets have not been disposed.
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11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Assets
Computer under
Software construction Total
£m £m £m

At1 April 2015
Cost 253 04 257
Accumulated amortisation 192) 192
Net book amount 61 04 65
Year ended 31 March 2016
Opening net book amount 61 04 65
Additions 05 05
Disposals
Capitalisation of completed assets 04 (o))
Amortisation charge (note 6) (20) 20)
Closing net book amount 45 05 50
At 31 March 2016
Cost 242 05 247
Accumulated amortisation 197 sz
Net book amount 45 05 50
Year ended 31 March 2017
Opening net book amount 45 05 50
Additions 24 24
Disposals
Capitalisation of completed assets 26 206)
Amortisation charge (note 6) 20) 20)
Transferred to assets classified as held for sale 03 03
Closing net book amount 48 03 51
At 31 March 2017
Cost 257 03 260
Accumulated amortisation (209) (209)
Net book amount 48 03 51

Included within disposals are assets with a nilnet book value at time of disposal. The original costs of these assets were £0.8m (2016: £14m).

Intangible assets transferred to non-current assets held for sale amounts to £0.3m (2015/16: £nil) and are disclosed in note 16.

118 Bristol Water plc Annual Report 2016/17



Introduction  Strategicreport CSR  Directors  Corporate governance  Remuneration Committee  Financial statements

Included above at 31 March 2017 are intangible assets held under finance leases analysed by asset type as follows:

Computer
software Total
£m £m
At 31 March 2017
Cost 1.3 13
Accumulated depreciation .3) a3)
Netbook value = =
At 31 March 2016
Cost 13 13
Accumulated depreciation 13) 13)
Netbook value
12. OTHERINVESTMENTS - LOANS TO GROUP UNDERTAKINGS
£m
Balance at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 68.5
Other investments comprise loans advanced to Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited. The details are as follows:
Agreement Loan advance Fixed interest Loanrepayment Principal outstanding
date date Rate* date £m
4 December 2003 12 February 2004 6.042% 30 September 2033 470
10 June 2005 13 July 2005 5550% 30 September 2032 215

*Interest rates for the above loans to parent Company were based on the Company’s long-term loan interest rates at the time of issuance.

13. INVENTORY

Stocks comprise consumable stores. The replacement cost of stocks is not considered to be materially different from their carrying
value in the balance sheet.
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14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables comprise: 2017 2016
£m £m
Tradereceivables (@) 246 298
Lessbad debt provision (@) 4.0 16.8)
105 130
Amounts owed by group and associated companies (b) 0.9 12
Other receivables 14 2.2
Prepayments and accrued income 95 136
Corporation tax recoverable - 07
22.3 307
(@) The aging of net trade receivables was: 2017 2016
£m £m
Past due by O-30 days 16 26
Past due by 31-120 days 11 17
Past due by more than 120 days 7.8 87
105 130
Bad debt provision: 2017 2016
£m £m
Opening balance 168 162
Provision for trade receivables impairment (note 6) 29 26
Trade receivables written off during the year as uncollectable @7 20)
Provision relating to disposal group assets (09)
Closing balance 141 168

Asat 31 March 2017 based on a review of collection rates, £14.1m (2016: £16.8m) of trade receivables were considered impaired and have
been provided for.

In accordance with IAS39, the Company has created a general provision that cannot be specifically attributed to the trade receivables
that are impaired. The Company’s policy is to consider the trade receivables impairment to be allocated on a collective basis and only
impaired for the purposes of IFRS7 disclosures when the loss can be specifically identified with the trade receivables. The Company is
required to continue providing residential customers with water regardless of payment.

Other receivables at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 have not been impaired.
(b) The sum of £04m (2015/16: £04m) is included within the heading "Amounts owed by group and associated companies” in respect of

amounts advanced to BWBSL, a joint venture Company between Bristol Water Holdings Limited, a parent Company, and Wessex Water
Services Limited, to fund the purchase of tangible assets. This amount has no fixed repayment date.
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15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

2017 2016

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 100 120
Restricted cash 6.1 60
16.1 180

Restricted cash are funds the Company is required to maintain, under the terms of the STID, in a nominated account to cover
estimated debt service payments arising during the following year. These funds are therefore not available for other operational use or
distribution to shareholders.

16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

2017 2016
£m £m
(@) Non current assets classified as held for sale
Property plant and equipment 0.2

At 31 March 2017 land and property which is being actively marketed has been classified as held for sale. The sale is expected to
complete in 2017/18.

(b) Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale 2017 2016
£m £m
Property plant and equipment 01
Intangible assets 03
Trade receivables 34
Accrued income 41
79
(c) Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale 2017 2016
£m £m
Receiptsin advance 10
10

The disposal group has been classified as held for sale following the decision by the management and shareholders on 2 February 2017
to sell the assets and liabilities relating to non-household activities to Water 2 Business Limited, an associate of Bristol Water Holdings
Limited. The completion date for the transaction is expected by 31 March 2018.
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17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2017 2016
£m £m
Trade and other payables
Receiptsin advance 14 119
Trade payables 16 89
Amounts owed to associates 17 17
Other taxation and social security 0.6 07
Corporation tax payable 14
Payments received on account 12 17
Accruals 6.7 81
346 330
All amounts owed to associates are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
18. BORROWINGS AND DERIVATIVES
2017 2016
restated
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Bank and other term loans - secured 200
Finance leases - secured (note 18, 26) 05 04
Interest rate swaps 0.3
20.8 04
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Bank and other term loans - secured 50.0 700
Finance leases - secured (note 18, 26) 15 19
Net unamortised premiums arising on issue of term loans (0.3) 03
Interest rate swaps 12 20
Forward interest rate swaps 0.3
52.7 736
Amounts falling due after more than five years
Bank and other term loans - secured 234.2 2306
Net unamortised premiums arising on issue of term loans 24 26
236.6 2332
Irredeemable
Debentures 16 16
8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference shares (note 25) 125 125
141 141
Total 324.2 3213

None of the bank and other term loans included within creditors are payable in instalments.
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Security for borrowings

The majority of the Company’s financial liabilities are secured. The security is given:

Inrespect of the Company

« by way of first fixed charges over any of its freehold or leasehold property belonging to it now or acquired in the future (other than
protected land under the Water Industry Act1991), its present future goodwill, all rights and claims in relation to charged bank
accounts, all book debts, all insurances, all rights, title and interest to all investments and all plant and machinery, and

« afloating charge over the whole of its undertaking.

Prior to enforcement of the security by the lender, the Company is entitled to exercise all its rights, and perform its obligations in relation
to the charged assets in accordance with the provisions set out in the Company’s Security Trust and Intercreditor Deed (“STID").

Inrespect of Bristol Water Core Holdings Limited (the immediate parent of the Company), as security for the obligations of the
Company:

» afixed charge over its shares in the Company together with a floating charge over the whole of its undertaking.

Total Total
Interestrate = Maturity 2017 2016
% £m £m
Current loans and borrowings
£10000000 bank loan 104%  7Dec 2017 100 =
£10000000 bank loan 573% 7 Dec 2017 100 =
Interest rate swap for £10000000 bank loan 503% 7 Dec 2017 0.3 =
Finance leases 389% 10 May 2020 0.5 04
Total current loans and borrowings 20.8 04
Non current loans and borrowings
£10000000 bank loan = 7 Dec 2017 = 100
£10000000 bank loan = 7 Dec 2017 = 100
£50000,000 bank loan 240%  29Nov 2019 500 500
Interest rate swap for £50000000 bank loan 150%  29Nov 2019 12 13
Interest rate swap for £10000,000 bank loan - 7 Dec 2017 - 07
Forward interest rate swap 093% 24 Mar 2020 0.3 =
Financeleases 389% 10 May 2020 15 19
£127,835000 term loan 364%* 30 Sept 2032 130.2 1278
£57500000 term loan 601%* 30 Sept2033 575 575
£45302,000 term loan 270%  25Mar 2041 465 453
Net unamortised premiums* 21 23
£1405,218 Consolidated debentures 400% irredeemable 14 14
£36,740 perpetual debentures 425% irredeemable -
£54,875 perpetual debentures 400% irredeemable 0.1 01
£72,900 perpetual debentures 350% irredeemable 01 01
£12500000 cumulative preference shares 8.75% irredeemable 125 125
Total non- current loans and borrowings 3034 3209
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18. BORROWINGS AND DERIVATIVES (continued)

Borrowing facilities
Unutilised borrowing facilities are as follows: 2017 2016
£m £m
Expiring in August 2017 - 500
Expiring in December 2019 200 200
Expiring in December 2019 150
Expiring in December 2021 35.0
700 700

The facilities are floating rate and incur non-utilisation fees at market rates.

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value estimation
The fair values of the cash deposits, trade receivables, trade creditors, loans and overdrafts with a maturity of less than one year are
assessed to approximate to their book values.

In the case of bank loans and other loans due in more than one year the fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate available to the Company for similar
financial instruments.

The fair value of the Company’s debentures has been calculated by discounting the expected cash flows at prevailing market rates
including an estimated margin over gilts. Fixed rate loans from Artesian Finance Il plc have been discounted by reference to the UK
Government fixed rate gilt 2032 plus an estimated margin. Index-linked loans from Artesian Finance plc have been discounted by
reference to the UK Government index-linked gilt 2030 plus an estimated margin.

The Company’s preference shares (shown as debt within these financial statements) are listed on the London Stock Exchange and their
fair value is assumed to be their quoted market price.

The long-term loans to Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited have been discounted by reference to the UK Government fixed rate gilt 2032
plus an estimated margin.

Interest-rate swaps

At 31 March 2017, the Company was party to two interest rate swaps with notional values of £10m and £50m. These swaps were effective
from 22 October 2008 and 3 December 2014 and will expire on 7 December 2017 and 29 November 2019 respectively. The fair values

of the interest rate swaps have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows by reference to the implied future 6
months LIBOR and 3 months LIBOR respectively, and hence the swaps are valued as Level 2 instrument as set out by IFRS 13 ‘Fair value
measurement.

The Company is also a party to a forward starting interest rate swap to hedge expected future borrowings. The effective date of the swap
is 24 April 2018 and the swap will expire on 24 March 2020. The initial notional value of the swap is £25m, increasing in stages to a final
notional value of £675m. The fair value of the forward starting swap has been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
by reference to the implied future one month LIBOR. The forward starting swap has been valued as a Level 2 instrument accordingly.

In accordance with IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, the liability arising under the swap agreements was
recognised in these financial statements, as follows:
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Liability: 2017 2016
£m £m

Due under one year 0.3
Due after one year 15 20
1.8 20

In accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement the Company has reviewed all material contracts for
embedded derivatives that are required to be separately accounted for if they do not meet the requirements set out in the standard. As
aresult of thisreview no embedded derivatives were identified.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Although the Company does not intend to trade in any financial instruments, the following tables provide a comparison, by category, of
the carrying amounts and the fair value of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities. Where available, market values have
been used to determine fair values. Where market values are not available, fair values have been calculated by discounting expected
cash flows at the Company’s current incremental borrowing rates for borrowings of similar types and maturities.

Fair values of non-current financial assets and liabilities 31March 2017 31 March 2016
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
£m £m £m f£m
Primary financial instruments issued to finance the Company
Long-term borrowings (289.4) 438.2) (3064) (395.8)
8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference shares (12.5) (204) 125) (180)
Primary financial instruments issued to finance Bristol Water Holdings UK
Limited
Long-termloans 685 94.9 685 86.7
Derivative financial instruments held to manage the interest rate profile:
Interest rate swaps (1.5) 1.5) 20) 20)
(234.9) (365.2) (2524) (3291

The movement in the comparison of the fair value of the long-term borrowings to book value is due to fluctuations in long-term interest rates.

Fair values of other financial assets and liabilities 31March 2017 31 March 2016
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 161 161 180 180
Trade and other receivables 22.3 223 307 307
Financial liabilities
Current portion of long-term borrowings (20.8) (20.8) ©4) 04
Other creditors (34.6) (34.6) (330) (330)
(17.0) (17.0) 153 153
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Company’s main financial instruments comprise:

» borrowings and cash;

» 875% irredeemable cumulative preference shares;

« variousitems, such as trade receivables and trade creditors, that arise directly from its operations; and
» twolong-term loans made to Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited.

The Company has also entered into interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk arising from its sources of finance. It is the
Company’s policy not to trade in financial instruments.

The Company’s significant debt financing exposes it to a variety of financial risks that include the effect of changes in debt market
prices, credit risks, liquidity and interest rates. The Company has in place a risk management programme that seeks to limit the adverse
effects on the financial performance of the Company.

The Board is responsible for setting the financial risk management policies applied by the Company. The policies are implemented by
the finance department. The finance department has a policies and procedures manual that sets out specific guidelines to manage
interest rate risk, credit risk and the use of financial instruments to manage these risks.

(@) Interest rate risk of financial assets

The financial assets include cash at bank and cash deposits which are all denominated in sterling. During the year cash and cash
deposits were placed with banks for either a fixed term or repayable on demand earning interest at market rates. There are also interest-
bearing fixed rate loans totaling £68.5m (2015/16: £68.5m) to Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited.

(b) Interest rate risk and inflation risk of financial liabilities

The financial liabilities consist of interest-bearing loans, debentures, finance leases and 8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference
shares. The Company uses interest-rate swaps as hedging instruments to hedge cash flows in respect of future interest payments, which
has the effect of increasing the proportion of fixed interest debt.

The Company’s practice is to maintain the majority of its net debt on a fixed rate or a fixed margin above movements in RPI basis. At
the year-end 39%* (2015/16: 40%*) of the Company’s gross financial liabilities, excluding the 8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference
shares, were at fixed rates. 96% (2015/16: 95%) of the Company’s gross financial liabilities, excluding the 8.75% irredeemable cumulative
preference shares, were at fixed or index-linked rates. The residues were at floating rates.

The Company’s current intention is to maintain a future interest rate management profile consisting of financial liabilities at either fixed
or index-linked rates amounting to 70% or more of such liabilities. The balance between fixed or index-linked, and floating interest rate
liabilities will be kept under review, and is dependent on the availability of such resources in the financial markets.

The carrying value of the Company’s index-linked borrowings is exposed to changes in RPL. The Company’s RCV and water charges
are also linked to RPI. Accordingly index-linked debt partially hedges the exposure to changes in RPI and delivers a cash flow benefit, as
compensation for the indexation is provided through adjustment to the principal rather than in cash.

*Variable interest rate loans totalling £60m, covered by interest rate swaps, have been considered as fixed interest rate loans for the
calculation of this percentage.
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Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to reasonably possible changes in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
on the Company’s profits.

The sensitivity analysis includes the effect on all financial instruments exposed to changes in interest rate.

31March 2017 31 March 2016
Profit Profit Profit Profit
before tax after tax before tax after tax
£m £m £m fm
Movement in interest rate of 100bp 01 01 01 01
Inflation rate sensitivity
The year-end carrying value of index-linked debt held by the Company is as follows:
2017 2016
£m £m
Index-linked debt 176.7 1731

The following table shows the illustrative effect on the Company’s profits of changes in RPI in relation to its index-linked debt.

31March 2017 31 March 2016
Profit Profit
before tax Equity before tax Equity
£m £m £m fm
Movement in Retail Price Index by 1% 18 15 17 14
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Credit risk

The Company is required by the Water Industry Act 1991 to supply water to all potential customers inits licensed area. In the event of
non-payment by commercial customers, but not domestic customers, the Company has a right of disconnection. For all customers the
Company has implemented policies and procedures designed to assess the risk of further non-payment and recoup debts.

Under the terms of the STID, cash at bank and cash deposits are placed with banks with a minimum of Moody’s P-1 and Standard &
Poors Al credit ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet. At 31 March
the maximum exposure to credit risk was as follows:

2017 2016

£m £m

Long-termloans 68.5 685
Cash and cash equivalents 16.1 180
Trade and other receivables, net of bad debt provisions made 22.3 307
1069 172

There isno collateral held as security in respect of the above financial assets.

(d) Liquidity risk
Itis the Company policy to maintain continuity of funding. At the year-end 77% (2015/16: 76%) of its financial liabilities, including 8.75%
irredeemable cumulative preference shares, mature after five years or are irredeemable.

The Company actively maintains a mixture of long-term and short-term committed facilities that are designed to provide sufficient
funds for operations.

The Company has a £20m facility expiring in December 2019, a £15m facility expiring in December 2019 and a £35m facility expiring
in December 2021. All the facilities are floating rate and incur non-utilisation fees at market rates. At the year end all of these facilities
remain undrawn.

Under the terms of the STID the Company is required to maintain sufficient funds in a nominated account to cover estimated debt
service payments arising during the following year. These funds, currently amounting to approximately £6.1m (2015/16: £6.0m), are
therefore not available for other operational use or distribution to shareholders.

The table below details the Company's remaining contractual payments until maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The
table is based on the undiscounted cash flows, and includes estimates of future interest payments and loan indexation on financial
liabilities. At 31 March 2017 we have assumed that indexation will be applied at the rate of 3.9% p.a. At 31 March 2016 we have assumed
that indexation will be applied at the rate of 19% p.a. These were the prevailing rates for inflation on indexed linked loans at these dates
and have been applied for each year until maturity.
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Year ended 31 March 2017 Due within Betweenone  Betweentwo

one year andtwoyears andfiveyears Afterfive years Total

£m £m £m £m £m

Trade creditors 116 = = = 116
Due to group and associated companies 17 - - - 17
Other taxation and social security 0.6 - - - 06
Corporation tax payable 14 - - - 14
Accruals 14 = = = 14
Interest bearing loans and related interest 315 14 824 559.9 685.2

48.2 14 824 559.9 701.9
Year ended 31 March 2016 Due within Between one Between two

one year andtwoyears andfiveyears Afterfive years Total

£m £m £m £m £m

Trade creditors 89 89
Due to group and associated companies 17 17
Other taxation and social security 07 07
Accruals 20 20
Interest bearing loans and related interest 116 315 826 4502 5759

249 315 826 4502 5892
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company has entered into two interest rate swaps with notional values of £10m and £50m. These were effective from 22
October 2008 and 3 December 2014 respectively. The Company has also entered into a forward starting swap to hedge expected
future borrowings up to a notional value of £675m. The effective date of the forward starting swap is 24 April 2018. The Company
uses interest-rate swaps as hedging instruments to hedge cash flows in respect of future interest payments, and accordingly hedge
accountingis applied as mentioned in note 314.

The table below details the Company’s remaining contractual payments and receipts until maturity for its interest rate swaps. The table
isbased on the forecast undiscounted cash flows on its derivative financial liabilities based on the contractual settlement dates.

Year ended 31 March 2017 Due within Betweenone  Betweentwo
one year andtwoyears andfiveyears Afterfive years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swaps
Forecast receipts 0.2 0.3 03 - 0.8
Contractual payments 1.0) 0.8) 5) - (2.3)
Net forecast cash outflow (0.8) (0.5) (0.2) = 1.5)
Forward interest rate swaps
Forecast receipts - 01 04 - 05
Contractual payments - 0.2) 05 - 0.7
Net forecast cash outflow - (0N )} (0. - (0.2)
Total net forecast cash outflow (0.8) (0.6) (0.3) = ()]
Year ended 31 March 2016 Due within Between one Between two
one year andtwoyears andfiveyears Afterfive years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Forecast receipts under the interest rate swap 04 04 08 - 16
Contractual payments under
the interest rate swap 1.3) @D 13) = 37
Net forecast cash outflow ©9) ©7 ©5) - D

(e) Covenants compliance risk

Under the terms of its principal debt agreements the Company is required to comply with covenants relating to minimum levels
of interest cover and to maximum levels of net debt in relation to regulatory capital value. Failure to comply may result in various
restrictions being imposed upon the Company. Risk is minimised through continuous monitoring of the relevant ratios in both
emerging and forecast results, and by close control of operating cash flows and capital investment programmes.
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21. DEFERRED INCOME

2017 2016
£m £m
Net book value, beginning of year 717 69.2
Additions 338 42
Amortisation charge for the year (note 6) a7 17
Net book value, end of year 738 717
2017 2016
£m £m
Current 17 17
Non-current 721 700
Net book value, end of year 738 717
22. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES
Reconciliation of staff redundancies: 2017 2016
£m £m
Opening balance 0.2 11
Arising during in the year 0.1 01
Utilised 0.3 10)
Closing balance - 0.2

23. DEFERRED TAXATION
31 March 31 March

2017 2016
£m £m
Provision for deferred tax comprises:

Accelerated capital allowances and capital element of finance leases 614 641

Deferred income @4.6) 4.8)

Short-term timing differences .0

Retirement benefit obligations -

Interest rate swaps 04 (oX2))
Net deferred tax liability 56.3 589
Reflected in the statement of financial position as follows:

Deferred taxation asset (GH)] (52
Deferred taxation liability 614 641
Deferred tax liabilities net 56.3 589
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23. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities Accelerated
Retirement capital
benefit asset allowances Other Total
At1April 2015 93 676 01 770
Credited to the Income Statement (35) OD (36)
Charged to other comprehensive income 78 78
Reclassified on balance sheet azn azn
At 31 March 2016 641 641
Credited to the Income Statement @7) @7)
At 31 March 2017 - 614 - 614
Deferred tax assets Deferred
income Fair value gains Other Total
At1April 2015 ®D ©.3 64
Charged to the Income Statement 13 13
Charged / (credited) to other comprehensive income ©D ©Dn
At 31 March 2016 4.8) (o)) (52
(Charged) / credited to the Income Statement 02 0D 01
At 31 March 2017 4.6) 04 0.1 (5.0
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24. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SURPLUS

Defined benefit scheme

Pension arrangements for employees are partly provided through the Company’s membership of the Water Companies’ Pension
Scheme (WCPS), which provides defined benefits based on final pensionable pay. The Company’'s membership of WCPSis through
a separate section of the scheme. The assets of the section are held separately from those of the Company and are invested by
discretionary fund managers appointed by the trustees of the scheme. The employees in the section stopped earning additional
defined benefit pensions on 31 March 2016. All eligible employees were offered membership of a stakeholder pension scheme.

In addition to providing benefits to employees and ex-employees of the Company, the section provides benefits to former employees
of the Company who transferred to BWBSL. The majority of the section assets and liabilities relate to the Company employees and ex-
employees.

The financial position of the section is determined by an independent actuary (Lane, Clark & Peacock LLP).

The details of the last triennial valuation and current update on the funding position are provided on pages 41 and 42 in the ‘Strategic
report’.

From 1st April 2016, there were no employer contributions to the scheme. On 30th June 2016, with the agreement of the trustees, deficit
contributions, previously of £04m per annum, also ceased.

The risks of the scheme are as follows:

(a) Asset volatility

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields; if plan assets underperform this
yield, this will create a deficit. The plan holds a significant proportion of LDI funds which are expected to outperform corporate bonds
in the long-term while providing volatility and risk in the short term.

(b) Changes inbond yields
A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the
plan'sbond holdings.

(c) Life expectancy
The majority of the plan’s obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life expectancy will result in an
increase in the plans liabilities.

(d) Inflation risk

The pension obligations are linked to inflation and higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities (although, in most cases, caps on the
level of inflationary increases are in place to protect the plan against extreme inflation). The majority of the plan's assets are either
unaffected by (fixed interest bonds) or loosely correlated with (equities) inflation, meaning that the effect on assets of an increase in
inflation will also reduce the surplus.

(e) Income tax rate risk
The value of the pension scheme surplus has been restricted by an income tax deduction of 35% under UK tax legislation. Anincrease
in the income tax rate will reduce the net pension scheme surplus.

Basis of valuation
The formal actuarial valuation of the Company’s section of the WCPS as at 31 March 2014 was updated to 31 March 2017, by Lane Clark &
Peacock LLP, using the following major assumptions in accordance with IAS 19 (Employee Benefits):
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24. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SURPLUS (continued)

2017 2016
Assumptions:
RPIInflation 34% 31%
CPIInflation 24% 2.1%
Pension increases in payment (uncapped CPI) 25% 2.3%
Pension increases in payment (CPI capped at 5% pa) 24% 2.2%
Discount rate 25% 33%

Assumptions regarding future mortality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience in the
UK. These assumptions translate into the following average life expectancies in years:

2017 2016
Life expectancy at age 60 at the balance sheet date
- Men 28.8 287
-Women 30.7 306
Life expectancy at age 60 25 years from balance sheet date
-Men 323 322
-Women 336 335
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Reconciliation of scheme assets and liabilities: Assets Liabilities Total
£m £m £m
Pension scheme surplus at 1 April 2015 2110 (164.7) 46.3
Current service cost 14 (1)
Section expenses 0.3 0.3
Interest income (note 7) 6.7 5.2) 15
Past service cost (note 6) 31 31
Remeasurements:
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest income 37 37)
Changes in financial assumptions 2.8 2.8
Changes in demographic assumptions 44 449
Experience adjustments on obligation 31 31
(37) 15 2.2)
Benefits paid 6.8) 6.8 -
Employer contributions 20 20
Employee additional contributions 03 0.3 =
Pension scheme surplus at 31 March 2016 209.2 (160.2) 490
Pension scheme surplus at 1 April 2016 2092 (160.2) 490
Section expenses (2] 0.4
Interest income (note 7) 6.8 52 16
Past service cost (note 6) ©D (0.D
Remeasurements:
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest income 265 265
Changes in financial assumptions (289) (28.9)
Changes in demographic assumptions -
Experience adjustments on obligation 18 18
265 @71 (0.6)
Benefits paid 83 83 -
Employer contributions 01 0.1
Pension scheme surplus at 31 March 2017 2339 (184.3) 496

The past service cost shown above consists of an increase in the pension scheme obligations due to a discretionary pension increase to

scheme members and a curtailment gain upon closure of the scheme to future accrued benefits.
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24. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SURPLUS (continued)

Total amount recognised on the statement of financial position: 2017 2016
£m £m
Fair value of plan assets 2339 2092
Pension scheme obligation (184.3) 160.2)
Pension scheme surplus 496 490
Less: restriction of surplus 17.3) a7y
Net pension scheme surplus 323 319

In accordance with IASI9 Employee Benetfits' the value of the net pension scheme surplus that can be recognised in the statement of
financial position is restricted to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the scheme or reductions
in future contributions. As defined under IFRIC 14, the Company believes that it has an unconditional right to a refund of surplus and
that the gross pension surplus can be recognised.

This benefit is only available as a refund as no additional defined pension benetfits are being earned. Under UK tax legislation an
income tax deduction of 35% is applied to a refund from a UK pension scheme, before it is passed to the employer. This tax deduction
hasbeen shown above as a restriction to the value of the net pension scheme asset that can be recognised for this scheme.

Sensitivity
The sensitivity of the pension scheme surplus at 31 March 2017 Changein Increasein Decreasein
assumption assumption assumption
£m £m
Discount rate 05% 147 (169)
Inflation assumption (CPI) 05% 137) 19
Life expectancy One year (77) 77

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, thisis
unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous period.

Total cost recognised as an expense: 2017 2016
£m £m
Current service cost = 14
Past service cost (note 6) 01 @D
Interest cost (note 7) 1.6) 15)
Section expenses 04 03
an 29)
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The market value of the plan assets was:

2017 2016
Quoted Unquoted 2017 % Quoted Unquoted 2016 %
£m £m
Equities 33 - 33 14 43 - 43 21
Diversified growth funds 6.6 - 6.6 2.8 6.2 - 6.2 29
LDIfunds 1420 251 1671 714 155.3 19D 136.2 651
Liquidity funds 394 87 481 20.6 420 125 545 260
Emerging markets multi-asset funds 38 0.2 4.0 17 34 01 35 17
High yield bonds 41 = 41 1.8 37 = 37 18
Cash - 0.7 0.7 0.3 - 038 038 04
199.2 347 2339 100.0 2149 (5.7) 2092 1000
The return on the plan assets was: 2017 2016
£m £m
Interestincome 6.8 6.7
Remeasurements 265 37
Total return on plan assets 333 30

The current weighted average duration of the expected benefit payments from the Section is around 17 years.

Defined contribution scheme

The Company operates defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for employees. Following the closure of the defined benefit
scheme all affected employees have been offered membership of this scheme. The total cost charged to income of £1.7m (2015/16:
£1.2m) represents contributions payable to the scheme. As at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, all contributions due have been paid
over to the scheme.

The amount recognised as an expense for the defined contribution scheme was: 2017 2016
£m £m
Current period contributions 17 12
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25. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of £1 each

Issued and fully paid 2017 2017
No. £m

Opening balance 5,998,025 60

Issued during the year -

Closing balance 5,998,025 60

All sharesrank pari passu in all respects.

Preference shares of £1 each

Issued and fully paid 2017 2017
No. £m

Opening balance 12,500,000 125

Issued during the year -

Closing balance 12,500,000 125

The preference shares are classified as liabilities in the balance sheet.

The 8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference shares, which do not normally carry any voting rights, were issued in 1992 at £1 per
share. Shareholders are entitled to receive dividends at 8.75% per annum on the par value of these shares on a cumulative basis;

these dividends are payable half yearly on 1 April and 1 October. On winding up, the preference shareholders rank ahead of ordinary
shareholders and are entitled to receive £1 per share and any dividends accrued but unpaid in respect of their shares. In the event that
dividends on the preference shares are in arrears for six months or more, holders of the preference shares become entitled to vote at
general meetings of members.

The authorised preference share capital consists of 14000000 8.75% irredeemable cumulative preference shares of £1 each.

26. COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments at 31 March 2017 contracted for but not provided were £5.5m (2015/16: £5.1m).

Minimum lease payments under finance leases

The future minimum finance lease payments are as follows: 2017 2016
£m £m

Within one year 0.5 04
Between one and five years 15 20
After five years -

Total gross payments 20 24
Impact of finance charges = ©Dn
Carrying value of liability 20 2.3

The above payments relate to the lease of plant and equipment which ends in May 2020. There isno option to purchase at the end of
thelease.
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27. ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY AND CONTROLLING PARTY
The immediate parent Company for this entity is Bristol Water Core Holdings Limited, a Company incorporated in England and Wales.

Asat 31 December 2015, the Directors considered the ultimate parent and controlling party of the Company to be Capstone
Infrastructure Corp. (‘CIC"), a Company incorporated in Canada, due to its majority ownership of CSE Water.

On 29 April 2016, CIC was acquired by Irving Infrastructure Corp, an indirect subsidiary of iCON Infrastructure PartnersIII, L.P.
(ICONIII"), incorporated in Canada. As a result of the acquisition of CIC, iCON III, acting through its Managing General Partner,iCON
Infrastructure Management III Limited (iIML III"), became the ultimate parent and controlling party of the Company.

On 15 December 2016, CIC sold its shareholding in CSE Water to iCON III Bristol Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of iCONIII,
incorporated in Guernsey.

The smallest and largest group in which the Company is consolidated is CSE Water UK Limited and copies of its consolidated Annual
Report are available from 20-22 Bedford Row, London, WCIR 4]S.

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Throughout the year, related parties include members and joint ventures of the CSE Water UK Limited group of companies, member
of the iCON Infrastructure companies, members of Capstone Infrastructure Corporation Group, members of the Agbar Suez
Environnement Company S.A group of companies, members of Itochu Corporation, and key management personnel. At the year end
members of the Agbar Suez Environnement Company S.A group of companies were no longer related parties.

The principal related parties are:

CSE Water UK Limited, registered in England and Wales, whose year-end is 31 March, and is the Company’s ultimate UK holding
Company.

Bristol Water Holdings UK Limited BWHUK), registered in England and Wales, whose year-end is 31 March.

Bristol Wessex Billing Services Limited (BWBSL), registered in England and Wales, whose year-end is 31 March. The joint venture
interest is held by Bristol Water Holdings Limited, an intermediate holding Company within the BWHUK group, which owns 100 class
‘B'shares in the Company, representing a holding of 50% of the voting and equity rights of the Company. BWBSL is a joint venture
undertaking between Bristol Water Holdings Limited and Wessex Water Services Limited, and provides meter reading, billing, debt
recovery and customer contact management services to this Company and Wessex Water Services Limited, under a cost sharing
arrangement.

Water 2 Business Limited (W2B), registered in England and Wales, whose year-end is 30 June. The interestis held by Bristol Water
Holdings Limited, an intermediate holding Company within the BWHUK group which owns 30 class ‘B shares in the Company
representing a holding of 30% of equity rights and 40% of voting rights of the Company. W2Bis a joint operation undertaking between
Bristol Water Holdings Limited and Wessex Water Services Limited, and provides meter reading, billing, debt recovery and customer
contact management services.

Agbar Serco Technology Solutions Limited (ASTS), registered in England and Wales, whose year-end is 31 December. The joint venture
Company is owned 50% by Aqualogy Solutions Limited, a subsidiary and intermediate holding Company within the Agbar group, and
50% by Serco UK Limited. ASTS provides IT consultancy services, and security asset management services. Following a competitive
tendering process, ASTS is contracted to provide I'T maintenance and development services to the Company.

Suez Advanced Solutions UK Limited (Previously Aqualogy Environment Limited), registered in England and Wales, whose year-end
is 31 December. This Company is a subsidiary within the Agbar group and is engaged in providing infrastructure asset management
services to the water industry. The principal activities include a patented process called “Ice Pigging” which usesice to clean pipes. AEL
also provides sub-licences to customers for the use of Ice Pigging technology in other countries.
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Trading transactions
During the year the Company entered into trading transactions with related parties totalling:
Sales of goods Purchases of goods
and services and services
2017 2016 2017 2016
£m £m £m £m
Members of the CSE Water group
BWHUK management charges 01 =
Members of the Suez group
Suez Advanced Solutions Holdings UK Limited (previously Aqualogy
Solutions and Technologies UK Limited) - 01 01
Suez Advanced Solutions UK Limited - 01 01
Joint ventures and associates of the CSE Water group BWBSL
-management charges - 25 30
- capital expenditure - 0.1 01
- other recharges - 03 02
W2B
-management charges - 0.7
01 38 35
At the year end the balances held with related parties were: Amounts due from Amounts dueto
2017 2016 2017 2016
£m £m £m £m
Joint ventures and associates of the BWHUK group
BWBSL 05 08 05 12
W2B - 0.7
Joint ventures of the Agbar group
ASTS = =
0.5 08 12 12

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received. No provisions have
been made, or are considered necessary, for doubtful debts in respect of the amounts due from related parties.

Remuneration of key management personnel
Information about the remuneration of individual Directors is provided in the audited part of the Remuneration Committee report on
pages 84to 97.
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29. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 3 April 2017 Bristol Water plc sold assets with a book value of £70m to Water 2 Business Limited for a purchase price of £91m. Water
2 Business Limited is an associate of Bristol Water Holdings Limited. The assets sold include non-household customer lists, tangible
and intangible assets, debtors and accrued income. The sale related to the retail non-household operations, for which the associated
revenue was £16m in the year.

On 3 July 2017 the Company entered into new credit facilities of £25 million with an expiry date of 7 December 2021.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF BRISTOL WATER PLC

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our opinion, Bristol Water plc’s financial statements (the

“financial statements”):

» give atrue and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as
at 31 March 2017 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then
ended;

» have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

What we have audited

The financial statements, included within the Annual Report,
comprise:

- the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2017;

» the Income Statement and Statement of Comprehensive
Income for the year then ended;

the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended;

the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Certain required disclosures have been presented elsewhere
in the Annual Report, rather than in the notes to the financial
statements. These are cross-referenced from the financial
statements and are identified as audited.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in

the preparation of the financial statements is United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure
Framework’, and applicable law (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

Our audit approach
Overview

» Overall materiality: £1,045000 which

represents 5% of profit before tax.
Materiality

Corporate governance

» The Company is structured as a single
reporting unit and the audit was carried

Auditscope out by a single audit team.

« Provision for impairment of domestic
trade debtors.

« Classification of expenditure on
infrastructure assets.

« Valuation of the pension scheme.

Areaof
focus

Remuneration Committee  Financial statements

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (‘ISAs (UK & Ireland)”).

We designed our audit by determining materiality and assessing
the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements.

In particular, we looked at where the Directors made subjective
judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting
estimates that involved making assumptions and considering
future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits
we also addressed the risk of management override of internal
controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias
by the Directors that represented a risk of material misstatement
due to fraud.

Therisks of material misstatement that had the greatest effect
on our audit, including the allocation of our resources and effort,
areidentified as “areas of focus” in the table below. We have

also set out how we tailored our audit to address these specific
areas in order to provide an opinion on the financial statements
asa whole, and any comments we make on the results of our
procedures should be read in this context. This isnot a complete
list of all risks identified by our audit.
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Corporate governance
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BRISTOL WATER PLC

Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Provision for impairment of domestic trade debtors

Refer to page 74 of the ‘Corporate governance report’ and note
14 of the financial statements

The recoverability of customer debts is always a key issue

for water companies. Even though the cash collection rates
have shown clear indications of improvement in recent years,
therecoverability is very sensitive to changes in economic
circumstances.

Classification of expenditure on infrastructure assets

Refer to page 75 of the ‘Corporate governance report’ and note
10 of the financial statements

Expenditure on infrastructure assets is either capitalised

as an addition to tangible assets or written off to the

income statement, depending on the nature of the work done.
Given the size and complexity of the capital programme and
how it relates to the Company’s assessed performance for
regulatory purposes, the classification of expenditure requires
very significant management judgement.

Valuation of the pension scheme

Refer to page 74 of the ‘Corporate governance report’ and note
24 of the financial statements

We focused on this area because the defined benefit pension
scheme surplus is material to the financial statements and

is sensitive to a number of subjective assumptions such as
discount rates, inflation and life expectancy.

We evaluated the model used to calculate the provision and
confirmed its consistency with prior years.

We also tested the underlying data upon which the
calculations were based and assessed the appropriateness

of the judgements applied in calculating the provision, using
historical cash collection trends from prior years and the latest
available cash collection data for the current year. We also
performed sensitivity analysis on the future cash collection
rates by major customer category in order to identify the
significance of the collection rates used on the overall value of
the provision. We found that, consistent with prior years, the
level of provision was within our expected range.

We tested a sample of expenditure on infrastructure items in
the year to supporting documentation, such as contract
certificates and invoices, and were satisfied that they had
been classified in accordance with the Company’s accounting
policies.

We formed an independent expectation of the key pension
valuation assumptions, including the discount rate, inflation
rate and life expectancy, compared them with those adopted
by the Company and found them to be in line with our
expectations.

We checked the accuracy of the data provided to the actuary
by the Company and used in their valuation, in particular the
contributions paid by the Company:.

We obtained third party confirmations of the valuation of the
pension assets.

We also obtained appropriate evidence for the competency
and qualifications of the actuary who performed the
valuation, and checked the information provided by the
actuary to the financial statements.
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How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed
enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the geographic
structure of the Company, the accounting processes and controls,
and the industry in which the Company operates.

The Company is structured as a single reporting unit and the audit
was carried out by a single audit team.

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed
enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the geographic
structure of the Company, the accounting processes and controls,
and the industry in which the Company operates.

In establishing the overall approach to our audit, we assessed
therisk of material misstatement, taking into account the nature,
likelihood and potential magnitude of any misstatement.
Following this assessment, we applied professional judgement to
determine the extent of testing required over each balance in the
financial statements.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of
materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to
determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial
statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the

effect of misstatements, both individually and on the financial
statements asa whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality
for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Overall materiality £1,045000
(2016:£1,222,000).

How we determined it 5% of profit before tax.

Rationale for benchmark We have applied this

applied benchmark, a generally

accepted auditing practice,
in the absence of indicators
that an alternative
benchmark would be
appropriate.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to
them misstatements identified during our audit above £104,000
(2016:£122,000) as well as misstatements below that amount that,
in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Corporate governance

Remuneration Committee  Financial statements

Going concern

The Directors have voluntarily complied with Listing Rule
986(R)(3)(@) of the Financial Conduct Authority and provided
a statement in relation to going concern, set out on page 83,
required for companies with a premium listing on the London
Stock Exchange.

The Directors have requested that we review the statement
on going concern as if the Company were a premium listed
Company. We have nothing to report having performed our
review.

The Directors have chosen to voluntarily report how they have
applied the UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code”) as if

the Company were a premium listed Company. Under ISAs (UK
&Ireland) we are required to report to you if we have anything
material toadd or to draw attention to in relation to the Directors’
statement about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. We
have nothing material to add or to draw attention to.

Asnoted in the Directors' statement, the Directors have concluded
that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements. The going concern basis presumes that
the Company has adequate resources to remain in operation,

and that the Directors intend it to do so, for at least one year from
the date the financial statements were signed. As part of our audit
we have concluded that the Directors use of the going concern
basis is appropriate. However, because not all future events or
conditions can be predicted, these statements are not a guarantee
as to the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Consistency of other information and compliance with
applicable requirements
Companies Act 2006 reporting

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the

audit:

- theinformation given in the ‘Strategic report’ and the Directors’
report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

« the ‘Strategic report’ and the Directors report have been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the
Company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we are required to report if we have identified any material
misstatements in the ‘Strategic report’ and the Directors report.
We have nothing toreport in this respect.
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ISAs (UK &Ireland) reporting

Asaresult of the Directors’ voluntary reporting on how they
have applied the Code, under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are
required to report to you if, in our opinion:

information in the Annual We have no exceptions to
Reportis: report.
» materially inconsistent

with the information

in the audited financial

statements; or

apparently materially

incorrect based on, or

materially inconsistent

with, our knowledge of

the Company acquired in

the course of performing

our audit; or

» otherwise misleading.

the statement given by We have no exceptions to
the Directors on page report.
68, in accordance with

provision C11of the Code,

that they consider the

Annual Report taken asa

whole to be fair, balanced

and understandable and

provides the information

necessary for members

to assess the Company’s

position and performance,

business model and

strategy is materially

inconsistent with our

knowledge of the Company

acquired in the course of

performing our audit.

the section of the Annual We have no exceptions to
Report on page 70, as report.

required by provision C.3.8

of the Code, describing

the work of the Audit

Committee does not

appropriately address

matters communicated by

us to the Audit Committee.

The Directors’ assessment of the prospects of the Company
and of the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or

liquidity of the Company

As aresult of the Directors’ voluntary reporting on how they
have applied the Code, under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are

required to report to you if we have anything material to add or
to draw attention to in relation to:

the Directors confirmation We have nothing material
on page 47 of the Annual toadd or to draw attention
Report, in accordance with to.

provision C.21of the Code,

that they have carried out

arobust assessment of

the principal risks facing

the Company, including

those that would threaten

its business model, future

performance, solvency or

liquidity.

the disclosures in the We have nothing material
Annual Report that toadd or to draw attention
describe those risks and to.

explain how they are being

managed or mitigated.

the Directors explanation We have nothing material
on page 47 of the Annual toadd or to draw attention
Report, in accordance to.

with provision C.2.2 of the
Code, as to how they have
assessed the prospects of
the Company, over what
period they have done so
and why they consider that
period to be appropriate,
and their statement as

to whether they have a
reasonable expectation
that the Company will

be able to continue in
operation and meet its
liabilities as they fall due
over the period of their
assessment, including

any related disclosures
drawing attention to any
necessary qualifications or
assumptions.
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Adequacy of accounting records and information and
explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if,

in our opinion:

« we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit; or

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

- thefinancial statements are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of Directors remuneration
specified by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report
arising from this responsibility.

OTHER VOLUNTARY REPORTING

Opinion on additional disclosures
Directors remuneration report

The Company voluntarily prepares a ‘Directors remuneration
report’ in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006. The Directors have requested that we audit the part of the
‘Directors remuneration report’ specified by the Companies Act
2006 to be audited as if the Company were a quoted Company.

In our opinion, the part of the Directors remuneration report to
be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT

Our responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explained more fully in the ‘Statement of Directors’
responsibilities’ in respect of the financial statements set out on
page 68, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and ISAs
(UK &Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Thisreport, including the opinions, has been prepared for and
only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other

Corporate governance

Remuneration Committee  Financial statements

purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom thisreport is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

What an audit of financial statements involves

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give

reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from

material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This
includes an assessment of:

« whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed,;

» thereasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
the Directors;and

« the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the
Directors’ judgements against available evidence, forming our
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial
statements.

We test and examine information, using sampling and other
auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide areasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain
audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls,
substantive procedures or a combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information
in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies with

the audited financial statements and to identify any information
that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course

of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report. With respect to the ‘Strategic report’
and Directors report’, we consider whether those reports include
the disclosures required by applicable legal requirements.

Katharine Finn (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Bristol

13 July 2017
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